#### **EXTRAORDINARY GAZETTE**



# THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN

# **GOVERNMENT GAZETTE**

www.governmentgazette.sa.gov.au

#### PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY

ALL PUBLIC ACTS appearing in this GAZETTE are to be considered official, and obeyed as such

#### ADELAIDE, THURSDAY, 26 MAY 2005

#### **CONTENTS**

Page		Page
Proclamations	Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Act 1978— (No. 67 of 2005)	1422
REGULATIONS	Historic Shipwrecks Act 1981 (No. 68 of 2005)	
Development Act 1993 (No. 41 of 2005)	Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act 1985 (No. 69 of 2005).	
Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991 (No. 42 of 2005) 1375	Heritage Act 1993 (No. 70 of 2005)	
Valuation of Land Act 1971 (No. 43 of 2005)	Travel Agents Act 1986 (No. 71 of 2005)	
South Australian Health Commission Act 1976—	Trade Measurement Administration Act 1993—	1440
(No. 44 of 2005)	(No. 72 of 2005)	1440
(No. 44 of 2005)	Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Act 1995 (No. 73 of 2005)	
Controlled Substances Act 1984—	Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Act 1995—	1430
		1.450
(No. 46 of 2005)	(No. 74 of 2005) Liquor Licensing Act 1997 (No. 75 of 2005)	1452
Public and Environmental Health Act 1987 (No. 48 of 2005). 1389	Land Agents Act 1994 (No. 76 of 2005)	
	Conveyancers Act 1994 (No. 77 of 2005)	
Mines and Works Inspection Act 1920 (No. 49 of 2005) 1392 Mining Act 1971 (No. 50 of 2005)	Building Work Contractors Act 1994 (No. 77 of 2005)	
Opal Mining Act 1995 (No. 51 of 2005)	Freedom of Information Act 1991 (No. 79 of 2005)	
Petroleum Act 2000 (No. 52 of 2005)	Firearms Act 1977 (No. 80 of 2005)	
Land Tax Act 1936 (No. 53 of 2005)	Adoption Act 1988 (No. 81 of 2005)	
Petroleum Products Regulation Act 1995 (No. 54 of 2005) 1403	Housing Improvement Act 1940 (No. 82 of 2005)	
Local Government Act 1999 (No. 55 of 2005)	Authorised Betting Operations Act 2000 (No. 83 of 2005)	
Meat Hygiene Act 1994 (No. 56 of 2005)	Gaming Machines Act 1992 (No. 84 of 2005)	
Livestock Act 1997 (No. 57 of 2005)	Lottery and Gaming Act 1936 (No. 85 of 2005)	
Private Parking Areas Act 1986 (No. 58 of 2005)	Dangerous Substances Act 1977 (No. 80 of 2005)	
(No. 59 of 2005)	Employment Agents Registration Act 1993 (No. 88 of 2005).	
Native Vegetation Act 1991 (No. 60 of 2005)	Explosives Act 1936—	140/
Environment Protection Act 1991 (No. 00 of 2003)1410	(No. 89 of 2005)	1/190
(No. 61 of 2005)1417	(No. 90 of 2005)	
(No. 62 of 2005)	Fair Work Act 1994 (No. 91 of 2005)	
Radiation Protection and Control Act 1982 (No. 63 of 2005) . 1421	Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1986—	1474
Crown Lands Act 1929 (No. 64 of 2005)1425	(No. 92 of 2005)	1/106
National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972—	Fees Regulation Act 1927 (No. 93 of 2005)	
(No. 65 of 2005)	Sewerage Act 1929 (No. 94 of 2005)	
(No. 66 of 2005)	Waterworks Act 1929 (No. 94 of 2005)	
(110. 00 01 2003)	77 atol works Atol 1932 (190. 93 of 2003)	1504

#### **REGULATIONS**—continued

	Page
Fees Regulation Act 1927 (No. 96 of 2005)	. 1509
Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1986—	
(No. 97 of 2005)	. 1511
(No. 97 of 2005) Harbors and Navigation Act 1993 (No. 98 of 2005)	. 1513
Passenger Transport Act 1994 (No. 99 of 2005)	1521
Motor Vehicles Act 1959 (No. 100 of 2005)	
Summary Offences Act 1953 (No. 101 of 2005)	
Road Traffic Act 1961 (No. 102 of 2005)	
Environment, Resources and Development Court Act 1993-	_
(No. 103 of 2005)	1541
(No. 103 of 2005)	. 1545
Youth Court Act 1993 (No. 105 of 2005)	. 1553
Criminal Law (Sentencing) Act 1988 (No. 106 of 2005)	. 1555
District Court Act 1991 (No. 107 of 2005)	. 1557
Associations Incorporation Act 1985 (No. 108 of 2005)	. 1562
Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Act 1996—	
(No. 109 of 2005)	. 1565
Business Names Act 1996 (No. 110 of 2005)	. 1567
Co-operatives Act 1997 (No. 111 of 2005)	
Fees Regulation Act 1927 (No. 112 of 2005)	
Partnership Act 1891 (No. 113 of 2005)	. 1575
Security and Investigation Agents Act 1995—	
(No. 114 of 2005)	. 1577
Sexual Reassignment Act 1988 (No. 115 of 2005)	. 1579
Cremation Act 2000 (No. 116 of 2005)	. 1581
Bills of Sale Act 1886 (No. 117 of 2005)	
Community Titles Act 1996 (No. 118 of 2005)	. 1585
Real Property Act 1886—	
(No. 119 of 2005)	
(No. 120 of 2005)	
Registration of Deeds Act 1935 (No. 121 of 2005)	
Strata Titles Act 1988 (No. 122 of 2005)	
Worker's Liens Act 1893 (No. 123 of 2005)	
Public Trustee Act 1995 (No. 124 of 2005)	
Fees Regulation Act 1927 (No. 125 of 2005)	
Valuation of Land Act 1971 (No. 126 of 2005)	
Magistrates Court Act 1991 (No. 127 of 2005)	. 1609
Sheriff's Act 1978 (No. 128 of 2005)	
Road Traffic Act 1961 (No. 129 of 2005)	
Motor Vehicles Act 1959 (No. 130 of 2005)	
Road Traffic Act 1961 (No. 131 of 2005)	. 1639

# **Statutes Amendment (Drink Driving) Act (Commencement) Proclamation 2005**

#### 1—Short title

This proclamation may be cited as the *Statutes Amendment (Drink Driving) Act (Commencement) Proclamation 2005.* 

#### 2—Commencement of Act and suspension of certain provisions

- (1) The *Statutes Amendment (Drink Driving) Act 2005* (No 6 of 2005) (the *Act*) will come into operation on 1 June 2005.
- (2) The operation of sections 4, 5, 12 and 13 and Schedule 1 of the Act are suspended until a day to be fixed by subsequent proclamation.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

MTR05/029CS

# **Liquor Licensing (Conferral of Authority) Proclamation 2005**

under section 15 of the Liquor Licensing Act 1997

#### 1—Short title

This proclamation may be cited as the *Liquor Licensing (Conferral of Authority) Proclamation 2005.* 

#### 2—Commencement

This proclamation will come into operation on the day on 1 June 2005.

#### 3—Conferral of authority on Acting District Court Judge

Authority is conferred on the Acting District Court Judge named in Schedule 1 to exercise the jurisdiction of the Licensing Court of South Australia.

#### 4—Expiry of proclamation

This proclamation lapses on 31 October 2005.

# Schedule 1—Acting District Court Judge on which authority is conferred

His Honour David Cyril Gurry

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

AGO0310/04CS

# **Development (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Development Act 1993

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Development Regulations 1993

- 4 Variation of regulation 63B—Prescribed fee
- 5 Variation of regulation 93A—Register of private certifiers
- 6 Substitution on Schedule 6
  - Schedule 6—Fees
- 7 Variation of Schedule 7

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Development (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Development Regulations 1993

#### 4—Variation of regulation 63B—Prescribed fee

Regulation 63B(1)(a)—delete "\$1 276" and substitute:

\$1313

#### 5—Variation of regulation 93A—Register of private certifiers

(1) Regulation 93A(2)(b)—delete "\$64" and substitute:

\$66

(2) Regulation 93A(5)(a)—delete "\$38.25" and substitute:

\$39.25

#### 6—Substitution on Schedule 6

Schedule 6—delete Schedule 6 and substitute:

#### Schedule 6—Fees

- 1 The following fees are payable in relation to an application under Part 4 of the Act:
  - (1) A Lodgement Fee

\$33.75 plus \$46.25 if the application requires a relevant authority to assess the development against the provisions of the Building Rules and the development cost exceeds \$5 000

- (2) If the application requires the relevant authority to assess the development against the provisions of the relevant Development Plan, other than where the application relates—
  - (a) to a complying development under these regulations or the Development Plan; or
  - to a proposed division of land into allotments which does not involve the performance of building work,
  - a Development Plan Assessment Fee of the following amount—

(c) if the development cost does not exceed \$10 000

\$20.80

\$68.50

- (d) if the development cost exceeds \$10 000 but does not exceed \$100 000
- (e) if the development cost exceeds \$100 000

0.1 per cent of the development cost up to a maximum of \$100 000

- (3) If the application relates to a proposed division of land—
  - (a) other than where the application relates to a complying development under these regulations or the Development Plan, a Land Division Fee of the following amount—

		(i)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is equal to or less than the number of existing allotments	\$20.80
		(ii)	if the number of allotments resulting from the division is greater than the number of existing allotments	\$68.50 plus \$6.70 for each allotment up to a maximum of \$1 313
	and			
	(b)	for	tatement of Requirements Fee the purposes of section 1)(c) or (d) of the Act	\$178
	and			
	(c)		ertificate of Approval Fee for purposes of section 51 of the	\$68.50
(4)	develor non-con relevan the requ concurr	oment mplyint t Devo uireme rences	tion relates to a proposed that is of a kind described as a ng development under the elopment Plan—in respect of ent for a concurrence (or ) under section 35(3) of the —a Non-complying Fee	\$68.50
(5)	prescrib	oed ur	tion must be referred to a body ider Schedule 8 for the ection 37 of the Act—	
	(a)	app the	ept where paragraph (b) blies, for each body to which application must be erred—a Referral Fee	\$68.50
	(b)	for 21	a referral under item 19, 20 or	\$161
(6)	2 or Ca	tegory es of s	ed development is a Category 73 development for the ection 38 of the Act—a Public Fee	\$68.50
(7)	3 devel	opme	ed development is a Category nt for the purposes of section —an Advertisement Fee	An amount determined by the relevant authority as being appropriate to cover its reasonable costs in giving public notice of the application under section 38(5)(c) of the Act
(8)	authori	ty to a	tion requires a relevant ssess the development against s of the Building Rules—	
	(a)		he case of a building that has a or area	$F = 0.002 \times CI \times A \times CF$ , or \$36.75, whichever is the greater

in the case of a building that does  $F = 0.002 \times CI \times A \times CF$ , or not have a floor area

\$36.75, whichever is the greater

where-

**F** is the fee (in dollars) payable under this component (unless the \$36.75 minimum applies)

**CI** is the construction index determined by the Minister from time to time and set out in the Schedule of Construction Indices published in the Gazette

A is the prescribed floor area

S is the projected area of the largest side or plane of the building

**CF** is the complexity factor

(9) If the application requires a relevant authority to grant consent to a development that is at variance with the Building Rules

\$104

(10) If the application requires referral to the **Building Rules Assessment Commission** for concurrence before granting consent to a development that is at variance with the performance requirements of the Building Code

\$212

For the purposes of this item:

- *development cost* does not include any fit-out costs;
- allotment does not include an allotment for road or open space requirements;
- no fee is payable— (c)
  - in respect of a development which is to be undertaken by a council, except where the primary reason for the proposed development is to raise revenue for the council; or
  - in respect of a development which is undertaken by a State agency and assessed under section 49 of the Act, or which is excluded from the provisions of section 49 of the Act by a regulation under section 49(3);
- (d) subject to Schedule 7, a body prescribed under Schedule 8 for the purposes of section 37 of the Act may waive the whole or part of a fee due to the body under component (5), or refund any such fee (in whole or in part);
- if an application must be referred to the same body under more than one item in Schedule 8, only one fee is payable under component (5) with respect to the referral to that particular body.

- The following fee is payable in respect of an application for assignment of a classification to a building or a change in the classification of a building for the purposes of section 66 of the Act:
  - (a) in the case of a building that has a floor area

 $F = 0.0016 \times CI \times A \times CF$ , or \$36.75, whichever is the greater

(b) in the case of a building that does not have a floor area

 $F = 0.0016 \times CI \times S \times CF$ , or \$36.75, whichever is the greater

where—

*F* is the fee (in dollars) payable under this component (unless the \$36.75 minimum applies)

CI is the construction index determined by the Minister from time to time and set out in the Schedule of Construction Indices published in the Gazette

A is the prescribed floor area

S is the projected area of the largest side or plane of the building

**CF** is the complexity factor.

- A fee of \$7.20 is payable in respect of an application for a certificate of occupancy.
- A fee of \$36.75 is payable in respect of an application under regulation 76(3)(b).
- 5 (1) If the matter involves an application to a private certifier for an assessment of a development against the provisions of the Building Rules, a fee equal to four per cent of the fee that would apply under component (8) of item 1 if a council were the relevant authority for that assessment, exclusive of any GST component, is payable by the applicant.
  - (2) The fee must be paid by the applicant to the private certifier at the time of application.
  - (3) The fee must be held by the private certifier pending payment to the Minister under Schedule 7.
  - (4) Except as provided above, the fee to be paid to a private certifier will be determined by agreement between the applicant and the private certifier.
- The following fees are payable in respect of a referral to the Building Rules Assessment Commission under section 36(2b) of the Act:
  - (a) for Class 1 and 10 buildings \$328;
  - (b) for Class 2 to 9 buildings \$722.
- A fee of \$10 is prescribed for the purposes of section 57(2d) of the Act.

- 8 For the purposes of items 1(8) and 2—
  - (a) the prescribed floor area is—
    - (i) for the purpose of calculating the fee on an application for assessment against the provisions of the Building Rules that consists of the erection of a building or the demolition of a building—the aggregate of the floor areas of the building proposed to be erected or demolished;
    - (ii) for the purpose of calculating the fee on an application for assessment against the provisions of the Building Rules where the building work consists of an alteration to a building—
      - (A) the aggregate of the floor areas of the rooms or compartments to be altered; or
      - (B) where the alteration consists of the fixing or erection of an attachment that does not have a floor area—the floor area of the building within a distance of three metres of where the attachment is to be fixed or erected:
    - (iii) for the purpose of calculating the fee on application for assignment of a classification to, or a change in the classification of, a building—the aggregate of the floor areas of the building;
  - (b) the floor area of a building is to be measured over any enclosing walls and is to include the area of the floor of any fully or partly covered carport, portico, verandah, balcony, porch or other similar structure attached or to be attached to the building;
  - (c) where a building is without storeys, or has a storey of a height of more than 10 metres, the floor area is to be calculated as if the building contained floors at 10 metre intervals, measured vertically;
  - (d) a building is to be taken not to have any floor area if it is principally of open framework or web construction or solid construction and without any fully or partly enclosed space intended for occupation or use by persons;
  - (e) the *complexity factor* is—
    - (i) except as below—1.0;
    - (ii) for building work for the erection or alteration of a building that exceeds six storeys—1.3;
    - (iii) for building work for the erection or alteration of a building that contains an atrium—1.3;
    - (iv) for building work for the erection or alteration of a building that contains an arcade exceeding 40 metres in length—1.3;
    - (v) for building work that consists solely of the demolition of a building—0.2;

- (vi) for assignment of classification or a change in classification where no building work is proposed—0.8;
- (f) where a building is made up of parts that have different construction indices, the fee payable for the assessment of building work against the provisions of the Building Rules, the assignment of classification or a change in classification, is the aggregate of the fees calculated in accordance with this Schedule for those parts;
- (g) subject to paragraph (h), where an application for the assessment of building work against the provisions of the Building Rules incorporates an application for the assignment of a classification to, or a change in the classification of, the building, one fee is payable in respect of the applications, being whichever of the fees for those applications that is of the greater amount;
- (h) where a relevant authority consents to receive an application for approval of building work in stages, the following fees are payable:
  - for assignment of classification to the building—5 per cent of the fee payable for approval of the total building work;
  - (ii) for approval of the siting of, excavation and filling for, and general arrangements of, the building—25 per cent of the fee payable for approval of the total building work;
  - (iii) for approval of construction of the substructure—20 per cent of the fee payable for approval of the total building work;
  - (iv) for approval of construction of the superstructure—the fee payable for approval of the total building work less any fees paid for stages approved within 12 months preceding the application for approval of construction of the superstructure.

#### 7—Variation of Schedule 7

(1) Schedule 7, item 2(a)(iii)—delete "\$59" and substitute:

\$60.50

(2) Schedule 7, item 2(ba)—delete "\$26.60" and substitute:

\$27.25

(3) Schedule 7, item 3(a)(iii)—delete "\$114" and substitute:

\$117.50

(4) Schedule 7, item 3(c)—delete "\$26.60" and substitute:

\$27.25

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 41 of 2005

MUDP05/005CS

# **Roads (Opening and Closing) Fees Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991

#### **Contents**

### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Roads (Opening and Closing) Fees Regulations 1991

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Roads (Opening and Closing) Fees Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Roads (Opening and Closing) Fees Regulations 1991

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule—Fees

process)

1	On deposit with the Surveyor-General of preliminary plan and statement for processing under the Act	\$173.00
2	For notification of a proposed road process by the Surveyor-General pursuant to section 10 of the Act (payable, on deposit of the preliminary plan and statement, by the council commencing the road	\$493.00

3	On deposit with the Surveyor-General of an agreement for transfer or exchange (on which is denoted all stamp duty payable in respect of that agreement) for processing under the Act	\$119.00
4	On deposit with the Surveyor-General of a survey plan for processing under the Act—	
	(a) examination fee—	
	(i) where the plan is an uncertified data plan	\$327.00
	(ii) where the plan is a survey plan certified by a licensed surveyor	\$654.00
	plus a further \$327.00, payable by the surveyor, if the plan is resubmitted following rejection by the Registrar-General (However, the Registrar-General may waive or reduce the further fee if he or she considers that appropriate in a particular case having regard to the work involved in examining the resubmitted plan.)	
	(b) administration fee (payable in addition to examination fee)	\$161.00
5	On deposit with the Surveyor-General of an application under the Act (on which is denoted all stamp duty payable in respect of that application) for a document of title, or for the alteration of a document of title, where there is no agreement for transfer or exchange	\$119.00
6	For notification of an order or a notice by the Surveyor-General pursuant to section 34 or section 37 of the Act (payable prior to notification)	\$119.00
7	On deposit of a document with the Surveyor-General for processing under the Act for which a fee is not otherwise provided in this Schedule	\$119.00
8	For the withdrawal of a document (other than a survey plan) submitted to the Surveyor-General for processing under the Act	\$42.70
9	On application for a road width declaration by the Surveyor-General	\$46.30

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on  $26\,\mathrm{May}\ 2005$ 

No 42 of 2005

MAS05/005CS

# Valuation of Land (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Valuation of Land Act 1971

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Valuation of Land Regulations 1991

4 Variation of Schedule 2

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Valuation of Land (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Valuation of Land Regulations 1991

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 2

(1) Schedule 2, item 1(3)—delete "\$71.00" and substitute:

\$73.00

(2) Schedule 2, item 1(3)—delete "\$175.00" and substitute:

\$180.00

(3) Schedule 2, item 1(4)—delete "\$26.75" and substitute:

\$27.50

(4) Schedule 2, item 2(1)—delete "\$156.00" and substitute:

\$161.00

(5) Schedule 2, item 2(2)—delete "\$191.00" and substitute:

\$197.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 43 of 2005

MAS05/005CS

# South Australian Health Commission (Compensable and Non-Medicare Patients Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the South Australian Health Commission Act 1976

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of South Australian Health Commission (Compensable and Non-Medicare Patients Fees) Regulations 2004

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Recognised hospitals and incorporated health centres: accommodation, rehabilitation, domiciliary care and related fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *South Australian Health Commission (Compensable and Non-Medicare Patients Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of South Australian Health Commission (Compensable and Non-Medicare Patients Fees) Regulations 2004

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 3—Recognised hospitals and incorporated health centres: accommodation, rehabilitation, domiciliary care and related fees

1—Glenside	Hosp	ital, Hillcrest Hospital (Howard House)	
Fee for	inpat	ient accommodation—per day or part day	\$394.00
2—Hampste	ad Ce	entre	
Head In	njury S	Service—	
(a)	Inp	patient—	
	(i)	inpatient accommodation fee-per day or part day	\$725.00
	(ii)	professional service fee (not payable by private patient)—per day or part day	\$51.00
(b)	Rel	habilitation service for non-admitted patients—	
	(i)	assessment or treatment provided by a medical practitioner, per hour of attendance by the patient (maximum fee)	\$156.00
	(ii)	individual assessment or treatment provided by a person who is not a medical practitioner, per hour of attendance by the patient (maximum fee)	\$118.00
	(iii)	treatment as one of a group of patients provided by a person who is not a medical practitioner, per hour of attendance by the patient (maximum fee)	\$49.50
3—Intellectu	ıal Di	sability Services Council Incorporated	
(a)		athmont Centre—fee for inpatient accommodation—per y or part day	\$237.00
(b)		ner—fee for inpatient or resident accommodation—per y or part day	\$341.00
(c)		e for arrangement or co-ordination of access of patient to ability services—per hour or part hour	\$27.75
(d)	dis	e for preparation of report on access of patient to ability services (for purpose of compensation or legal occedings)—per report	\$276.00
4—Julia Far	r Ser	vices	
Fee for	inpat	ient accommodation—per day or part day	\$341.00

#### 5—All recognised hospitals and incorporated health centres

Domiciliary maintenance and care visit—

(a)	attendance involving a service provided by a medical	\$74.00
	practitioner or other health professional (other than a	
	paramedical aide)—per visit	

(b) any other attendance—per visit

\$33.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

on the recommendation of the Minister for Health and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council

on 26 May 2005

No 44 of 2005

HEACS/05/037 & DFCCS/05/006

# South Australian Health Commission (Private Hospitals) Variation Regulations 2005

under the South Australian Health Commission Act 1976

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of South Australian Health Commission (Private Hospitals) Regulations 2000

4 Variation of regulation 9—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *South Australian Health Commission (Private Hospitals) Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of South Australian Health Commission (Private Hospitals) Regulations 2000

#### 4—Variation of regulation 9—Fees

(1) Regulation 9(1)(a)—delete "\$156.00" and substitute:

\$161

(2) Regulation 9(1)(b)—delete "\$156.00" and substitute:

\$161

(3) Regulation 9(1)(c)—delete "\$156.00" and substitute:

\$161

(4) Regulation 9(1)(d)—delete "\$22.40" and substitute:

\$23

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 45 of 2005

HEACS/05/037

# **Controlled Substances (Poisons) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Controlled Substances Act 1984

#### **Contents**

### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Controlled Substances (Poisons) Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule D

Schedule D—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Controlled Substances (Poisons) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Controlled Substances (Poisons) Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule D

Schedule D—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule D—Fees

(Regulations 10 and 41)

- 1 Annual fee for manufacturers licence—
  - (a) for a manufacturer who manufactures only schedule 1 poisons
- 0
- (b) for a manufacturer who manufactures schedule 2 poisons

	(c)	for a manufacturer who manufactures schedule 3 poisons	\$199.00
	(d)	for a manufacturer who manufactures schedule 4 poisons	\$199.00
	(e)	for a manufacturer who manufactures schedule 5 poisons	\$134.00
	(f)	for a manufacturer who manufactures schedule 6 poisons	\$199.00
	(g)	for a manufacturer who manufactures schedule 7 poisons	\$199.00
	(h)	for a manufacturer who manufactures drugs of dependence	\$263.00
	Note—		
		The maximum cumulative annual fee is	
		<ul> <li>for a manufacturer of poisons other than drugs of dependence—\$665.00</li> </ul>	
		• for a manufacturer of drugs of dependence— \$832.00	
2	Annual	fee for wholesale dealers licence—	
	(a)	for a wholesaler who sells only schedule 1 poisons	0
	(b)	for a wholesaler who sells schedule 2 poisons	\$66.00
	(c)	for a wholesaler who sells schedule 3 poisons	\$66.00
	(d)	for a wholesaler who sells schedule 4 poisons	\$134.00
	(e)	for a wholesaler who sells schedule 5 poisons	\$66.00
	(f)	for a wholesaler who sells schedule 6 poisons	\$66.00
	(g)	for a wholesaler who sells schedule 7 poisons	\$134.00
	(h)	for a wholesaler who sells drugs of dependence	\$263.00
	Note—		
		The maximum cumulative annual fee is	
		• for a wholesaler who sells poisons other than drugs of dependence—\$332.00	
		• for a wholesaler who sells drugs of dependence— \$510.00	
3	Annual	fee for retail sellers licence	\$134.00
4	Annual	fee for medicine sellers licence	\$30.25
5	Annual	fee for a licence to supply or administer—	
	(a)	an S4 drug (other than a drug of dependence)	\$66.00
	(b)	a drug of dependence	\$66.00
	Note—		
		The maximum cumulative annual fee for a licence to supply or administer S4 drugs and drugs of dependence is \$89.50	
6	Annual	fee for licence to possess Schedule F poisons	\$99.00
7	Annual (section	fee for licence to possess drugs of dependence or equipment 31)	\$66.00
8		fee for licence to sell (other than by wholesale dealing) or drugs of dependence (section 32)	\$66.00
9	Applicat	tion fee for analysis of substance	\$199.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 46 of 2005

HEACS/05/037

# **Controlled Substances (Pesticides) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Controlled Substances Act 1984

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Controlled Substances (Pesticides) Regulations 2003

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Controlled Substances (Pesticides) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Controlled Substances (Pesticides) Regulations 2003

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1 On application for the issue of a pest controller's licence that is to take effect in—

July	\$223.00
August	\$207.00
September	\$191.00

	October	\$174.00	
	November	\$158.00	
	December	\$142.00	
	January	\$126.00	
	February	\$109.00	
	March	\$93.00	
	April	\$76.50	
	May	\$60.50	
	June	\$44.25	
2	On application for the issue of a full pest management technician's licence that is to take effect in—		
	July	\$55.00	
	August	\$51.00	
	September	\$47.50	
	October	\$43.75	
	November	\$40.25	
	December	\$36.25	
	January	\$32.75	
	February	\$28.75	
	March	\$25.00	
	April	\$21.40	
	May	\$17.60	
	June	\$13.90	
3	On application for the issue of a limited pest management technician's licence	\$55.00	
4	On application for an extension of the term of a limited pest management technician's licence	\$21.40	
5	On application for the renewal of a pest controller's licence	\$223.00	
6	On application for the renewal of a pest management technician's licence	\$55.00	

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 47 of 2005

HEACS/05/037

# Public and Environmental Health (Waste Control) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Public and Environmental Health Act 1987

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of Public and Environmental Health (Waste Control) Regulations 1995

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

Part 1—Fees applicable if the authority is a council

- Installation or alteration of a waste control system—(other than a temporary facility)
- 2 Installation or alteration of a temporary waste control system
- 3 Connection of waste control system to a STED scheme or sewer
- 4 Referral to Minister

#### Part 2—Fees applicable if the authority is the Minister

- 5 Matters of a kind referred to in Part 1
- 6 Matters of any other kind

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Public and Environmental Health (Waste Control) Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Public and Environmental Health (Waste Control) Regulations 1995

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 2—Fees

### Part 1—Fees applicable if the authority is a council

# 1—Installation or alteration of a waste control system—(other than a temporary facility)

- (1) For the purposes of this item, the capacity of a waste control system will be taken to include (if relevant) the combined sludge scum and hydraulic loadings for both sewage and sullage waste material.
- (2) Fees payable in relation to an application for approval to install or alter a waste control system—
  - (a) if the system's capacity does not exceed 5 000 litres—\$76.50;
  - (b) if the system's capacity exceeds 5 000 litres—\$76.50, plus \$16.70 for each 1 000 litres (or part thereof) in capacity in excess of 5 000 litres.

plus \$83.50 for each inspection required by the council.

#### 2—Installation or alteration of a temporary waste control system

Fees payable in relation to an application for approval to install or alter a temporary waste control system—

- (a) if the system will service not more than 10 persons—\$34.00;
- (b) if the system will service more than 10 persons, but not more than 100 persons—\$68.50, plus \$16.70 for each 1 000 litres (or part thereof) in capacity in excess of 5 000 litres (if any);
- (c) if the system will service more than 100 persons—\$76.50, plus \$16.70 for each 1 000 litres (or part thereof) in capacity in excess of 5 000 litres (if any),

plus \$83.50 for each inspection required by the council.

#### 3—Connection of waste control system to a STED scheme or sewer

Fee payable in relation to the connection of a waste control system to a STED scheme or sewer—

- (a) existing system—\$76.50;
- (b) new system—
  - (i) if the system's capacity does not exceed 5 000 litres—\$76.50;

(ii) if the system's capacity exceeds 5 000 litres—\$76.50, plus \$16.70 for each 1 000 litres (or part thereof) in capacity in excess of 5 000 litres,

plus \$83.50 for each inspection required by the council.

#### 4—Referral to Minister

Fee payable if a matter must be referred to the Minister (referral fee)—\$34.00, plus \$83.50 for each inspection (if any) carried out by a person authorised by the Minister.

(A fee payable under this item is payable to the Minister but may be collected by the council on behalf of the Minister (and then forwarded to the Department).)

### Part 2—Fees applicable if the authority is the Minister

#### 5—Matters of a kind referred to in Part 1

In relation to a matter of a kind referred to in Part 1—the same fee that would be payable under that Part is payable to the Minister (as if the Minister were a council) (including a case where the waste control system is not the same as, but is similar to, a system that conforms with a prescribed code).

#### 6—Matters of any other kind

In any other case—\$347.00, plus, if more than one inspection is required, \$138.00 for each additional inspection required by the Minister.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 48 of 2005

HEACS/05/037

# **Mines and Works Inspection Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Mines and Works Inspection Act 1920

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Mines and Works Inspection Regulations 1998

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Mines and Works Inspection Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Mines and Works Inspection Regulations 1998

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 3—Fees

1	Application for a certificate under Schedule 1	\$20.80
2	Each subject for examination for a second-class quarry manager's certificate under Schedule 1	\$13.20
3	Examination in mining law, environment and occupational health and safety law under Schedule 1	\$13.20

4	Issue of a certificate under Schedule 1	\$32.25
5	Issue of a replacement certificate	\$20.80

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 49 of 2005

MMRD05/004CS

# **Mining Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Mining Act 1971

#### **Contents**

### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Mining Regulations 1998

4 Substitution of Schedules 2 and 3

Schedule 2—Fees

Schedule 3—Annual fees and rents

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Mining Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Mining Regulations 1998

#### 4—Substitution of Schedules 2 and 3

Schedule 2—delete Schedules 2 and 3 and substitute:

### Schedule 2—Fees

1	Application for issue or renewal of miner's right	\$50.00
2	Declaration of loss	\$11.30
3	Application for registration of mineral claim	\$28.50
4	Application for registration or renewal of access claim	\$50.00

5	Mining	lease—	
	(a)	Application fee (per lease)	\$74.50
	(b)	Preparation fee (per lease)	\$74.50
	(c)	Renewal fee (per lease)	\$74.50
6	Miscell		
	(a)	Application fee (per licence)	\$74.50
	(b)	Preparation fee (per licence)	\$74.50
	(c)	Renewal fee (per licence)	\$74.50
7	Retenti	on lease—	
	(a)	Application fee (per lease)	\$74.50
	(b)	Preparation fee (per lease)	\$74.50
	(c)	Renewal fee (per lease)	\$74.50
8	Explora	ation licence—	
	(a)	Application fee (per licence)—	
		(i) base component	\$217.00
		(ii) advertising component	\$481.00
	(b)	Renewal fee (per licence)	\$73.50
9		ation for variation of condition of a tenement, working ons or special approval to undertake a particular work in	\$121.00
10	Inspect	ion of register	\$30.50
	(a)	Extract of lease or licence	\$7.75
	(b)	Extract of claim	\$4.75
11	Search	of tenement database—	
	(a)	Standard report	\$30.00 plus \$1.00 per page
	(b)	Non-standard report	\$60.00 plus \$1.00 per page
12	2 Application for Ministerial consent to dealing with the following:		
	(a)	Exploration licence	\$314.00
	(b)	Mining lease	\$62.50
	(c)	Retention lease	\$62.50
	(d)	Miscellaneous purposes licence	\$62.50
13		ation of Ministerial consent (in respect of each nt affected by the instrument)	\$11.30
14	Application for issue of duplicate lease		\$76.00
15	Application for issue of duplicate licence \$76.00		
16	Late lodgment of transfer \$28.50		
17	Further 90 days	fee for late lodgment of transfer, if lodged more than slate	\$7.80

18	Lodgment of an agreement or determination with the Mining Registrar under Part 9B of Act	\$121.00
19	Lodgment of caveat—per tenement	\$50.00
20	Withdrawal of caveat	\$50.00
21	Registration of any other document	\$11.30
22	Application for a safety net agreement under section 84A of Act	\$60.00
23	Exemption from removing posts	\$7.80

### Schedule 3—Annual fees and rents

1	Annual rental for mining lease	\$82.50 or \$31.75 per hectare or part of a hectare in the area of the lease, whichever is the greater
2	Annual rental for retention lease	\$82.50 or \$16.10 per hectare or part of a hectare in the area of the lease, whichever is the greater
3	Annual rental for miscellaneous purposes licence	\$73.50 or \$16.10 per hectare or part of a hectare in the area of the licence, whichever is the greater
4	Annual fee for exploration licence	\$324.00 or \$4.40 per square kilometre or part of a square kilometre in the area of the licence, whichever is the greater

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 50 of 2005

MMRD05/004CS

# **Opal Mining Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Opal Mining Act 1995

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Opal Mining Regulations 1997

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Opal Mining Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Opal Mining Regulations 1997

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule 2—Fees

1	Application for a permit under section 7 of the Act	\$50.00
2	Application for renewal of a permit under section 9 of the Act	\$50.00
3	Application for a set of identification plates (other than the first set of plates)	\$5.95
4	Application for issue of a replacement identification plate	\$4.70
5	Application for issue of a duplicate permit	\$11.20

6	Application for registration of a tenement under section 19 of the Act—		
	(a)	small precious stones claim	\$ 20.80
	(b)	large precious stones claim	\$42.25
	(c)	extra large precious stones claim	\$59.50
	(d)	opal development lease	\$67.00
7	Applica	tion for renewal of a tenement under section 22 of the Act—	
	(a)	small precious stones claim	\$77.50
	(b)	large precious stones claim	\$156.00
	(c)	extra large precious stones claim	\$212.00
8	Lodging a caveat under section 26 of the Act \$50.00		
9	Withdrawal of a caveat \$50.00		\$50.00
10	Application for an authorisation under the Act		\$11.30
11	Lodging a bond under section 36 of the Act \$11.30		\$11.30
12	Registration of an agreement under Part 6 of the Act \$62.50		\$62.50
13	Lodging for registration of mining native title agreement under section 59 of the Act or mining native title determination under section 64 of the Act		
14	Inspection fee under section 76 of the Act		\$30.50
15	Extraction of claim		\$4.75
16	Application for an exemption under section 79 of the Act		\$67.00
17	Recovering a post stored at an office of the Mining Registrar \$16.2		\$16.20
18	Exempt	ion from removing posts	\$7.70
19	Registra	ation of any other documents	\$11.30

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 51 of 2005

MMRD05/004CS

## **Petroleum Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Petroleum Act 2000

#### **Contents**

### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Petroleum Regulations 2000

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Petroleum Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Petroleum Regulations 2000

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

#### Part 1—Application fees

1	Application for a licence under the Act	\$2 815
2	Application for the renewal of a licence under the Act	\$1 408
3	Application to vary or revoke a discretionary condition of a licence	\$1 408
4	Application for the approval of the Minister to vary a work program	\$1 408

5	Application to convert a production licence into \$1 408 a retention licence			
6		Application for the authorisation of the Minister \$1 408 to alter or modify a pipeline		\$1 408
7			to the Minister to consolidate nce areas, or to divide a licence area	\$1 408
8			to the Minister to suspend a licence ed period	\$1 408
9			to the Minister for the approval and of a registrable dealing	\$1 408
10		Application to have access to material included in the commercial register		\$141
Par	t 2—Anı	nual li	icence fees (section 78)	
11	Prelim	inary s	survey licence	\$2 622 or \$0.85 per km² of the total licence area, whichever is the greater
12	Specul	ative s	survey licence	\$2 622 or \$0.85 per km² of the total licence area, whichever is the greater
13	Explor	ation 1	licence—	
	(a)		relation to the first term of the ence	\$2 622 or \$0.85 per km² of the total licence area, whichever is the greater
	(b)	ter ren	relation to a licence granted on ms under which the licence is newable for one further term—in ation to the second term	\$2 622 or \$1.50 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the second term, whichever is the greater
	(c)	ter	relation to a licence granted on ms under which the licence is newable for 2 further terms—	
		(i)	in relation to the second term	\$2 622 or \$1.15 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the second term, whichever is the greater
		(ii)	in relation to the third term	\$2 622 or \$2.25 per km² of the licence area during the third term, whichever is the greater
	(d)	ter	relation to a licence granted on ms under which the licence is newable for 3 further terms—	
		(i)	in relation to the second term	\$2 622 or \$1.05 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the second term, whichever is the greater
		(ii)	in relation to the third term	\$2 622 or \$1.50 per km² of the licence area during the third term, whichever is the greater
		(iii)	in relation to the fourth term	\$2 622 or \$2.95 per km <sup>2</sup> of the licence area during the fourth term, whichever is the greater

14	Retention licence	\$2 622 or \$451 per km² of the total licence area, whichever is the greater
15	Production licence	\$2 622 or \$451 per km² of the total licence area, whichever is the greater
16	Pipeline licence	\$2 622 or \$248 per kilometre, whichever is the greater
17	Associated facilities licence	\$2 622 or \$1 312 per km² of the total licence area, whichever is the greater

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 52 of 2005

MMRD05/004CS

## **Land Tax Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Land Tax Act 1936

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Land Tax Regulations 1999

4 Variation of regulation 11—Certificates in respect of liability to land tax

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Land Tax Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Land Tax Regulations 1999

#### 4—Variation of regulation 11—Certificates in respect of liability to land tax

Regulation 11(1)—delete "\$22.20" and substitute: \$22.80

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 53 of 2005

T&F05/029CS

## **Petroleum Products Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Petroleum Products Regulation Act 1995

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Petroleum Products Regulations 1995

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Petroleum Products Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Petroleum Products Regulations 1995

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule—Fees

 (1) For the issue or renewal of a licence to sell petroleum products by retail sales—

(a)	if the licence specifies more than one premises from	\$175.00
	which petroleum products are authorised to be sold—	
	for each of the premises so specified	

(b) in any other case \$175.00

(2) For the issue or renewal of a licence to sell petroleum products by no fee wholesale

2	(1)	For the issue or renewal of a licence to keep liquefied petroleum gas ( <i>LPG</i> )—for each of the premises at which LPG is authorised to be kept under the licence—		
		(a)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping LPG at the premises exceeds 560 litres (water capacity) but does not exceed 20 kilolitres	\$131.00
		(b)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping LPG at the premises exceeds 20 kilolitres (water capacity) but does not exceed 100 kilolitres	\$372.00
		(c)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping LPG at the premises exceeds 100 kilolitres (water capacity)	\$600.00
	(2)	each of t	ssue or renewal of a licence to keep motor spirit—for he premises at which motor spirit is authorised to be kept e licence—	
		(a)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping motor spirit at the premises exceeds 120 litres but does not exceed 1 kilolitre	\$69.50
		(b)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping motor spirit at the premises exceeds 1 kilolitre but does not exceed 25 kilolitres	\$131.00
		(c)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping motor spirit at the premises exceeds 25 kilolitres but does not exceed 250 kilolitres	\$325.00
		(d)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping motor spirit at the premises exceeds 250 kilolitres but does not exceed 2 500 kilolitres	\$1 102.00
		(e)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping motor spirit at the premises exceeds 2 500 kilolitres but does not exceed 10 000 kilolitres	\$3 705.00
		(f)	if the aggregate capacity of containers for keeping motor spirit at the premises exceeds 10 000 kilolitres	\$6 094.00
3	(1)	For the p	ourpose of calculating fees, the water capacity of a 45	

- 3 (1) For the purpose of calculating fees, the water capacity of a 45 kilogram LPG cylinder must be taken to be 109 litres.
  - (2) If a licence authorises the sale of petroleum products by retail sales and the keeping of petroleum products, the fees fixed under clauses 1 and 2 are to be aggregated in respect of the licence.
  - (3) If a licence authorises the keeping of LPG and motor spirit, the fees fixed under clause 2(1) and (2) are to be aggregated in respect of the licence.
- 4 No fee is payable for the issue of a licence to, or for the renewal of a licence by, a Minister of the Crown in right of this State.

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 54 of 2005

T&F05/029CS

\$73.00

\$180.00

#### South Australia

## **Local Government (General) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Local Government Act 1999

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Local Government (General) Regulations 1999

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Prescribed fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Local Government (General) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Local Government (General) Regulations 1999

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 2—Prescribed fees

1 For the purposes of section 169(9)(c) of the Act, where the valuation is—

(a) of land used by the objector solely as his or her principal place of residence, the prescribed fee is

(b) of any other land, the prescribed fee is

2	For the purposes of section 169(16) of the Act, where the
	valuation is—

	(a)	of land used by the objector solely as his or her principal place of residence, the prescribed fee is	\$161.00
	(b)	of any other land, the prescribed fee is	\$197.00
3 For	the p	purposes of section 187(3)(e) of the Act	\$10.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 55 of 2005

OLG05/003CS

## **Meat Hygiene Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Meat Hygiene Act 1994

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Meat Hygiene Regulations 1994

4 Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Meat Hygiene Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Meat Hygiene Regulations 1994

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 1—Fees

(1) Schedule 1, clause 1(6)(a)—delete "\$75" and substitute:

\$80

(2) Schedule 1, clause 1(6)(b)—delete "\$145" and substitute:

\$155

(3) Schedule 1, clause 2, item 1—delete "\$250" and substitute:

\$267

(4) Schedule 1, clause 2, item 3—delete "\$250" and substitute:

\$267

(5) Schedule 1, clause 2, item 4—delete "\$250" and substitute:

\$267

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 56 of 2005

MAFF05/0005CS

## **Livestock Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Livestock Act 1997

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Livestock Regulations 1998

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Livestock Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Livestock Regulations 1998

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for registration or renewal of registration as a beekeeper  No fee is payable if the bees are kept for the purposes of instruction in an educational institution approved by the Chief Inspector.	\$17.90
2	Application for registration or renewal of registration as a deer keeper	\$20.00
3	Application for registration or renewal of registration of an artificial breeding centre	\$250.00

4	Application for registration or renewal of registration authorising an artificial breeding procedure (The same fee applies in relation to an applicant for, or for renewal of, registration authorising more than 1 category of artificial breeding procedure.)	\$50.00
5	Application for registration or renewal of registration of a diagnostic laboratory	\$312.00
6	Replacement certificate of registration	\$24.90
7	For an extract from, or copy of, the register of identification codes The Chief Inspector may waive or reduce this fee if he or she considers it appropriate in the circumstances.	\$26.75 for each code extracted to a maximum of \$160.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 57 of 2005

MAFF05/0005CS

## **Private Parking Areas Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Private Parking Areas Act 1986

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Private Parking Areas Regulations 2001

- 4 Variation of regulation 5—Parking spaces
- 5 Variation of regulation 6—Protrusion over walkway or driveway
- 6 Variation of regulation 7—Obstructing access
- 7 Variation of regulation 8—Purpose other than parking
- 8 Variation of regulation 9—Damage to signs etc
- 9 Variation of regulation 12—Further offence each hour
- 10 Variation of regulation 16—Expiation of offences against Act

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Private Parking Areas Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Private Parking Areas Regulations 2001

#### 4—Variation of regulation 5—Parking spaces

(1) Regulation 5(1), expiation fee—delete "\$16" and substitute:

\$17

(2) Regulation 5(1), expiation fee—delete "\$26" and substitute:

\$27

#### 5—Variation of regulation 6—Protrusion over walkway or driveway

Regulation 6, expiation fee—delete "\$35" and substitute:

### 6—Variation of regulation 7—Obstructing access

Regulation 7, expiation fee—delete "\$35" and substitute:

\$36

#### 7—Variation of regulation 8—Purpose other than parking

Regulation 8, expiation fee—delete "\$17" and substitute:

\$18

#### 8—Variation of regulation 9—Damage to signs etc

Regulation 9, expiation fee—delete "\$46" and substitute:

\$47

#### 9—Variation of regulation 12—Further offence each hour

Regulation 12, expiation fee—delete "\$16" and substitute:

\$17

#### 10—Variation of regulation 16—Expiation of offences against Act

Regulation 16, table—delete the table and substitute:

Section	Fee
section 8(1)	\$48
section 8(2)	\$72
section 8(3)	\$30
section 8(4)	\$30
section 8(5)	\$30
section 8(6)	\$17

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on  $26\,\mathrm{May}\ 2005$ 

No 58 of 2005

OLG05/002CS

# Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Variation Regulations 2005

under the Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Act 1989

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Regulations 1991

- 4 Variation of regulation 9—Fees
- 5 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Regulations 1991

#### 4—Variation of regulation 9—Fees

Regulation 9—delete "the Schedule" and substitute:

Schedule 1

\$115.00

\$289.00

#### 5—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Dealing	with	an an	plication—
-	Doumn	** 1 (11	an ap	piicution

(a)	under section 28(1) of the Act for consent to transfer etc a
	lease or part of a lease—

	(i) for one lease or part of one lease		\$289.00
	(ii)	for each additional lease or part of each additional lease	\$143.00
(b)		a duplicate or amended consent under section 28(1) of Act	\$20.70

#### 2 Preparing—

	_		
	(a)	a lease	\$381.00
	(b)	a surrender or resumption of a lease	\$228.00
	(c)	a surrender or resumption of part of a lease	\$381.00
	(d)	on the request of a lessee, a notice of alteration of boundaries under section 31 of the Act	\$194.00
	(e)	an agreement between a lessee and any other person or body for the acquisition or extinguishment of easement rights by that other person or body	\$194.00
3		ng on the register any error in particulars supplied by or on f a lessee, purchaser or other party to a transaction	\$194.00

4	Producing a lease at the Lands Titles Office on the request of a lessee
	as security where the lease is in possession of the Department for
	Environment and Heritage for other purposes

5 Preparing or checking a definition for a notice to be published in the Gazette under section 44 or 45 of the Act by the Board on request

6 Processing on request any other transaction under the Act (not being one in respect of which an application fee has been paid under these regulations—see item 1)

Note-

The fees in this Schedule do not include L.T.O. fees or stamp duty that may be payable.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 59 of 2005

EC05/0017CS

## Native Vegetation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Native Vegetation Act 1991

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Native Vegetation Regulations 2003

4 Variation of regulation 8—Application for consent

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Native Vegetation (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Native Vegetation Regulations 2003

#### 4—Variation of regulation 8—Application for consent

Regulation 8(2)—delete "\$400" and substitute:

\$415

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 60 of 2005

EC05/0017CS

# **Environment Protection (Beverage Container) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Environment Protection Act 1993

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Environment Protection (Beverage Container) Regulations 1995

4 Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Environment Protection (Beverage Container) Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Environment Protection (Beverage Container) Regulations 1995

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 3

Schedule 3—delete Schedule 3 and substitute:

#### Schedule 3—Fees

- For an application for approval of a class of containers as category A no fee or category B containers
- 2 For an application for approval of a single collection depot (including approval of the collection area) \$67.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 61 of 2005

EC05/0018CS

# **Environment Protection (Fees and Levy) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Environment Protection Act 1993

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Environment Protection (Fees and Levy) Regulations 1994

- 4 Substitution of regulation 4
  - 4 Monetary value of fee unit
- 5 Amendment of Schedule 5—Miscellaneous fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Environment Protection (Fees and Levy) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Environment Protection (Fees and Levy) Regulations 1994

#### 4—Substitution of regulation 4

Regulation 4—delete the regulation and substitute:

#### 4—Monetary value of fee unit

In these regulations, the monetary value of a fee unit on or after 1 July 2005 is as follows:

- (a) for the purposes of regulation 14(1)(a)—\$5.40;
- (b) for the purposes of clause 3(5) and (6) of Part A of Schedule 3—\$22.80;

- (c) for the purposes of the remainder of Part A of Schedule 3—\$23.70;
- (d) for the purposes of Part B of Schedule 3—\$27.75;
- (e) for all other purposes—\$13.90.

### 5—Amendment of Schedule 5—Miscellaneous fees

Schedule 5, clauses 2 and 3—delete the clauses and substitute:

2	For inspection of the register (section 109(5))—		
	(a)	for each manual inspection	\$7.10
	(b)	for each inspection requiring access to a computer—	
		(i) for the first 10 minutes of access	\$7.10
		(ii) for each additional 10 minutes or part thereof of access	\$7.10
3	For a co	py of part of the register (section 109(6))—	
	(a)	for the first page	\$3.50
	(b)	for each additional page	\$1.20

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 62 of 2005

EC05/0018CS

## Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Radiation Protection and Control Act 1982

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation) Regulations 2000

4 Substitution fo Schedule 4
Schedule 4—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation) Variation Regulations 2005.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

\$56.00

## Part 2—Variation of Radiation Protection and Control (Ionising Radiation) Regulations 2000

#### 4—Substitution fo Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 4—Fees

#### 1—Licence to mine or mill radioactive ores (section 24 of Act)

(1) Annual fee for a licence under section 24 of the Act to mine or mill radioactive ores—an amount calculated in accordance with the following formula:

$$A = B \times \frac{CPI\ 2}{CPI\ 1}$$

Where-

A is the amount to be paid;

**B** is—

- (a) if the licence relates to a site containing one or more *in situ* leach mines in commercial production\$118000;
- (b) if the licence relates to a site containing one or more mines (other than *in situ* leach mines) or mills in commercial production\$288000;
- if the licence relates to a site containing one or more non-commercial mines or mills used for the purpose of exploration or developmental testing of a process—\$300;

**CPI 2** is the CPI for the March quarter last occurring before the date on which the fee being calculated is payable;

CPI 1 is the CPI for the March 2001 quarter.

(2) In this clause—

**CPI** means the Consumer Price Index (All groups index for Adelaide).

#### 2—Licence to use or handle radioactive substances (section 28 of Act)

(1) For issue of a licence under section 28 of the Act to use or handle radioactive substances—

(a) application fee \$56.00(b) licence fee \$56.00

- (2) No additional licence fee or application fee is payable by a person who applies for a temporary licence and a permanent licence at the same time where the subject matter of both applications is the same.
- (3) For renewal of a licence issued under section 28 of the Act

## 3—Registration of premises in which unsealed radioactive substances are handled or kept (section 29 of Act)

are ha	re handled or kept (section 29 of Act)			
(1)	For registration under section 29 of the Act of premises in which unsealed radioactive substances are handled or kept—			
	(a)	application fee	\$56.00	
	(b)	registration fee—		
		(i) for 1 year	\$96.50	
		(ii) for 3 years	\$290.00	
(2)	For rene of the A	ewal of registration of premises registered under section 29 ct—		
	(a)	for 1 year	\$96.50	
	(b)	for 3 years	\$290.00	
4—R	egistratio	n of a sealed radioactive source (section 30 of Act)		
(1)	For regis	stration under section 30 of the Act of a sealed radioactive		
	(a)	application fee—		
		(i) for the first sealed radioactive source registered by the registered owner	\$56.00	
		(ii) for each subsequent sealed radioactive source registered by the registered owner	\$20.60	
	(b)	registration fee—		
		(i) for 1 year	\$20.60	
		(ii) for 3 years	\$61.50	
(2)		wal of registration of a sealed radioactive source registered ction 30 of the Act—		
	(a)	for 1 year	\$20.60	
	(b)	for 3 years	\$61.50	
5—Li	cence to o	operate radiation apparatus (section 31 of Act)		
(1)	For issue apparatu	e of a licence under section 31 of the Act to operate radiation us—		
	(a)	application fee	\$56.00	
	(b)	licence fee	\$56.00	
(2)	who app	tional licence fee or application fee is payable by a person blies for a temporary licence and a permanent licence at the ne where the subject matter of both applications is the same.		
(3)	For rene	wal of a licence issued under section 31 of the Act	\$56.00	

#### 6—Registration of radiation apparatus (section 32 of Act)

(1) For registration of radiation apparatus under section 32 of the Act—

(a)	application fee	\$56.00
(u)	application icc	Ψ50.00

(b) registration fee—

(i)	for 1 year	\$96.50

(ii) for 3 years \$290.00

(2) For renewal of registration of radiation apparatus registered under section 32 of the Act—

(b) for 3 years \$290.00

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 63 of 2005

EC05/0018CS

## **Crown Lands Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Crown Lands Act 1929

## **Contents**

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions
- 4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Crown Lands Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 2—Fees

#### Part 1—Application fees

1	Application	for consent—

	(a)	to transfer, assign, mortgage, encumber or sublet a lease, agreement or land grant (or part of a lease)	\$289.00
	(b)	to transfer, assign or sublet a licence where the licence is held inseparable with other Crown leasehold land being transferred	\$143.00
	(c)	to transfer, assign or sublet a licence in any other case	\$289.00
2	Applica	tion to surrender a lease for other tenure	\$306.00
3	Application to surrender a perpetual lease and purchase fee simple \$27		\$276.00
4	Application to surrender absolutely a miscellaneous lease endorsed "non-acceptable" and for the issue of a new miscellaneous lease to a nominated party		\$289.00
5	Applica	tion to convert a licence to other tenure	\$307.00
6		tion for a duplicate or amended consent to transfer, assign, e, encumber or sublet a lease, agreement or land grant	\$20.70

\$289.00

\$115.00

\$79.00

7 The cost of publishing a notice in the Gazette where required under section 222 of the Act is payable in addition to the fees in this Part.

#### Part 2—Document fees

0		
8	Hor	nrenaring
O	1 01	preparing—

(a)	a land grant	\$194.00
(b)	a lease or agreement	\$381.00
(c)	a surrender of a lease or agreement	\$228.00
(d)	a surrender of part of a lease or agreement	\$381.00
(e)	a certificate under section 66A or 66B of the Act	\$194.00
(f)	a certificate where a lease or agreement is altered, renewed or revived	\$194.00
(g)	a determination of a lease or agreement on completion of purchase	\$228.00
(h)	a resumption of a lease or agreement	\$228.00
(i)	a resumption of part of a lease or agreement	\$381.00
(j)	a request by the Minister to alter or cancel a land grant or certificate of title on behalf of another party	\$194.00
(k)	a grant of easement or an extinguishment of a grant of easement	\$194.00
(1)	a mortgage or discharge of mortgage	\$194.00
	ecting by registration an error in the name or other particulars by or on behalf of a lessee, purchaser or other party	\$194.00

#### Part 3—Miscellaneous fees

9

10 For processing a transaction (other than a transaction in respect of which an application fee has been paid) under the Act at the request of any person for the benefit of that person or some other person nominated by that person

Note—Document fees are payable in addition to the fee for processing a transaction.

11 For production in the Lands Titles Office of land grants, certificates of title, leases and agreements held as security irrespective of the number of documents involved in the one transaction

12 For preparing or checking definitions for proclamations or notices under the Act—

(a) where the time spent in preparing or checking definitions exceeds two and a half hours (per hour)

(b) minimum fee \$199.00

#### Note-

- 1 Lands Titles Office fees and stamp duty are not included in the fees in this Schedule but will, in appropriate circumstances, be payable.
- This Schedule of fees also applies in relation to the *Irrigation (Land Tenure) Act 1930*. The *Irrigation (Land Tenure) Act 1930* is, under section 3 of that Act, incorporated with the *Crown Lands Act 1929*.

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 64 of 2005

ECO5/0016cs

# National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) Variation Regulations 2005

under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) Regulations 2001

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

5 Substitution of Schedule 9

Schedule 9—Royalty

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Wildlife) Regulations 2001

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	On application for a take permit under section 53(1)(d)		\$37.50
2	On application for the following permits under section 58, section 60C or section 60J of the Act:		
	Permits	Fee for a period of 1, 3 or 5 years (a period of less than 1 year but more than 6 months will be taken to be 1 year) ending on 30 June	Fee for a period of 6 months or less ending 30 June
	Keep and sell permits under section 58		
	Class 1	\$51.50 per year	\$28.25
	Class 1A	Nil	Nil
	Class 2 (Schedule 6 animals only)	\$779.00 per year	\$429.00
	Class 2 (Schedule 6 and specialist animals)	\$1 115.00 per year	\$611.00
	Class 3	\$90.00 per year	\$49.25
	Class 3A	Nil	Nil
	Class 7	\$1 540.00 per year	\$855.00
	Class 8	\$770.00 per year	\$427.00
	Class 10	Nil	Nil
	Class 11	\$26.50 per year	\$14.40
	Conversion of keep and sell permits		
	conversion from class 1 to class 3	\$33.50	\$18.20
	conversion from class 2 (Schedule 6 animals only) to class 2 (Schedule 6 and specialist animals)	\$335.00	\$183.00
	Farming permits under section 60C		
	Class 12 (Emus)	\$329.00	\$180.00
	plus, for each additional property to which permit applies	\$133.00	\$72.50
	Harvesting permits under section 60J		
	Class 13 (Kangaroos)	\$386.00 per year	\$212.00
	Class 14 (Kangaroos)	\$769.00 per year	\$423.00
3	On application for an additional record or return book under regulation 9A(2)		\$8.30
4	On application for approval of premises under regulation 10 or 11 \$		\$153.00
5	Additional fee payable on application for a permit if the permit is to be issued in the form of a plastic card		\$7.60

#### 5—Substitution of Schedule 9

Schedule 9—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 9—Royalty

1 An animal taken in accordance with a notice under section 52 of the Act or pursuant to a permit granted under section 53(1)(a), (b) or (d) of the Act, being—

	(a)	an animal of an endangered species	\$231.00
	(b)	an animal of a vulnerable species	\$115.00
	(c)	an animal of a rare species	\$57.50
	(d)	an animal of any other species of protected animal	\$28.75
2	_	roo taken for personal use pursuant to a permit granted under 53(1)(c) of the Act	\$1.20
3	An anim Act	al taken pursuant to a permit granted under section 60J of the	\$1.20

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 65 of 2005

EC05/0016CS

# National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) Variation Regulations 2005

under the National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) Regulations 1996

4 Variation of Schedule—Fees

2 Fees

### Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of National Parks and Wildlife (Hunting) Regulations 1996

#### 4—Variation of Schedule—Fees

Schedule, clause 2—delete clause 2 and substitute:

#### 2—Fees

1	Basic hunting permit	\$17.50
2	Basic hunting permit (concession cardholder and junior concession rate)	\$8.85
3	Hunting permit with open season endorsement for quail only	\$49.50
4	Hunting permit with open season endorsement for quail only (concession cardholder and junior concession rate)	\$24.70

5	Hunting permit with open season endorsement (duck or quail)	\$49.50
6	Hunting permit with open season endorsement (duck or quail) (concession cardholder and junior concession rate)	\$25.50
7	Hunting permit (subjunior concession rate)	\$5.65
8	Transfer to endorsed permit	\$32.25
9	Transfer to endorsed permit (concession cardholder and junior concession rate)	\$16.10
10	Permit to take galahs or corellas other than by shooting	\$60.75

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 66 of 2005

EC05/0016CS

# **Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Act 1978

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Regulations 1993

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Regulations 1993

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

#### 1—Admission Charges

The Conservatory (during usual opening hours)—

(a) for each adult

\$4.30

(b)	for each child or concession holder	\$2.30
(c)	for each family	\$10.00
( )	Tree Advisory Services	\$10.00
For the	For the following services:	
(a)	tree inspection (including travelling time and time spent researching and writing report)—	
	(i) for the first hour or part of an hour	\$116.00
	(ii) for each subsequent 30 minutes or part of 30 minutes	\$59.00
(b)	expert advice or court appearance as expert witness (including travelling time), for each hour or part of an hour	\$116.00
3—Services-	—Plant Science Advisory Services	
For acti	ing as consultant or court appearance as expert witness:	
(a)	where the service is provided by an officer classified at a level of or equivalent to Professional Service Officer 4 or below, for each hour or part of an hour	\$126.00
(b)	where the service is provided by an officer classified at a level of or equivalent to Professional Services Officer 5 or above, for each hour or part of an hour	\$168.00
4—Services	—Identification of plant specimens etc	
(1) For identification of plant specimens and other plant material for a Commonwealth Agency or Instrumentality:		
(a)	per specimen, for a signed written identification—	
	(i) for the first 15 minutes or part of 15 minutes	\$69.50
	(ii) for each subsequent 30 minutes or part of 30 minutes	\$53.50
(b)	per specimen, for an oral or unsigned identification—	
	(i) for the first 15 minutes or part of 15 minutes	\$42.25
	(ii) for each subsequent 30 minutes or part of 30 minutes	\$53.50
(2) For ide	ntification of plant specimens by the State Herbarium:	
(a)	per specimen, for an identification provided to a person for commercial purposes	\$21.40
(b)	in any other case	No charge

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

on the recommendation of the Board of the Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on  $26\,\mathrm{May}\ 2005$ 

No 67 of 2005

ECO5/0016CS

# **Historic Shipwrecks Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Historic Shipwrecks Act 1981

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Historic Shipwrecks Regulations 1999

4 Variation of regulation 5—Fee for copy of Register

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Historic Shipwrecks Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Historic Shipwrecks Regulations 1999*

#### 4—Variation of regulation 5—Fee for copy of Register

Regulation 5—delete "\$1.15" and substitute: \$1.20

Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 68 of 2005

ECO5/0016CS

1436

#### South Australia

# Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Variation Regulations 2005

under the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act 1985

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Regulations (No. 2) 2000

- 4 Variation of regulation 1—Short title
- 5 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Regulations (No. 2) 2000

#### **4—Variation of regulation 1—Short title**

Regulation 1—delete "No. 2"

#### 5—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1 Application for licence or renewal of licence under Part 4 of the Act (Teaching and research involving animals)

2 Application for a permit under section 34 of the Act (Permits to hold rodeos)

\$60

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 69 of 2005

ECO5/0016CS

# **Heritage Regulations 2005**

under the Heritage Act 1993

#### **Contents**

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Fees

Schedule 1—Fees

Schedule 2—Revocation of Heritage Regulations 1993

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Heritage Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Fees

- (1) The fees set out in Schedule 1 are payable to the Authority.
- (2) The Authority may waive or reduce a fee if satisfied that it is appropriate to do so in a particular case.

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Certified copy of an entry in the Register or in the inventory attached to		
	the Register		

2 Application for certificate of exclusion—

(a)	in relation to land zoned "residential" under the Development	\$1 157
	Plan	

(b) in relation to any other land

5% of Valuer-General's assessment of site value

3 Application for a permit under Part 5 Division 1 of the *Heritage Act 1993* 

\$115

# Schedule 2—Revocation of *Heritage Regulations 1993*

The Heritage Regulations 1993 are revoked.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 70 of 2005

ECO5/0016CS

# **Travel Agents Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Travel Agents Act 1986

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Travel Agents Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Travel Agents Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Travel Agents Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Applica	tion fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)	\$191.00
2		fee—payable before the granting of a licence under Part 2 a 1 of the Act—	
	(a)	in the case of a natural person	\$293.00
	(b)	in the case of a body corporate	\$698.00

If the period between the grant of the licence and the next date for payment of a fee under section 12 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

3 Annual fee (section 12(2)(a) of the Act):

(a)	in the case of a natural person	\$293.00
(b)	in the case of a body corporate	\$698.00

plus for each office from which the licensee carries on business up to a maximum of 10 offices

\$119.00

If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 12 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

4 Default penalty fee (section 12(3) of the Act) \$119.00 5 Replacement fee for licence \$18.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 71 of 2005

# Trade Measurement Administration Variation Regulations 2005

under the Trade Measurement Administration Act 1993

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Trade Measurement Administration Regulations 1993

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 to 4

Schedule 1—Application and licence fees

Schedule 2—Trade measuring instruments—verification, re-verification and testing charges

Schedule 3—Verification and testing charges for reference standards of measurement and measuring instruments tested to special accuracy

Schedule 4—Charges payable where inspector keeps appointment but measuring instrument unavailable for examination or testing

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Trade Measurement Administration Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Trade Measurement Administration Regulations 1993

#### 4—Substitution of Schedules 1 to 4

Schedules 1 to 4 (inclusive)—delete the Schedules and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Application and licence fees

1	On lodging an application for a servicing licence or a public weighbridge licence (section 44 of the principal Act)—application fee		
2	Licence	fee payable under section 52(1) of the principal Act—	
	(a)	in the case of a servicing licence	\$185.00
		and for each person employed by the licensee to certify measuring instruments—an additional	\$50.50
	(b)	in the case of a public weighbridge licence—for each weighbridge	\$185.00
3	_	ing an application to the administering authority for the issue of ate servicing licence or public weighbridge licence	\$35.00
4	_	ing an application to the administering authority for the issue of cate of suitability for a weighbridge	\$78.00
5	_	ing an application to the administering authority for the issue of ate certificate of suitability for a weighbridge	\$35.00

# Schedule 2—Trade measuring instruments—verification, re-verification and testing charges

The charges set out in this Schedule are payable to the administering authority by the person who uses the relevant instrument for trade when an inspector verifies, reverifies or tests a measuring instrument pursuant to the principal Act.

#### Part 1—Masses

1	Masses u	used for trade—	
	•	each mass not exceeding 5 kg	\$4.10
	•	each mass exceeding 5 kg	\$7.20
2	Other ma	asses—	
	•	each mass not exceeding 5 kg	\$4.10
	•	each mass exceeding 5 kg but not exceeding 25 kg	\$7.20
	•	each mass exceeding 25 kg but not exceeding 100 kg	\$18.50
	•	each mass exceeding 100 kg but not exceeding 1.5 t	\$32.00
	•	each mass exceeding 1.5 t	\$49.50

Part	t 2—Meas	sures of length	
3	For each	n graduated edge tested—	
	•	each measure not exceeding 1 m	\$4.10
	•	each measure exceeding 1 m but not exceeding 3 m	\$10.30
	•	each measure exceeding 3 m but not exceeding 20 m	\$38.00
	•	each measure exceeding 20 m	\$84.50
Part	t 3—Leng	th measuring instruments	
4	Each me	easure not exceeding 12 m	\$13.40
5	Each me	easure exceeding 12 m	\$29.75
Part	t 4—Area	measuring instruments	
6	Each ins	strument	\$77.00
Part	t 5—Meas	sures of volume	
7	Each lul measure	oricating oil measure, alcoholic measure or beverage	\$3.10
8	Each dis	spensing measure or graduated measuring cylinder	\$13.40
9	Each un	-subdivided measure not previously specified—	
	•	each measure not exceeding 2 L	\$5.15
	•	each measure exceeding 2 L but not exceeding 20 L	\$10.30
	•	each measure exceeding 20 L	\$23.70
10	Each su	bdivided measure not previously specified—	
	•	each measure not exceeding 2 L	\$29.75
	•	each measure exceeding 2 L but not exceeding 20 L	\$56.50
	•	each measure exceeding 20 L	\$84.50
Part	t 6—Liqui	id measuring instruments	
11	Alcohol	ic liquor measuring instruments—	
	(a)	single product instruments with one delivery outlet—each instrument	\$5.15
	(b)	single product or multi-product instruments with more than one delivery outlet—each instrument	\$34.00
12	Liquid f	uel and oil measuring instruments—	
	(a)	driveway flow meters (each dual or multi user instrument will be taken as two or more separate measuring instruments)—	
		<ul> <li>each measuring unit designed for a flow rate not exceeding 60 L/min</li> </ul>	\$77.00
		<ul> <li>each measuring unit designed for a flow rate exceeding 60 L/min</li> </ul>	\$98.00
	(b)	measuring instruments designed to deliver blended fuels—each instrument	\$98.00
	(c)	control console or note, coin, card or other payment system interfaced with a measuring instrument—each console or system	\$39.00

	(d)	volumetric drum filling instruments—	
		• each instrument	\$90.50
		<ul> <li>when an instrument is tested with more than one product—for each additional product</li> </ul>	\$39.00
	(e)	drum filling flow meters, vehicle mounted flow meters, gantry flow meters and other flow meters—	
		• each flow meter tested at a flow rate not exceeding 1000 L/min	\$117.00
		• each flow meter tested at a flow rate exceeding 1000 L/min	\$196.00
		<ul> <li>when a flow meter is tested with more than one product—for each additional product</li> </ul>	\$39.00
	(f)	LPG driveway flow meters (each dual or multi user instrument will be taken as two or more separate measuring instruments)—each measuring unit	\$174.00
	(g)	LPG vehicle mounted flow meters—each flow meter	\$251.00
13	Milk flo	w meters—	
	•	each flow meter	\$196.00
14	Mass flo	ow meters—	
	•	each mass meter	\$196.00
	•	when a flow meter is tested with more than one product—for each additional product	\$39.00
15	Vehicle	tanks—	
	•	for each compartment tested per $1000L$ or part of $1000L$	\$19.60
	•	for each dipstick tested against the calibration chart	\$34.00
16	Other m	easuring instruments—	
	•	each instrument per 15 minutes or part of 15 minutes for the time taken to test the instrument	\$32.00
Part	7—Weig	hing instruments	
17	Class 1 i	instruments (including balances)—	
	•	each instrument	\$63.00
18	weighin	Class 3, Class 4 instruments (including automatic g instruments and unclassified instruments, but not g instruments otherwise specified)—	
	•	each instrument not exceeding 15 kg capacity	\$33.00
	•	each instrument exceeding 15 kg but not exceeding 100 kg capacity	\$56.50
	•	each instrument exceeding 100 kg but not exceeding 500 kg capacity	\$63.00
	•	each instrument exceeding 500 kg but not exceeding 1 t capacity	\$117.00
	•	each instrument exceeding 1 t but not exceeding 3 t capacity	\$209.00

19	9 Weighbridges—		
		nstrument with a minimum of 3 t but not ling 20 t capacity	\$285.00
	• each in capacit	nstrument exceeding 20 t but not exceeding 40 t	\$397.00
	<ul> <li>each in capacit</li> </ul>	nstrument exceeding 40 t but not exceeding 60 t	\$551.00
	• each in capacit	nstrument exceeding 60 t but not exceeding 100 t	\$690.00
	• each in	nstrument exceeding 100 t capacity	\$1038.00
20	Hopper weighers	s—	
	<ul> <li>each in</li> </ul>	nstrument not exceeding 10 t capacity	\$273.00
	<ul> <li>each in capacit</li> </ul>	astrument exceeding 10 t but not exceeding 200 t	\$445.00
	• each in	nstrument exceeding 200 t capacity	\$1038.00
21	Wheel load weig	thers—	
	• each in	nstrument	\$90.50
22	Additional mass weighing instrum	indicator or ticket printer interfaced with a nent—	
	• each in	ndicator or printer not exceeding 1 t capacity	\$7.20
	• each in	ndicator or printer exceeding 1 t capacity	\$49.50
23	Other weighing i	instruments not specified—	
		nstrument per 15 minutes or part of 15 minutes time taken to test the instrument	\$32.00

# Schedule 3—Verification and testing charges for reference standards of measurement and measuring instruments tested to special accuracy

The charges set out in this Schedule are payable to the administering authority by the person who requests the verification or testing.

#### Part 1—Masses

Par	t 1—Mas	ses	
1	Masses verified to the requirements of State Secondary Standards—		
	•	each mass of a denomination not exceeding 200 g	\$33.00
	•	each mass of a denomination exceeding 200 g but not exceeding 25 kg	\$63.00
2	Masses	verified to the requirements of State Tertiary Standards—	
	•	each mass of a denomination not exceeding 200 g	\$19.60
	•	each mass of a denomination exceeding 200 g but not exceeding 25 kg	\$39.00

3		verified to the requirements of Inspectors' Class 1, Inspectors' Standards—	
	•	each mass of a denomination not exceeding 200 g	\$13.40
	•	each mass of a denomination exceeding 200 g but not exceeding 25 kg	\$29.75
4	Masses Standar	verified to the requirements of Inspectors' Class 3 ds—	
	•	each mass of a denomination not exceeding 5 kg	\$7.20
	•	each mass of a denomination exceeding 5 kg but not exceeding 30 kg	\$11.30
	•	each mass of a denomination exceeding 30 kg but not exceeding 1 t	\$63.00
	•	each mass of a denomination exceeding 1 t	\$117.00
Par	t 2—Volu	imetric measures	
5	Volume Standar	etric measures verified to the requirements of State Secondary ds—	
	•	each measure with a capacity not exceeding 25 L	\$168.00
	•	each measure with a capacity exceeding 25 L but not exceeding 200 L $$	\$257.00
	•	each measure with a capacity exceeding 200 L	\$668.00
6		etric measures verified to the requirements of State Tertiary, ors' Class 1 Standards—	
	•	each measure with a capacity not exceeding 25 L	\$56.50
	•	each measure with a capacity exceeding 25 L but not exceeding 200 L $$	\$123.00
	•	each measure with a capacity exceeding $200\;L$ but not exceeding $2000\;L$	\$439.00
	•	each measure with a capacity exceeding 2000 L	\$828.00
Par	t 3—Mea	sures of length	
7		ne measures verified to the requirements of State Secondary ectors' Class 1 Standards—	
	(a)	measures not exceeding 1000 mm—each graduated edge	\$314.00
	(b)	measures exceeding 1000 mm but not exceeding 3000 mm—each graduated edge	\$452.00
8	-	ne measures verified to lesser accuracies than those required e Secondary or Inspectors' Class 1 Standards—	
	(a)	measures not exceeding 1000 mm—each graduated edge	\$98.00
	(b)	measures exceeding 1000 mm but not exceeding 3000 mm—each graduated edge	\$140.00
9		e line measures verified to the requirements of State ary or Inspectors' Class 1 Standards—	
	•	each measure not exceeding 10 m	\$152.00
	•	each measure exceeding 10 m but not exceeding 50 m	\$334.00
	•	each measure exceeding 50 m	\$508.00

10	Flexible line measures verified to lesser accuracies than those required for State Secondary or Inspectors' Class 1 Standards—	
	<ul> <li>each measure not exceeding 10 m</li> </ul>	\$77.00
	• each measure exceeding 10 m but not exceeding 50 m	\$251.00
	• each measure exceeding 50 m	\$320.00
Par	t 4—Other measures and measuring instruments	
11	Vernier Callipers—each instrument tested	\$98.00
12	Micrometers—each instrument tested	\$133.00
13	Orifice Plates—each plate tested	\$152.00
14	Weighing instruments Class 1 (including Class A balances)—each instrument	\$152.00
15	Liquid measuring instruments—	
	master flow meters—each petroleum product tested	\$774.00
	<ul> <li>LPG master flow meters—each instrument</li> </ul>	\$1191.00
16	Area templates—each template tested	\$508.00
17	Other instruments not specified—	
	• each instrument per 15 minutes or part of 15 minutes for the time taken to test the instrument	\$36.00
Par	t 5—Certificates and measurement reports	
18	On the issue of each certificate of verification or each duplicate certificate of verification	\$23.70
19	On the issue of each measurement report or each duplicate measurement report	\$15.40

# Schedule 4—Charges payable where inspector keeps appointment but measuring instrument unavailable for examination or testing

The charges set out in this Schedule are payable to the administering authority by the owner of an instrument when an inspector keeps an appointment to examine or test the instrument but the instrument is unavailable for examination or testing.

- 1 Where a test on a measuring instrument involves the use of the weighbridge testing unit—
  - for each 15 minutes or part of 15 minutes that the inspector is kept \$77.00 waiting
- 2 Where a test on a measuring instrument does not involve the use of the weighbridge testing unit—
  - for each 15 minutes or part of 15 minutes that the inspector is kept \$34.00 waiting

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 72 of 2005

\$293.00

#### South Australia

# **Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Act 1995

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Regulations 1995

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Regulations 1995

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

in any other case

#### Schedule 1—Fees

(ii)

1	Application fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act) \$1		
2	Licence fee—payable before the granting of a licence under Part 2 Division 1 of the Act—		
(a) for a natural person—			
	(i) for carrying on the business of selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$140.00	

	(b)	for	a body corporate—	
		(i)	for carrying on the business of selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$203.00
		(ii)	in any other case	\$438.00
	paymer 12 mon	nt of a nths, a nal fee	between the grant of the licence and the next date for fee under section 11 of the Act is less than or more than pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the by applying the proportion that the length of that period nonths.	
3	Annual	fee (s	section 11(2)(a) of the Act)—	
	(a)	for	a natural person—	
		(i)	for carrying on the business of selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$140.00
		(ii)	in any other case	\$293.00
	(b)	for	a body corporate—	
		(i)	for carrying on the business of selling second-hand vehicles consisting only of motorcycles	\$203.00
		(ii)	in any other case	\$438.00
	Act and nomina pro rata	d the nated by a digital digital and the national digital and the national digital and the national digital and the national and the national digital digita	between a date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as y the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a stment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying n that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
4	Default	pena	lty fee (section 11(3) of the Act)	\$119.00
5			ee for separate application to register premises ) of the Act)	\$36.00
6			Gee for permission to carry on business as a dealer at a place e registered premises of the licensee (section 14(4) of the	\$36.00
7	Application of the A		See with respect to a duty to repair a vehicle (section 24(2)	\$36.00
8	Fee for	repla	cement of licence or certificate of registration	\$18.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 73 of 2005

# Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Variation Regulations 2005

under the Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Act 1995

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Regulations 1995

4 Variation of Schedule—Fees

Part 2—Fee amounts

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Plumbers*, *Gas Fitters and Electricians Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Regulations 1995

#### 4—Variation of Schedule—Fees

Schedule, Part 2—delete the Part and substitute:

#### Part 2—Fee amounts

1 Application fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)

\$140.00

2 Licence fee—payable before the grant of a licence under Part 2 of the Act—

	(a)	for a natural person	\$248.00
	(b)	for a body corporate	\$367.00
	payment 12 month additiona	riod between the grant of the licence and the next date for of a fee under section 11 of the Act is less than or more than hs, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the al fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period 12 months.	
3	Periodic	fee for licence (section 11(2)(a) of the Act)—	
	(a)	for a natural person	\$248.00
	(b)	for a body corporate	\$367.00
	the Act a nominate a pro rata	riod between a date for payment of a fee under section 11 of and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as ed by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12	
4	Default p	penalty fee (section 11(3) of the Act)	\$119.00
5	Application fee to vary or revoke a licence condition (section 7(2)(b) of the Act)		\$83.00
6	Application fee for registration (section 15(1)(b) of the Act)		\$140.00
7	Registrat	tion fee—payable before the grant of registration under Part 3 ct	\$172.00
	for paym than 36 r the addit	riod between the grant of the registration and the next date nent of a fee under section 18 of the Act is less than or more months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of ional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that ears to 36 months.	
8	Periodic	fee for registration (section 18(2)(a) of the Act)	\$172.00
	the Act a nominate a pro rata	riod between a date for payment of a fee under section 18 of and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as ed by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 36 months, a adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by the proportion that the length of that period bears to 36	
9	Default p	penalty fee (section 18(3) of the Act)	\$45.00
10		ion fee to vary or revoke a condition of registration 14(2)(b) of the Act)	\$83.00
11	Fee for r	eplacement of licence or certificate of registration	\$18.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 74 of 2005

# **Liquor Licensing (General) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Liquor Licensing Act 1997

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Liquor Licensing (General) Regulations 1997

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Liquor Licensing (General) Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Liquor Licensing (General) Regulations 1997

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for the grant of a licence other than a limited licence		\$381.00
2	Application for the grant of a limited licence—		
	(a)	if the licence is sought for 1 function lasting 1 day or less	\$32.00
(b) if the licence is sought for more than 1 funct same day (for each function)		if the licence is sought for more than 1 function held on the same day (for each function)	\$32.00

	(c)	if the licence is sought for 1 or more functions lasting more than 1 day (for each day of each function or part of a day)	\$32.00
	the licen	r, no fee is payable for an application for a limited licence if ce is granted for a function or functions that, in the opinion of sing authority, are to be held for charitable or other hity purposes.	
3	Applicat	tion for an extended trading authorisation	\$381.00
4	Applicat	tion for removal of a licence	\$381.00
5	Applicat	tion for transfer of a licence	\$381.00
6	Applicat	ion for—	
	(a)	approval of an alteration or proposed alteration to licensed premises	\$82.50
	(b)	redefinition of licensed premises as defined in the licence	\$82.50
	(c)	designation of part of licensed premises as a dining area or reception area	\$82.50
7	Application for authorisation to sell liquor in an area adjacent to licensed premises		\$82.50
8		tion for a variation of trading hours or for the imposition, a or revocation of a condition of the licence	\$381.00
9	Application for approval of a natural person or persons as the manager or managers of the business conducted under the licence or the assumption by a person of a position of authority in the trust or corporate entity that holds the licence—		
	(a)	if the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 37 or 38 of the <i>Gaming Machines Act 1992</i>	no fee
	(b)	in any other case	\$82.50
10	Application licence	tion for conversion of a temporary licence into an ordinary	\$381.00
11	Application for consent of the licensing authority to use part of the licensed premises or area adjacent to the licensed premises for the purpose of providing entertainment		\$381.00
12	Addition issued	nal fee on an application where an identification badge is	\$14.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 75 of 2005

# **Land Agents Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Land Agents Act 1994

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Land Agents Regulations 1995

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Land Agents Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Land Agents Regulations 1995

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1	Applicat	tion fee for registration (section 7(1)(b) of the Act)	\$197.0 0
2	Registra	tion fee—payable before registration under Part 2 of the Act—	
	(a)	for a natural person	\$241.0 0
	(b)	for a body corporate	\$361.0

If the period between the grant of the registration and the next date for payment of a fee under section 9 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

3 Annual fee (section 9(2)(a) of the Act)—

(a)	for a natural person	\$241.0
		0
(b)	for a body corporate	\$361.0
		0

If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 9 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

4	Default penalty fee (section 9(3) of the Act)	\$119.0 0
5	Civil penalty for default (section 22(4) of the Act)	\$250.0 0
6	Fee for replacement of certificate of registration	\$18.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 76 of 2005

# **Conveyancers Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Conveyancers Act 1994

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Conveyancers Regulations 1995

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Conveyancers Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Conveyancers Regulations 1995

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule—Fees

1	Application fee for registration	(section 6(1)(b) of the Act)	\$197.00
---	----------------------------------	------------------------------	----------

2 Registration fee—payable before registration under Part 2 of the Act—

(a) for a natural person \$241.00(b) for a body corporate \$361.00

If the period between the grant of the registration and the next date for payment of a fee under section 8 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

_	Annual fee	( O	(2)(-)	C /1	A - 4 \
•	Anniiai tee	I CACTION X	1/11/9	I OT THE	Δ CT 1
J	Aminual Icc	i secuon o	(2na	or unc	$\Delta c i -$

(a)	for a natural person	\$241.00
(b)	for a body corporate	\$361.00

If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 8 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

4	Default penalty fee (see	tion 8(3) of the Act)	\$119.00
---	--------------------------	-----------------------	----------

5 Civil penalty for default (section 24(4) of the Act) \$250.00

6 Fee for replacement of certificate of registration \$18.50

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 77 of 2005

# **Building Work Contractors Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Building Work Contractors Act 1995

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Building Work Contractors Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Building Work Contractors Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Building Work Contractors Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

1 Application fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)

\$140.00

- 2 Licence fee—payable before the granting of a licence under Part 2 of the Act—
  - (a) for a natural person for the following kinds of building work (as described in Schedule 2 Part C)—

		(i)	any building work	\$341.00
		(ii)	light commercial/industrial and residential building work	\$341.00
		(iii)	residential building work	\$341.00
		(iv)	other specified building work	\$170.00
	(b)		a body corporate for the following kinds of building k (as described in Schedule 2 Part C)—	
		(i)	any building work	\$759.00
		(ii)	light commercial/industrial and residential building work	\$759.00
		(iii)	residential building work	\$759.00
		(iv)	other specified building work	\$384.00
	If the period between the grant of the licence and the next date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.			
3	Periodi	c fee f	or licence (section 11(2)(a) of the Act):	
	(a)		a natural person for the following kinds of building k (as described in Schedule 2 Part C)—	
		(i)	any building work	\$341.00
		(ii)	light commercial/industrial and residential building work	\$341.00
		(iii)	residential building work	\$341.00
		(iv)	other specified building work	\$170.00
	(b)		a body corporate for the following kinds of building k (as described in Schedule 2 Part C)—	
		(i)	any building work	\$759.00
		(ii)	light commercial/industrial and residential building work	\$759.00
		(iii)	residential building work	\$759.00
		(iv)	other specified building work	\$384.00
	the Act nomina a pro ra	and thated by ata adjusted at a adjusted at the properties.	between a date for payment of a fee under section 11 of the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, astment is to be made to the amount of the fee by proportion that the length of that period bears to 12	
4	Default	t penal	ty fee (section 11(3) of the Act)	\$119.00
5		Application fee to vary or revoke a licence condition (section 7(2)(b) \$108.00 of the Act)		\$108.00
6	Applica	ation fe	ee for registration (section 15(1)(b) of the Act)	\$140.00
7	Registr	ation f	ee—payable before registration under Part 3 of the Act	\$134.00

If the period between the grant of the registration and the next date
for payment of a fee under section 18 of the Act is less than or more
than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of
the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that
period bears to 12 months.

8	Periodic fee	for registration	(section 18(2)(a) of the Act)
0	remodic ree	ioi registration	(Section 10(2)(a) of the Ac

\$134.00

If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 18 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.

9	Application fee to vary or revoke a condition of registration	\$108.00
	(section 13(2)(b) of the Act)	

Application fee for approval as a building work supervisor in relation to a building work contractor's business (section 19(3)(b) of the Act)

Application fee for exemption (section 45(1) of the Act)

\$71.00

\$83.00

12 Fee for replacement of licence or certificate of registration

\$18.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 78 of 2005

\$23.80

#### South Australia

# Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Freedom of Information Act 1991

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2003

4 Substitution of Schedule 1
Schedule 1—Fees and Charges

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Variation Regulations 2005.* 

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Freedom of Information (Fees and Charges) Regulations 2003

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# **Schedule 1—Fees and Charges**

- On application for access to an agency's document (section 13(c))
- 2 (1) For dealing with an application for access to an agency's document and in respect of the giving of access to the document (section 19(1)(b) and (c))—

	(a)	in the case of a document that contains information concerning the personal affairs of the applicant—	
		(i) for up to the first two hours spent by the agency in dealing with the application and giving access	no charge
		(ii) for each subsequent 15 minutes so spent by the agency	\$8.85
	(b)	in any other case—for each 15 minutes so spent by the agency	\$8.85
(2)	followi	ion to the fees specified in subclause (1), the ng fees are payable in respect of the giving of access gency's document:	
	(a)	where access is to be given in the form of a photocopy of the document (per page)	\$0.10
	(b)	where access is to be given in the form of a written transcript of words recorded or contained in the document (per page)	\$5.30
	(c)	where access is to be given in the form of a copy of a photograph, x-ray, video tape, computer tape or computer disk	the actual cost incurred by the agency in producing the copy
	(d)	where a document is to be given to the applicant by post or delivery	the actual cost incurred by the agency in posting or delivering the document
3		lication for review by an agency of a determination y the agency under Part 3 of the Act (section 29(2)(b))	\$23.80

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 79 of 2005

MAS05/003CS

# **Firearms Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Firearms Act 1977

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Firearms Regulations 1993

- 4 Variation of regulations 19, 19A, 25, 45 and 50
- 5 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Firearms Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Firearms Regulations 1993

#### **4**—Variation of regulations 19, 19A, 25, 45 and 50

Regulations 19, 19A, 25, 45 and 50—delete "member of the police force" wherever occurring and substitute in each case:

police officer

#### 5—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	Application for grant or renewal of firearms licence	
	Term of the licence is 1 year	\$55
	Term of the licence is 3 years	\$140
	Term of the licence is 5 years	\$222
	If the licence authorises the possession and use of a prescribed firearm	\$41
2	Application for grant or renewal of dealer's licence authorising dealing in firearms or firearms and ammunition	
	Term of the licence is 1 year	\$296
	Term of the licence is 3 years	\$859
	Term of the licence is 5 years	\$1425
3	Application for grant or renewal of dealer's licence that only authorises dealing in ammunition	
	Term of the licence is 1 year	\$85
	Term of the licence is 3 years	\$229
	Term of the licence is 5 years	\$375
4	Application for variation of licence	\$33
5	Application for registration of firearm in the name of the owner of the firearm or for issue of duplicate certificate of registration	\$21
6	Application for a licence to replace licence lost, stolen or destroyed	\$33
7	Application for a permit to acquire ammunition	\$21
8	Fee to witness the transfer of a firearm under Part 3 Division 2A of the Act	\$12
	Note—If a firearm is registered in the name of the owner immediately after the transfer of the firearm is witnessed by a police officer, the witnessing fee is not payable.	
a	Administrative fee on late renewal of a licence	\$23

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26~May~2005

No 80 of 2005

T&F05/033CS

# **Adoption Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Adoption Act 1988

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Adoption Regulations 2004

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Adoption Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Adoption Regulations 2004

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

#### Part 1—Fees in respect of adoption through Prospective Adoptive Parents Register other than overseas subregister

1 Expression of interest under regulation 7(1)—

(a) standard fee \$390

(b) reduced fee \$251

2	Application for registration as a prospective adoptive parent—		
	(a) standard fee	\$515	
	(b) reduced fee	\$283	
3	Preparation of an assessment report by the Chief Execution 19—	ive	
	(a) standard fee	\$500	
	(b) reduced fee	\$255	
4	On selection of an applicant for an adoption order under regulation 19	\$250	
Part	2—Fees in respect of adoption through overseas subreg	gister	
5	Expression of interest under regulation 7(1)—		
	(a) standard fee	\$600	
	(b) reduced fee	\$450	
6	Application for registration as a prospective adoptive parand preparation of an assessment report by the Chief Executive under regulation 9—	rent	
	(a) standard fee	\$3 000	
	(b) reduced fee	\$2 500	
	(The fee includes participation in certain workshops and seminars.)		
7	On preparation of file for lodging with relevant authority overseas country	y of \$2 000	
8	On selection of an applicant for an adoption order for a particular child under regulation 19—		
	(a) for first child to be placed for adoption	\$2 600	
	<ul><li>(b) for second or subsequent child to be placed for adoption</li></ul>	\$2 500	
Part	3—Other fees		
9	On lodgement of an application for transfer of registration under regulation 11	on \$210	
10	On lodgement of an application for conversion of registration under regulation 12		
11	For preparation of an assessment report by the Chief \$34 Executive following an application for conversion of registration under regulation 12		
12	For all functions associated with consent to adoption and, where necessary, the preparation of a report under section 22(1) of the Act prior to an application to the Court for an order for adoption of a child by a person other than a person selected as an applicant for an adoption order from the register—		
	(a) if the application for an adoption order is to rel to only 1 child	late \$279	

(b) if the application for an adoption order is to relate to more than 1 child \$279 for the first child and \$74 for each additional child named in the application

For obtaining information under section 27 or 27A of the

\$50

The reduced fee is payable if the person has previously been the subject of an assessment report under regulation 9 or a report, prepared by an agency outside this State, that, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, corresponds to an assessment report under regulation 9.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 81 of 2005

DFCCS/05/006

## **Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Housing Improvement Act 1940

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements) Regulations 2001

4 Variation of regulation 6—Fee for application

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements) Variation Regulations 2005.* 

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Housing Improvement (Section 60 statements) Regulations 2001

## 4—Variation of regulation 6—Fee for application

Regulation 6—delete "\$23.60" and substitute:

\$24.35

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

on the recommendation of the South Australian Housing Trust and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 82 of 2005

DFCCS/05/006

## **Authorised Betting Operations Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Authorised Betting Operations Act 2000

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Authorised Betting Operations Regulations 2001

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Authorised Betting Operations Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Authorised Betting Operations Regulations 2001

## 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule—Fees

1	Application for grant of bookmaker's licence	\$174.00
2	Application for renewal of bookmaker's licence	\$115.00
3	Application for grant or renewal of agent's licence	\$34.00
4	Application for grant or renewal of betting shop licence	\$115.00
5	Application for variation of a condition of a licence under Part 3	\$57.50

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 83 of 2005

GAMB05/0156

## **Gaming Machines Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Gaming Machines Act 1992

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Gaming Machines Regulations 2005

4 Substitution of Schedule 2
Schedule 2—Fees and charges

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Gaming Machines Variation Regulations 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Gaming Machines Regulations 2005

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees and charges

1	Application for a gaming machine licence	\$381.00
2	Application for a gaming machine dealer's licence	\$381.00
3	Application for the gaming machine monitor licence	\$381.00
4	Application for consent to the transfer of a gaming machine licence	\$381.00

5 Application for approval of person as a gaming machine manager—

	(a)	if the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 37 or 38 of the Act	No fee
	(b)	if an approval referred to in paragraph (a) is not in force but the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 71 of the <i>Liquor Licensing Act 1997</i>	\$7.70
	(c)	in any other case	\$89.50
6	Applicate employe	tion for approval of person as a gaming machine ee—	
	(a)	if the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 37 or 38 of the Act	No fee
	(b)	if an approval referred to in paragraph (a) is not in force but the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 71 of the <i>Liquor Licensing Act 1997</i>	\$7.70
	(c)	in any other case	\$89.50
7		tion for approval of person to assume position of y in body corporate—	
	(a)	if the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 37 or 38 of the Act	No fee
	(b)	if an approval referred to in paragraph (a) is not in force but the person is the subject of an approval of the Commissioner in force under section 71 of the <i>Liquor Licensing Act 1997</i>	\$7.70
	(c)	in any other case	\$89.50
8	Application holder	tion for approval of an employee of monitor licence	\$89.50
9	Applicat agent	tion for approval of subcontractor of approved service	\$381.00
10	Applicat agent	tion for approval of employee of approved service	\$89.50
11	Applicate subconti	tion for approval of an employee of an approved ractor	\$89.50
12	Applica	tion for approval of a gaming machine	\$381.00
13	Application for approval of a game		\$381.00
14	Application for approval of gaming tokens		\$381.00
15	Application for approval to manufacture gaming tokens		\$381.00
16	Applica	Application for approval under section 68(2) of the Act	
17	to sell or	tion by holder of gaming machine licence for approval r dispose of any number of gaming machines or ed gaming machine components	\$82.50
18		tion to vary licence conditions (other than condition to number of gaming machines on licensed premises)	\$82.50
19		tion to vary licence condition relating to number of machines on licensed premises	No fee

26	May	2005]	

20	Fee for issue of identification badge	\$13.90
21	Rate for investigation of natural person—for each person	\$44.75

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 84 of 2005

GAMB05/0156

## **Lottery and Gaming Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Lottery and Gaming Act 1936

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Lottery and Gaming Regulations 1993

4 Substitution of Schedule 10

Schedule 10—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Lottery and Gaming Variation Regulations 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Lottery and Gaming Regulations 1993

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 10

Schedule 10—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 10—Fees

1	Applica	tion for lottery licence	\$6.00
2		Application for trade promotion lottery licence—fee calculated on the basis of the total value of all prizes in the lottery as follows:	
	(a)	for a total value of not more than \$500	no fee
	(b)	for a total value of more than \$500 but not more than $$10\ 000$	\$113.00
	(c)	for a total value of more than \$10 000 but not more than $$50\ 000$	\$412.00

	(d)	for a total value of more than \$50 000 but not more than $$100\ 000$	\$720.00	
	(e)	for a total value of more than \$100 000 but not more than \$200 000 $$	\$1 235.00	
	(f)	for a total value of more than \$200 000	\$2 264.00	
	among a	r, if the terms of the lottery provide for allocation of prizes number of States or Territories of the Commonwealth, s to be calculated on the basis of the total value of only izes that are capable of being awarded to winners in this		
3		ion by holder of trade promotion lottery licence to for variation of terms of lottery to which licence applies	\$36.50	
4	Applicat	tion for grant of supplier's licence	\$1 227.00	
5	Applicat	cion for renewal of supplier's licence	\$120.00	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 85 of 2005

GAMB05/0156

## **State Records Variation Regulations 2005**

under the State Records Act 1997

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of State Records Regulations 1998

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *State Records Variation Regulations 2005*.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of State Records Regulations 1998

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

**1—Minimum fee** \$6.25 (for a service which is paid in advance or not paid immediately)

#### 2—Copies of documents

(1) Photographs (per print)

(a) black and white

5" x 3.5" \$10.60

7" x 5" \$11.90

		10" x 8"	\$11.90
		16" x 12"	\$14.30
		20" x 16"	\$19.30
	(b)	sepia toning	
		5" x 3.5"	\$14.20
		7" x 5"	\$14.80
		10" x 8"	\$16.30
		16" x 12"	\$19.70
		20" x 16"	\$27.25
	(c)	colour	
		5" x 3.5"	\$4.50
		7" x 5"	\$7.45
		10" x 8"	\$13.30
		14" x 11"	\$20.90
		20" x 16"	\$31.25
(2)	Negative	es (per negative)	
	(a)	black and white (image only)	
		35 mm	\$6.25
		6 cm x 7 cm (120 neg)	\$14.80
		10 cm x 13 cm	\$27.25
	(b)	colour (image only)	
		35 mm	\$6.25
	(c)	black and white (text only)	
		35 mm	\$5.10
(3)	Slides (p	per slide)	
	duplicat	e of slide (black and white or colour)	\$5.10
(4)	Microfo	rms	
	(a)	35 mm microfilm - 1 reel of positive microfilm (30 metres) if master negative is available	\$54.00
	(b)	35 mm microfilm - 1 reel of positive microfilm (30 metres) if master negative is not available	\$506.00
	(c)	16 mm microfilm - 1 reel of positive microfilm (30 metres) if master negative is available	\$47.75
	(d)	16 mm microfilm - 1 reel of positive microfilm (30 metres) if master negative is not available	\$315.00
	(e)	16 mm microfiche duplicate if master negative is available	\$1.35 per sheet
	(f)	16 mm microfiche duplicate if master negative is not available	\$34.00 per sheet
(5)	Photoco	pies (per page)	
	(a)	A4 (297 mm x 210 mm)	\$0.50

	THE SO	OUTH AUSTRAL	IAN GOVERNMENT GAZETTE	[26 May 2005
	(b)	A3 (420 mm x 29	7 mm)	\$1.15
	(c)	A2 (594 mm x 42)	,	\$5.30
	(d)	A1 (841 mm x 59	,	\$6.65
	(e)	A0 (1189 mm x 8	,	\$9.35
	(f)	B2 (707 mm x 500		\$5.30
	(g)	B1 (1000 mm x 70	07 mm)	\$6.40
(6)	Request	s by correspondence	e	
	copies o	f records requested and accurate archiv	by correspondence where e reference numbers are	\$6.25°
			addition to cost of copies, and postage (if any).	
	Research arch by a			
	(a)	per 30 minutes or	part thereof (minimum fee)	\$22.60**
	(b)	per hour (includes photocopies at pre	5 photocopies - additional escribed rates)	\$44.00**
		**		
		(a)	Payment of quoted figure is required in advance.	
		(b)	No fee is incurred by persons carrying out their own research or for advice or guidance to users of, or visitors to, the reading room.	
4—F	Postage a	nd handling		
	(a)	interstate and intra	astate	\$1.15
	(b)	international		\$2.50
		of records arposes only)		
	retrieval	or refiling (include	s scheduled courier)	\$8.40 per item
	C <b>onsultar</b> agency pu	ncy arposes only)		

## 4-Postage and handli

(a)	interstate and intrastate	\$1.15
(b)	international	\$2.50

## 5—Retrieval of records

## 6—Consultancy

(a)	preparation of disposal schedules	from \$62.00 per hour
(b)	culling and sentencing of records	from \$52.50 per hour
(c)	other advisory or processing services	from \$31.25 per hour

## Note—

1482

As required by section 10AA(2) of the Subordinate Legislation Act 1978, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 86 of 2005

MAS05/004CS

## **Dangerous Substances Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Dangerous Substances Act 1979

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Dangerous Substances Regulations 2002

- 4 Variation of regulation 10—Application of Commonwealth regulations
- 5 Variation of Schedule 2—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Dangerous Substances Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Dangerous Substances Regulations 2002

## 4—Variation of regulation 10—Application of Commonwealth regulations

Regulation 10(3)(w), table—delete the table and substitute:

Column 1 Item	Column 2 Provision for which fee prescribed	Column 3 Fee
1	Regulation 4.24(c)	\$177.00
2	Regulation 18.10(2)(e)	\$35.25
3	Regulation 18.12(2)(e)	\$35.25
4	Regulation 18.19(3)	\$94.00 per vehicle
5	Regulation 18.22(3)	\$94.00 per vehicle

\$131.00

\$6 094.00

## 5—Variation of Schedule 2—Fees

Schedule 2, table—delete the table and substitute:

(i)

- 1 Subject to clause 2, the following fees are payable to the Director:
  - (1) Annual fee for a licence or renewal of a licence to keep—

(a)	liquefied petroleum gas (Class 2)*—For each licensed
	premises in which the aggregate capacity of tanks,
	packaging and cylinders—

	exceed 20 kilolitres	
(ii)	exceeds 20 kilolitres (water capacity) but does not exceed 100 kilolitres	\$372.00
(iii)	exceeds 100 kilolitres (water capacity)	\$600.00

exceeds 560 litres (water capacity) but does not

\* For the purposes of calculating fees, the water capacity of a 45 kilogram liquefied petroleum gas cylinder must be taken to be 109 litres.

(b) flammable liquids (Class 3)—For each licensed premises in which the aggregate capacity of tanks, packaging and cylinders—

(i)	exceeds 120 litres but does not exceed 1 kilolitre	\$69.50
(ii)	exceeds 1 kilolitre but does not exceed 25 kilolitres	\$131.00
(iii)	exceeds 25 kilolitres but does not exceed 250 kilolitres	\$325.00
(iv)	exceeds 250 kilolitres but does not exceed 2 500 kilolitres	\$1 102.00
(v)	exceeds 2 500 kilolitres but does not exceed	\$3 705.00

(c) Class 6 or 8 substances—For each licensed premises, where the sum of the maximum volume in litres and mass in kilograms of Class 6 or 8 substances that may be kept in the premises pursuant to the licence—

10 000 kilolitres

(vi)

(2) Fee for permit(3) Fee for(4) Fee for

exceeds 10 000 kilolitres

	ss in kilograms of Class 6 or 8 substances that may kept in the premises pursuant to the licence—		
(i)	does not exceed 1 000	\$69.50	
(ii)	exceeds 1 000 but does not exceed 25 000	\$131.00	
(iii)	exceeds 25 000 but does not exceed 250 000	\$325.00	
(iv)	exceeds 250 000 but does not exceed 2 500 000	\$1 102.00	
(v)	exceeds 2 500 000	\$3 705.00	
a pern	\$75.50		
the iss	sue of a compliance plate to the holder of a permit	\$7.55	
the issue of a blank certificate of compliance to the of a permit			

holder of a permit

(5) In respect of an application lodged by or on behalf of a Minister no fee of the Crown

- 2 (1) If a licence is to be issued or renewed for a term of more than one year, the fee prescribed by clause 1 must be multiplied by the number of whole years in the term of the licence.
  - (2) If a licence is to be issued or renewed for a term of less than 1 year, the fee is a proportion of the fee prescribed by clause 1, being the proportion that the number of whole months in the term of the licence bears to 12.

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 87 of 2005

MIR05/004

## **Employment Agents Registration Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Employment Agents Registration Act 1993

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Employment Agents Registration Regulations 1995

4 Variation of Schedule 4—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Employment Agents Registration Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Employment Agents Registration Regulations 1995

#### **4—Variation of Schedule 4—Fees**

Schedule 4, table—delete the table and substitute:

1	Application for a licence under section 7	\$10.30
2	Application for the renewal of a licence under section 9	\$10.30
3	Late application fee under section 9	\$10.30

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 88 of 2005

MIR05/004

## **Explosives Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Explosives Act 1936

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Explosives Regulations 1996

- 4 Variation of regulation 14.12
- 5 Variation of Schedule V—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Explosives Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Explosives Regulations 1996

## 4—Variation of regulation 14.12

Regulation 14.12—delete "Except where regulation 14.34 of this Part applies, all" and substitute:

All

#### 5—Variation of Schedule V—Fees

Schedule V, table—delete the table and substitute:

## 1—Classification of explosives (Part 2)

Fee for—

(a) application for classification of explosive \$122.00

(b) amendment of classification of explosive

\$70.00

2—Licensin	g of factories (Part 3)		
Licence	fee for a factory to manufacture explosives	\$224.00	
3—Licence	to mix and use Ammonium Nitrate mixture (Part 4)		
Licence Code 1.	to mix and use Ammonium Nitrate mixture of Classification 1D—		
(a)	for one place only	\$41.75	
(b)	for more than one place	\$105.00	
4—Licence	to carry explosives (Part 7)		
Licence	fee for a carrier to carry—		
(a)	up to 60 kg of explosives	\$26.25	
(b)	up to 265 kg of explosives	\$41.75	
(c)	up to 1 000 kg of explosives	\$45.50	
(d)	over 1 000 kg of explosives	\$132.00	
5—Licence	to store on premises (Part 10)		
	fee for storing explosives on premises in which the quantity sives to be stored—		
(a)	does not exceed 30 kg	\$41.75	
(b)	exceeds 30 kg but does not exceed 60 kg	\$75.50	
6—Licensing of magazines (Part 11)			
(1) Licence to be sto	fee for portable magazine in which the quantity of explosive ored—		
(a)	does not exceed 60 kg	\$91.50	
(b)	exceeds 60 kg but does not exceed 1 000 kg	\$264.00	
(c)	exceeds 1 000 kg	\$458.00	
	fee for any other magazine in which the quantity of ve to be stored—		
(a)	does not exceed 1 000 kg	\$132.00	
(b)	exceeds 1 000 kg	\$229.00	
7—Licence	to import explosives (Part 13)		
Licence	fee to import explosives—		
(a)	of classification code 1.2G, 1.3G, 1.4G or 1.4S	\$45.50	
(b)	of another classification code	\$75.50	
8—Inspection or testing of explosives			
Fee for-	_		
(a)	examination of fuse	\$27.50	
(b)	examination of detonator	\$27.50	
(c)	physical examination of firework or firework composition	\$27.50	
(d)	liquefaction test	\$27.50	
(e)	exudation test	\$27.50	
(f)	heat test	\$27.50	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 89 of 2005

MIR05/004

## **Explosives (Fireworks) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Explosives Act 1936

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Explosives (Fireworks) Regulations 2001

4 Variation of Schedule 3—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Explosives (Fireworks) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Explosives (Fireworks) Regulations 2001

## 4—Variation of Schedule 3—Fees

Schedule 3, table—delete the table and substitute:

1	Pyrotechnician's licence or renewal of pyrotechnician's licence	\$167.00
2	Pyrotechnic displays business licence or renewal of pyrotechnic displays business licence	\$111.00
3	Pyrotechnic sales business licence or renewal of pyrotechnic sales business licence	\$111.00
4	Exempt display permit	\$22.10

## Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 90 of 2005

MIR05/004

## Industrial and Employee Relations (Representation) (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Fair Work Act 1994

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Industrial and Employee Relations (Representation) Regulations 1994

4 Substitution of Schedule 4
Schedule 4—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Industrial and Employee Relations (Representation)* (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Industrial and Employee Relations (Representation) Regulations 1994

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 4—Fees

- 1 On lodging an application for registration as a registered agent—for each year of registration \$165
- 2 Renewal fee (during the continuation of registration)—for each year of registration \$165

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 91 of 2005

MIR004/05CS

## Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Variation Regulations 2005

under the Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1986

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Regulations 1995

4 Variation of Schedule 8—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Occupational Health*, *Safety and Welfare Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Regulations 1995

## 4—Variation of Schedule 8—Fees

Schedule 8, table—delete the table and substitute:

1 Inspection fees under Part 3 (regulation 3.1.6)—

(a) inspection fee payable when an inspector carries \$146.00 per hour out an inspection under regulation 3.2.6

(b) inspection fee payable when an inspector carries \$146.00 per hour out an inspection under regulation 3.2.24

	(c)	inspection fee payable when an inspector carries out an inspection of plant in connection with an application to register, or to renew the registration of, an item of plant (regulation 3.4.3 and 3.4.4)	\$146.00 per hour
2	Part 3, o	ion fee for the registration of a plant design under r for the re-registration of a plant design on 3.4.2)—	
	(a)	general application fee	\$84.00
	PLUS		
	(b)	if the Director is to undertake the verification of the plant design under an agreement with the applicant—a fee determined by the Director.	
3	structure	ion fee for the registration of an amusement design under Part 3A, or for the re-registration of ement structure design (regulation 3A.5.2)	\$84.00
4		ion fee for the registration of an item of plant art 3 (regulation 3.4.3)	\$48.00
5	Annual f	\$48.00	
6	Applicat amusem	\$48.00	
7	Applicat 4 Divisio		
	(a)	in the case of a licence limited to the removal of asbestos-cement (fibro) products or other non- friable asbestos containing material	\$995.00
	(b)	in any other case	\$6 538.00
8		ion fee for a blaster's licence under Part 5 Division 5.13 (for 3 years)	\$50.50
9	Renewal of a blaster's licence under Part 5 Division 5.12 or 5.13 (for 3 years)		
10	Application fee for a certificate of competency under Part 6 \$84.0 Division 6.4		
11	Application fee for registration as an assessor under Part 6 \$279.00 Division 6.4		
12	Annual fee for registration as an assessor under Part 6 \$279.0 Division 6.4		
13		able for copy of a certificate or other document ese regulations	\$53.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 92 of 2005

MIR05/004

# Fees Regulation (Registered Agents—Industrial and Employee Relations Act) (Review of Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Fees Regulation Act 1927

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Registered Agents—Industrial and Employee Relations Act) Regulations 2003

4 Variation of Schedule

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Fees Regulation (Registered Agents—Industrial and Employee Relations Act) (Review of Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.* 

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into effect in accordance with section 5 of the *Fees Regulation Act* 1927.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Registered Agents—Industrial and Employee Relations Act) Regulations 2003

#### 4—Variation of Schedule

Schedule—delete "\$160" and substitute:

\$165

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 93 of 2005

MIR004/05CS

## **Sewerage Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Sewerage Act 1929

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Sewerage Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of regulation 36 36 Other charges

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Sewerage Variation Regulations 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Sewerage Regulations 1996

## 4—Substitution of regulation 36

Regulation 36—delete the regulation and substitute:

## **36—Other charges**

(1) Subject to these regulations, the following charges are payable to the Corporation:

(a) Standard capital contribution \$4 925.00

(b) Installation charge (including connection charge)

Nominal diameter:

100 mm \$3 051.00
 150 mm or less (but greater than 100 mm) \$4 492.00

	•	greater than 150 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(c)	Disconn	nection charge	
	No	minal diameter:	
	•	150 mm or less	\$671.00
	•	greater than 150 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(d)	Connect	tion charge	
	No	minal diameter:	
	•	100 mm	\$115.00
	•	150 mm or less (but greater than 100 mm)	\$434.00
	•	greater than 150 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(e)		to provide certificate of rates or charges for the purposes of settlement of land ions	\$8.40
(f)	_	for statement of existence or non-existence of nts or other encumbrances in favour of the tion	\$6.65
(g)	applicat	for Corporation to consider and determine ion for authorisation to discharge trade waste undertaking	
	•	if the application is assessed as complex by the Corporation having regard to the number and complexity of activities associated with the discharge, the scale of the discharge, risks associated with the discharge, the need for testing samples and other relevant factors	\$439.00
	•	in any other case	\$238.00
(h)		to check compliance with conditions of ation to discharge trade waste into king	
	•	if the compliance check is assessed as complex by the Corporation having regard to the number and complexity of activities associated with the discharge, the scale of the discharge, risks associated with the discharge, the need for testing samples and other relevant factors	\$107.00
	•	in any other case	\$87.50
(i)	a dishon	for additional administrative cost in relation to noured cheque used to pay a charge or other under these regulations	\$12.10

(j)	Charge for additional administrative cost in relation to	\$6.70
	a charge or other amount due under these regulations but not paid by the date for payment in the notice served on the person liable	
(k)	Charge for visit in relation to the non-payment of a charge or other amount to the land in relation to which	\$24.50
	the charge or amount is payable	

- (2) An installation charge is not payable in addition to the amount payable under regulation 27, 28, 29 or 32.
- (3) If the same charge is imposed by this regulation and regulation 29 of the *Waterworks Regulations 1996* in respect of the same matter, only 1 of those charges is payable.

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 94 of 2005

05SAW/005CS

## Waterworks Variation Regulations 2005

under the Waterworks Act 1932

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Waterworks Regulations 1996

4 Variation of regulation 29—Other charges

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Waterworks Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Waterworks Regulations 1996

## 4—Variation of regulation 29—Other charges

Regulation 29(1)—delete subregulation(1) and substitute:

(1) Subject to these regulations, the following charges are payable to the Corporation:

(a) Standard capital contribution \$2 513.00

(b) Connection charge (this charge includes the charge for installation of a meter)

## Nominal diameter:

•	20 mm	\$1 696.00
•	25 mm	\$2 119.00
•	40 mm	\$3 291.00
•	50 mm	\$3 962.00

	•	greater than 50 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(c)	Installat	ion of meter	
	No	minal diameter of connection:	
	•	20 mm	\$272.00
	•	25 mm	\$347.00
	•	40 mm	\$705.00
	•	50 mm	\$1 287.00
(d)		ion of new 20 mm or 25 mm service by 4 metrion of meter	res or less and
	Re	location distance:	
	•	0.5 metre or less	\$649.00
	•	more than 0.5 metre but not more than 1 metre	\$721.00
	•	more than 1 metre but not more than 2 metres	\$799.00
	•	more than 2 metres but not more than 3 metres	\$877.00
	•	more than 3 metres but not more than 4 metres	\$957.00
(e)	a strata	ion of manifold and meters for each unit in or community scheme (Nominal meter r on the manifold: 20 mm)	\$347.00 for each meter connected to manifold
(f)	Connect	tion of fire service communication pipe	
	No	minal diameter:	
	•	100 mm	\$7 747.00
	•	150 mm	\$9 829.00
	•	greater than 150 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(g)	Installat	ion of additional isolating valve for fire service	ce
	No	minal diameter:	
	•	100 mm	\$2 123.00
	•	150 mm	\$2 831.00
	•	200 mm	\$3 494.00
	•	greater than 200 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(h)	Replace	meter	
	No	minal diameter of connection:	
	•	15 mm and 20 mm	\$237.00
	•	25 mm	\$289.00

	•	32 mm and 40 mm	\$485.00	
	•	50 mm	\$774.00	
	•	greater than 50 mm	Corporation's costs of replacement	
(i)	Repair or replace fittings other than meters			
	No	minal diameter of connection:		
	•	15 mm and 20 mm	\$161.00	
	•	25 mm	\$161.00	
	•	32 mm and 40 mm	\$255.00	
	•	50 mm	\$289.00	
	•	greater than 50 mm	Corporation's costs of repair or replacement	
(j)	Disconnection of a fire service from land		\$2 397.00	
(k)	Disconnection of any other service 50 mm or less from main pipe \$341.00			
(1)	50 mm from main pipe quoted by		estimated cost quoted by Corporation	
(m)	meter (including connection to main pipe) quoted b		estimated cost quoted by Corporation	
(n)	Relocation of existing 20 mm and 25 mm water services by 4 metres or less			
	Rel	location distance:		
	•	0.5 metre or less	\$399.00	
	•	more than 0.5 metre but not more than 1 metre	\$504.00	
	•	more than 1 metre but not more than 2 metres	\$582.00	
	•	more than 2 metres but not more than 3 metres	\$689.00	
	•	more than 3 metres but not more than 4 metres	\$800.00	
(o)		Rotation of 20 mm and 25 mm water meters up to \$121.00 180 degrees		
(p)	Charge	Charge for raising or lowering pipe connecting land to main pipe		
	Nominal diameter of connection:			
	•	15 mm and 20 mm	\$383.00	
	•	over 20 mm but not exceeding 50 mm	\$649.00	
	•	greater than 50 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation	

(q)	Charge for shortening length of pipe connecting land to Nominal diameter of connection:	to main pipe
	• 20 mm and 25 mm	\$582.00
	• 32 mm, 40 mm and 50 mm	\$649.00
	• greater than 50 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(r)	Charge to extend length of pipe connecting land to main pipe	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(s)	Charge to restore water supply following restriction of supply at meter	\$46.00
(t)	Charge to restore water supply following restriction of supply at main pipe	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(u)	Charge to restore water supply—where communication pipe in ground and can be used	\$332.00
(v)	Charge to provide and install underground box to cover	er meter
	Nominal diameter:	
	• 20 mm and 25 mm	\$484.00
	• 32 mm, 40 mm and 50 mm	\$1 446.00
	• greater than 50 mm	estimated cost quoted by Corporation
(w)	Charge to test meter at request of consumer	\$105.00
(x)	Charge to read meter at request of consumer	\$18.40
(y)	Charge to provide certificate of rates or charges unpaid for the purposes of settlement of land transactions	\$8.40
(z)	Charge for statement of existence or non-existence of encumbrances in favour of the Corporation or back flow prevention devices	\$6.65
(za)	Charge for hire of portable hydrant—for each period of 3 months or part of such a period	\$53.00
(zb)	Charge for additional administrative cost in relation to breach of terms and conditions of hire of hydrant	\$100.00
(zc)	Charge for additional administrative cost in relation to a dishonoured cheque used to pay a charge or other amount under these regulations	\$12.10
(zd)	Charge for additional administrative cost in relation to a charge or other amount due under these regulations but not paid by the date for payment in the notice served on the person liable	\$6.70
(ze)	Charge for visit in relation to the non-payment of a charge or other amount to the land in relation to which the charge or amount is payable	\$24.50

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 95 of 2005

05SAW/005CS

# Fees Regulation (Assessment of Requirements—Water and Sewerage) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Fees Regulation Act 1927

## **Contents**

# Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Assessment of Requirements—Water and Sewerage) Regulations 1997

4 Substitute of Schedule Schedule—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Fees Regulation (Assessment of Requirements—Water and Sewerage) Variation Regulations 2005.* 

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into effect in accordance with section 5 of the *Fees Regulation Act* 1927.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Assessment of Requirements—Water and Sewerage) Regulations 1997

#### 4—Substitute of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule—Fees

1	On the original assessment of the requirements of South Australian	\$261.00
	Water Corporation where the requirements relate only to the provision	
	of water supply or sewerage services	
2	On updating the original or a subsequent assessment where the requirements relate only to the provision of water supply or sewerage	\$74.50

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

services

No 96 of 2005

05SAW/005CS

# Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Variation Regulations 2005

under the Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1986

## **Contents**

# Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Regulations 1995

4 Variation of regulation 6.8.2—Prescription of fee

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Occupational Health*, *Safety and Welfare Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Regulations 1995

# 4—Variation of regulation 6.8.2—Prescription of fee

- (1) Regulation 6.8.2(1)—delete "2003/2004 financial year is \$5 292 000" and substitute: 2005/2006 financial year is \$5 652 000
- (2) Regulation 6.8.2(2)—delete "for Industrial Affairs for the 2003/2004" and substitute: for the 2005/2006

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

after consultation by the Minister with the Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Advisory Committee and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 97 of 2005

MIR05/005CS

# **Harbors and Navigation Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Harbors and Navigation Act 1993

## **Contents**

# Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of Harbors and Navigation Regulations 1994

4 Variation of Schedule 14

Fees payable

# Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Harbors and Navigation Variation Regulations 2005*.

### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Harbors and Navigation Regulations 1994

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 14

Schedule 14, clause 3—delete clause 3 and substitute:

## 3—Fees payable

The following fees are payable to the CEO for the purposes of the Act and these regulations:

## Fees relating to Part 5

1	Pilotage exemption certificate	\$430.00
2	Renewal of pilotage exemption certificate	\$215.00
3	Replacement pilotage exemption certificate	\$41.50

Fees relating to Part 6			
4 Exemption f	rom crewing requirements	\$97.50	
Fees relating to I	Part 7		
5 Certificate o	f competency—		
(a) for	(a) for recreational vessels—		
(i)	Boat Operator's Licence	\$27.75	
(ii)	special permit	\$27.75	
(iii)	plus for a written examination (whether a first or subsequent attempt)	\$28.75	
	trading vessels operating solely on River Murray or inland waters—		
(i)	Master Class 4 River Murray and Inland Waters	\$633.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$36.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$235.00	
(ii)	Master Class 5 River Murray and Inland Waters (including Houseboat)	\$524.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$36.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$128.00	
(iii)	Coxswain River Murray and Inland Waters	\$398.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$36.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$108.00	
	other trading vessels and fishing ssels—		
(i)	Master Class 3 or Skipper Grade 1	\$1013.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$71.00	
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$253.00	

(ii)	Master Class 4, Mate Class 4 or Skipper Grade 2	\$836.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$55.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$235.00
(iii)	Master Class 5 or Skipper Grade 3	\$686.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$36.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$180.00
(iv)	Coxswain	\$398.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$36.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$108.00
(v)	Marine Engineer Class 3	\$835.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$93.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$235.00
(vi)	Marine Engine Driver Grade 1	\$633.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$83.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$144.00
(vii)	Marine Engine Driver Grade 2	\$473.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$55.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at an oral examination</li> </ul>	\$93.00
(viii)	Marine Engine Driver Grade 3	\$289.00
	<ul> <li>plus for a second or subsequent attempt at a written examination</li> </ul>	\$36.00

6 Exemption from requirement to he competency	Exemption from requirement to hold certificate of \$97.50 competency				
7 Endorsement of certificate of com	Endorsement of certificate of competency \$97.50				
8 Recognition of certificate of comp	etency—				
(a) if applicant not required examination	to sit \$97.50				
(b) if applicant required to s	it examination \$345.00				
9 Re-validation of certificate of com	spetency \$24.50				
10 Replacement certificate of compet	ency—				
(a) Boat Operator's Licence permit	or special \$12.50				
(b) other	\$97.50				
Fees relating to Part 8—Hire and Dri	ve Houseboats				
11 For inspection of a hire and drive relation to initial grant of licence the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to adding a hardlet operated pursuant to such a licence to the Act or in relation to the Act or in relatio	under Part 8 of ouseboat to the				
For inspection of a hire and drive pursuant to a condition of a licenc of the Act—					
(a) where the inspection is result of damage or alter houseboat					
(b) in any other case	\$30.00 per metre				
13 For examination of houseboat buil	ding plans—				
(a) for construction of a hou	seboat \$34.25 per metre				
(b) for alterations to a house	eboat \$18.50 per metre				
14 For non-attendance by owner or a appointed inspection	gent at an \$228.00				
15 For issue of a replacement or addi of inspection	tional certificate \$49.75				
16 For extension of period for which inspection remains in force	certificate of \$4.20 per metre				
Fees relating to Part 9—Registration					
17 Registration of vessel—					
(a) recreational vessel—					
(i) vessel that is not metres in length and an engine capable of not more than 5 hor	d is powered by of developing				
initial registrat	ion \$26.50				
• subsequent reg	gistration in nil				

			Φ1 <b>2. 7</b> 0
		<ul> <li>subsequent registration in different name</li> </ul>	\$12.50
		(ii) any other vessel—	
		<ul> <li>initial registration</li> </ul>	\$57.50
		<ul> <li>subsequent registration in same name</li> </ul>	\$39.00
		<ul> <li>subsequent registration in different name</li> </ul>	\$51.50
	(b)	restricted vessel—	
		(i) initial registration	\$245.00
		(ii) subsequent registration	\$152.00
18	Exempti	on from requirement for vessel to be	nil
19	Trade pl	ates—	
	(a)	initial issue	\$57.50
	(b)	subsequent issue	\$39.00
	(c)	issue of replacement certificate or label	\$12.50
	(d)	surrender of trade plates	\$12.50
20	Substitu owner	tion of identification mark at request of	\$12.50
21	Transfer	of registration of vessel	\$12.50
22	Replace	ment certificate of registration	\$12.50
23	Replace	ment registration label	\$12.50
24	Cancella	tion of registration	\$12.50
25	Applica	ion for appointment as a boat code agent	\$107.00
26		ion for renewal of a term of appointment code agent	\$85.00
27	Applica	ion for approval as a boat code examiner	\$53.50
28		ion for renewal of a term of approval as a e examiner	\$26.75
29	Set of 20	) HIN plates	\$83.50
30	Pad of 5	0 interim boat code certificates	\$22.20
31	Duplica	e copy of boat code certificate	\$12.50
Cer	tificates (	of Survey	
32		te of survey or application for consent to all alteration to hull or material alteration ment	the sum of the applicable fees fixed by clauses 33 to 38
33	Survey-	_	
	(a)	survey for initial issue of certificate of survey	\$113.00 per metre
	(b)	survey for subsequent issue of certificate of survey—	

	(i)	if the vessel has been surveyed by a classification society	\$52.50 per metre
	(ii)	in any other case—	
		<ul> <li>Class 1 and 2 vessels: first visit</li> </ul>	\$56.00 per metre
		<ul> <li>Class 1 and 2 vessels: subsequent visit</li> </ul>	\$30.00 per metre
		• Class 3 vessels: first visit	\$62.00 per metre
		<ul> <li>Class 3 vessels: subsequent visit</li> </ul>	\$31.00 per metre
		rvey of alterations or repairs to essel—	
	(i)	Class 1 and 2 vessels	\$30.00 per metre
	(ii)	Class 3 vessels	\$31.00 per metre
	(iii)	Minimum fee	\$185.00
34	Examination	n and approval of plans—	
		onstruction of vessel or major hull odifications	\$86.50 per metre
	(b) m	ajor alterations	\$56.50 per metre
	(c) ot	her alterations	\$29.50 per metre
35	Attendance	of surveyor at an inclining experiment	\$185.00
36	Examination information	n and approval of vessel's stability	
	` '	the information is based on a etacentric height (GM) criteria	\$188.00
	(b) in	any other case	\$121.00 per hour minimum fee: \$557.00
37		endance of owner of vessel or we at an appointed survey	\$30.00 per metre
38		o certificate of survey following lteration of vessel or its equipment	\$49.75
39	Exemption surveyed	from requirement for vessel to be	nil
40		f period for which certificate of ins in force—	
	(a) C	lass 1 and 2 vessels	\$15.90 per metre
	(b) C	lass 3 vessels	\$8.65 per metre
41	Recognition	as equivalent to certificate of survey	nil
42	Replacemen	at certificate of survey	\$49.75
Loa	dline Certifi	cates	
43	Loadline ce	rtificate—	
	(a) in	itial issue	\$56.50 per metre

\$4.70

	(b)	subseq	uent issue	\$29.50 per metre
44	-		requirement for loadline ssued in respect of vessel	nil
45	Recogn	ition as e	quivalent to loadline certificate	nil
46	Replace	ement loa	dline certificate	\$29.50 per metre
Fee	s relating	g to Part	14—Boat Havens	
47	Permit	to moor v	ressel in boat haven—	
	(a)	North 1	Arm Boat Haven	
		(i) ar	nnual permit—	
		•	fishing vessel 9 metres and over in length	\$56.00 per metre
		•	fishing vessel less than 9 metres in length	\$74.50 per metre
		•	tender vessel	\$56.00 per metre
		•	the above is subject to the following maximum fees:	
			• Fishing vessel and 2 tender vessels	\$360.00
			<ul> <li>Fishing vessel and 3 tender vessels</li> </ul>	\$409.00
			• Other vessels 12 metres or more in length	\$141.00 per metre
			• Other vessels less than 12 metres in length	\$1 675.00
			mporary permit (1 week or part a week)	\$49.00
	(b)	Port M Boat H	acDonnell Boat Haven and Robe Iaven	
		(i) ar	nnual permit	\$74.50 per metre
		(ii) te	mporary permit (24 hours)	\$4.70
	(c)	Port P	irie Boat Haven	
		(i) ar	nnual permit—	
		•	vessels 9 metres and over in length	\$124.00
		•	vessels less than 9 metres in length	\$63.00
		(::) · ·		¢4.70

(ii) temporary permit (24 hours)

nil

#### Levies

48 Facilities levy—

(b)

Recreational vessel-

(a) recreational vessel that is not more than 3.1 metres in length and is powered by an engine capable of developing not more than 5 horsepower

any other recreational vessel \$27.75

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 98 of 2005

MTR05/016

# Passenger Transport (General) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Passenger Transport Act 1994

## **Contents**

# Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Passenger Transport (General) Regulations 1994

4 Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Passenger Transport (General) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Passenger Transport (General) Regulations 1994

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 4

Schedule 4—delete Schedule 4 and substitute:

### Schedule 4—Fees

- 1 Application fee for an accreditation under the Act—
  - (a) in respect of an accreditation under Part 4Division 1—

(i) unless (ii) or (iii) applies

\$276

(ii) in the case of a Small Passenger Vehicle (Traditional) Accreditation, a Small Passenger Vehicle (Special Purpose) Accreditation or a Small Passenger Vehicle (Non-Metropolitan) Accreditation \$276 plus \$62 for each vehicle that will initially be used for the purposes of a service operated under the accreditation

(iii) in the case of a Small Passenger Vehicle (Metropolitan) Accreditation \$276 plus \$1 232 for each vehicle that will initially be used for the purposes of a service operated under the accreditation

(b) in respect of an accreditation under Part 4 Division 2 \$85

(c) in respect of an accreditation under Part 4
Division 3

\$682

- Periodical fee payable under section 33(1)(b) of the Act—for each prescribed period (see regulation 8(1))—
  - (a) in respect of an accreditation under Part 4 Division 1—
    - (i) unless (ii) or (iii) applies

\$276

- (ii) in the case of a Small Passenger
   Vehicle (Traditional) Accreditation, a
   Small Passenger Vehicle (Special Purpose) Accreditation or a Small
   Passenger Vehicle (Non-Metropolitan)
   Accreditation
- \$276 plus \$62 for each vehicle used (or available for use) for the purposes of a service operated under the accreditation (as at the end of the relevant period)
- (iii) in the case of a Small Passenger Vehicle (Metropolitan) Accreditation

\$276 plus \$1 232 for each vehicle used (or available for use) for the purposes of a service operated under the accreditation (as at the end of the relevant period)

(b) in respect of an accreditation under Part 4 Division 3 \$682

3 Penalty for a default under section 33(2) of the Act

\$40

- 4 Renewal fee under section 34 of the Act—
  - (a) in respect of an accreditation under Part 4 Division 1—
    - (i) unless (ii) or (iii) applies

\$276

(ii) in the case of a Small Passenger Vehicle (Traditional) Accreditation, a Small Passenger Vehicle (Special Purpose) Accreditation or a Small Passenger Vehicle (Non-Metropolitan) Accreditation \$276 plus \$62 for each vehicle used (or available for use) for the purposes of a service operated under the accreditation at the time of renewal

	(iii)	in the case of a Small Passenger Vehicle (Metropolitan) Accreditation	\$276 plus \$1 232 for each vehicle used (or available for use) for the purposes of a service operated under the accreditation at the time of renewal
		respect of an accreditation under Part 4 vision 2	\$85
		respect of an accreditation under Part 4 vision 3	\$682
5	Application Division 2	to vary an accreditation under Part 4	\$85
6	Notification	to the Minister of—	
	(a) the	e introduction of a vehicle to a service—	
	(i)	unless (ii) or (iii) applies	\$15
	(ii)	in the case of a vehicle used for the purposes of a service operated under a Small Passenger Vehicle (Traditional) Accreditation, a Small Passenger Vehicle (Special Purpose) Accreditation or a Small Passenger Vehicle (Non-Metropolitan) Accreditation	\$62 per vehicle
	(iii)	in the case of a vehicle used for the purposes of a service operated under a Small Passenger Vehicle (Metropolitan) Accreditation	\$1 232 per vehicle
	operate subpara period (8(1), th (iii) ma applyin months prescrib	er, if a vehicle is introduced to a service d under an accreditation referred to in agraph (ii) or (iii) during a prescribed for that accreditation under regulation e fee payable under subparagraph (ii) or y be adjusted on a pro rata basis by g the proportion that the number of that are left to run to the end of that bed period bears to 12 months (on the at parts of a month count as a full month)	
	(b) the	e withdrawal of a vehicle from a service	\$15
7	Application Act—	fee for a licence under Part 6 of the	
	(a) in	respect of a special vehicle licence	\$100
	(b) in	respect of any other kind of licence	\$208
8	Renewal fee	under Part 6 of the Act—	
	(a) in	respect of a special vehicle licence	\$100
	(b) in	respect of any other kind of licence	\$208
9	Application section 49 or	fee for the consent of the Minister under f the Act	\$66

1524	THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT GAZETTE		[26 May 2005	
	10	Application fee for consent to the substitution of another vehicle for a licensed taxi	\$30	
	11	Fee for issue of a duplicate of an accreditation or licence that has been lost etc	\$40	
	12	Prescribed fee under section 54 of the Act—		
		(a) for a first inspection	\$69	
		(b) for a subsequent inspection (if necessary)	\$51	
	13	Tender fee for the purposes of Schedule 1	\$27	

# Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 99 of 2005

MTR05/015

# **Motor Vehicles Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Motor Vehicles Act 1959

#### **Contents**

# Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996

- 4 Variation of regulation 4—Interpretation
- 5 Variation of regulation 38—Fees
- 6 Variation of regulation 43—Refund of part of licence fee on eligibility for reduced fee
- 7 Variation of regulation 50—Appointment of authorised examiners
- 8 Substitution of Schedule 5

Schedule 5—Fees

# Schedule 1—Transitional provision

1 Transitional provision

# Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Motor Vehicles Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations come into operation on the day on which they are made.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996

# 4—Variation of regulation 4—Interpretation

Regulation 4(1)—after the definition of *special purpose vehicle* insert:

*Transport Department* means the administrative unit that, under the Minister, is responsible for the administration of the Act;

#### 5—Variation of regulation 38—Fees

(1) Regulation 38(1)—delete "to 36" and substitute:

to 38

(2) Regulation 38(1a)—delete "clause 37" and substitute:

clause 39

(3) Regulation 38(3)—delete "clause 20(3)" and substitute:

clause 19(3)

(4) Regulation 38, Note 1—delete "clause 37" and substitute:

clause 39

# 6—Variation of regulation 43—Refund of part of licence fee on eligibility for reduced fee

Regulation 43(a)—delete "clause 20(1)(c)" and substitute: clause 19(1)(c)

# 7—Variation of regulation 50—Appointment of authorised examiners

Regulation 50(3)—delete "Department of Transport" and substitute:

**Transport Department** 

#### 8—Substitution of Schedule 5

Schedule 5—delete the Schedule and substitute:

### Schedule 5—Fees

#### 1—Interpretation

In this Schedule-

**government authorised examiner** means an authorised examiner who is—

- (a) a police officer; or
- (b) an employee in the Transport Department; or
- (c) a person appointed as an authorised examiner by some public authority and approved by the Registrar;

level 1 fee means an administration fee of \$6.00;

level 2 fee means an administration fee of \$15.00;

level 3 fee means an administration fee of \$21.00;

**Transport Department premises**, in relation to an examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(iii) of the Act, includes a place specified under section 139(1)(d) of the Act at which the motor vehicle is required to be produced for the purpose of the examination.

#### 2—Registration

(1) For registration of—

- (a) a heavy vehicle—
  - (i) for one or more quarters—a fee equal to the product of the number of quarters for which the vehicle is to be registered multiplied by one quarter of the amount that would be the annual registration charge determined in accordance with the Commonwealth Road Transport Charges Act for registration of the vehicle in the Australian Capital Territory; or
  - (ii) in any other case—a fee equal to the product of the number of days for which the vehicle is to be registered multiplied by one-three hundred and sixty-fifth of the fee that would be payable for registration of the vehicle for 12 months;
- (b) a vehicle that is not a heavy vehicle—

')	a v	CITICIC		
	(i)	a m	a motor bike	
	(ii)	a tra	ailer	\$50.00
	(iii)		otor vehicle propelled other than by an rnal combustion engine	\$85.00
	(iv)	a cc	ommercial motor vehicle—	
		(A)	if the unladen mass of the vehicle does not exceed 1 000 kg and the vehicle is propelled by an internal combustion engine—	
			• having 4 cylinders or less	\$85.00
			• having 5 or 6 cylinders	\$172.00
			• having 7 or more cylinders	\$251.00
		(B)	if the unladen mass of the vehicle exceeds 1 000 kg but does not exceed 1 500 kg	\$187.00
		(C)	if the unladen mass of the vehicle exceeds 1 500 kg	\$319.00
	(v)	to i	motor vehicle (other than a vehicle referred n subparagraphs (i) to (iv)) propelled by an rnal combustion engine—	
		(A)	having 4 cylinders or less	\$85.00
		(B)	having 5 or 6 cylinders	\$172.00
		(C)	having 7 or more cylinders	\$251.00

- (2) The registration fees prescribed in subclause (1)(b) are those payable for registration for 12 months.
- (3) The registration fee payable for the registration of a motor vehicle for a period of less than 12 months is as follows:
  - (a) in the case of a registration for one, two or three quarters—a fee equal to the product of the number of quarters for which the vehicle is to be registered multiplied by one quarter of the fee that would be payable for registration of the vehicle for 12 months;

- (b) in any other case—a fee equal to the product of the number of days for which the vehicle is to be registered multiplied by one-three hundred and sixtyfifth of the fee that would be payable for registration of the vehicle for 12 months.
- (4) Administration fee (payable in addition to the registration fee) for—
  - (a) initial registration or re-registration of a motor vehicle

level 3 fee

(b) renewal of registration of a motor vehicle

level 1 fee

- (5) Surcharge (payable in addition to the registration fee and administration fee) for registration or renewal of registration of a motor vehicle for—
  - (a) less than 6 months—a fee equal to 5.625 per cent of the registration fee;
  - (b) 6 months or more but less than 9 months—a fee equal to 3.75 per cent of the registration fee;
  - (c) 9 months or more but less than 12 months—a fee equal to 1.875 per cent of the registration fee.
- (6) Subject to clause 3, the fees prescribed in this clause do not apply in relation to the registration of a motor vehicle under section 25 of the Act.

#### 3—Conditional registration

- (1) For registration of a motor vehicle under section 25 of the Act—
  - (a) in the case of—
    - (i) a heavy vehicle that is a special purpose vehicle (type o); or
    - (ii) a heavy vehicle that is a special purpose vehicle (type t) (other than an emergency response vehicle or a vehicle that is used principally for the purpose of fire fighting and is fitted with fire fighting equipment),

a fee equal to the product of the number of quarters for which the vehicle is to be registered multiplied by one quarter of the amount that would be the annual registration charge determined in accordance with the Commonwealth Road Transport Charges Act for registration of the vehicle in the Australian Capital Territory;

- (b) in the case of a road train, B double or a vehicle referred to in clause 6(g) of Schedule 1—the registration fee prescribed by clause 2 of this Schedule;
- (c) in any other case—no fee.
- (2) Administration fee (payable whether or not a registration fee is payable under subclause (1)) for registration of a motor vehicle under section 25 of the Act—
  - (a) initial registration or re-registration of a motor vehicle

level 3 fee

level 2 fee

	(b) renewal of registration of a motor vehicle	level 1 fee		
(3)	If a registration fee is payable for the registration of a motor vehicle under section 25 of the Act and the period of registration is less than 12 months, a surcharge of the amount prescribed in clause 2(5) is payable in addition to the registration fee and administration fee.			
(4)	An application for the registration of a motor vehicle under section 25 of the Act is exempt from stamp duty if the motor vehicle to which the application relates is of any of the classes of vehicles prescribed for the purposes of that section in Schedule 1 (other than a road train, B double or a vehicle referred to in clause 6(g) of that Schedule).			
(5)	In this clause—			
	<pre>emergency response vehicle has the same meaning as in Schedule 1;</pre>			
	special purpose vehicle (type o) has the same meaning as in the Schedule of the Commonwealth Road Transport Charges Act;			
	<i>special purpose vehicle (type t)</i> has the same meaning as in the Schedule of the Commonwealth Road Transport Charges Act.			
4—T	ransfer of registration			
(1)	Administration fee for transfer of the registration of a motor vehicle	level 3 fee		
(2)	Additional fee for late payment of the fee prescribed in subclause (1)	\$50.00		
<b>5—C</b>	ancellation of registration			
	Administration fee for cancellation of the registration of a motor vehicle	level 2 fee		
6—D	uplicate certificates of registration and registration labels			
	Administration fee for the issue of a duplicate certificate of registration or duplicate registration label	level 2 fee		
7—P	ermit to drive an unregistered motor vehicle			
	Administration fee for the issue of—			
	(a) a permit under section 16(1)(c)(i) of the Act	level 1 fee		
	(b) a permit under section 16(1)(c)(ii) of the Act	level 3 fee		
8—D	uplicate permit to drive an unregistered motor vehicle			
	Administration fee for the issue of a duplicate permit under section 16(12) of the Act	level 2 fee		
9—T	emporary configuration certificate for heavy vehicle			
	Administration fee for the issue of a temporary configuration certificate for a heavy vehicle	level 3 fee		
10—	Duplicate temporary configuration certificate for heavy vehicle			

Administration fee for the issue of a duplicate temporary

configuration certificate for a heavy vehicle

#### 11—Number allotment

Administration fee for variation or amendment of the number allotted to a motor vehicle (per vehicle)

level 3 fee

#### 12—Number plates

(1) Administration fee for the issue or replacement of a single number plate, a pair of number plates or a supplementary number plate for a bike rack level 3 fee

(2) Administration fee (payable in addition to the fee prescribed in subclause (1)) for postal delivery of a number plate or plates

level 2 fee

#### 13—Issue or reissue of trade plate

- (1) For the issue or reissue of a trade plate—
  - (a) in respect of a motor vehicle that has a gross vehicle mass exceeding 4 500 kg (other than a special purpose vehicle) (*Category A*)— an annual fee of an amount equal to the fee that would be payable for registration for 12 months of a heavy vehicle that is a truck (type 1) with 2 axles and a gross vehicle mass exceeding 4 500 kg but not exceeding 12 000 kg;
  - (b) in respect of a motor vehicle that has a gross vehicle mass not exceeding 4 500 kg (other than a motor bike, trailer or special purpose vehicle) (*Category B*)— an annual fee of an amount equal to the fee that would be payable for registration for 12 months of a motor vehicle referred to in clause 2(1)(b)(iv)(A) or 2(1)(b)(v) that has 7 or more cylinders;
  - (c) in respect of a motor bike (*Category C*)— an annual fee of an amount equal to the fee that would be payable for registration for 12 months of a motor bike;
  - (d) in respect of a trailer that has a gross vehicle mass not exceeding 4 500 kg (*Category D*)— an annual fee of an amount equal to the fee that would be payable for registration for 12 months of a trailer;
  - (e) in respect of a special purpose vehicle (*Category E*) no fee.

If an application for the issue or reissue of a trade plate relates to more than one category of vehicle such that more than one fee becomes payable, then only the highest fee must be paid.

(2) Administration fees (payable in addition to the fee prescribed in subclause (1))—

(a) on application for the issue of a trade plate

level 3 fee

(b) for allocation of a trade plate number on the issue of a trade plate (per plate)

level 2 fee

(3) Administration fee (payable in addition to the fee prescribed in subclause (1)) on application for the reissue of a trade plate

level 1 fee

(4) In this clause—

*truck (type 1)* has the same meaning as in the Schedule of the Commonwealth Road Transport Charges Act.

#### 14—Supply of trade plate by Registrar

Administration fee for the supply of a trade plate by the Registrar

level 3 fee

#### 15—Issue of replacement trade plate

Administration fee on application for the issue of a new trade plate in lieu of a lost trade plate

level 2 fee

#### 16—Duplicate trade plate label or certificate of issue of trade plate

Administration fee for the issue of a duplicate trade plate label or duplicate certificate of issue of a trade plate

level 2 fee

#### 17—Trade plate transfer

Administration fee payable on application for the transfer of a trade plate

level 3 fee

#### 18—Trade plate surrender

Administration fee payable on surrender of a trade plate under section 70(5) of the Act

level 2 fee

#### 19—Driver's licences

- (1) For the issue or renewal of a driver's licence
  - where the applicant is a person who as a result of his or her service in a naval, military or air force of Her Majesty-

\$12.00

- (i) is totally or permanently incapacitated; or
- has lost a leg or foot; or
- receives under the law of the Commonwealth relating to repatriation a pension at the rate for total incapacity or a pension granted by reason of impairment of his or her power of locomotion at the rate of not less than 70 per cent of the rate for total incapacity (per annum)
- (b) where the applicant is a concession card holder (per annum)

\$12.00

in any other case (per annum)

\$24.00

- (2) The licence fee for a driver's licence issued or renewed for a period other than for full years is one-quarter of the annual licence fee for each complete three months of the period for which the licence is issued or renewed.
- (3) If—
  - (a) a person ceases to be a concession card holder; and
  - (h) the person holds a driver's licence that was issued or renewed on payment of a reduced fee,

the person must pay an additional fee of an amount that is equal to the difference between-

the amount obtained by multiplying the number of complete three month periods in the unexpired period of the licence by one-quarter of the annual fee paid for the issue or renewal of the licence; and

- (d) the amount obtained by multiplying the number of complete three month periods in the unexpired period of the licence by one-quarter of the annual fee that would have been payable for the issue or renewal of the licence if the person had not been a concession card holder.
- (4) For the purposes of subclause (3), the unexpired period of the licence commences on the day on which the person ceases to be a concession card holder.
- (5) Administration fee (payable in addition to the licence fee) for the issue or renewal of a driver's licence

level 2 fee

(6) Administration fee (payable in addition to the fee prescribed in subclause (5)) where application for the issue of a driver's licence is made more than 6 months after the expiry of a previously held licence and the applicant was not, during the whole of the period of 6 months after the expiry of the previously held licence, disqualified from holding or obtaining a driver's licence level 3 fee

(7) In this clause—

concession card holder means a person who—

- (a) holds—
  - (i) a State Concession Card issued by the Department for Families and Communities; or
  - (ii) a pensioner entitlement card issued under a law of the Commonwealth; and
- (b) is entitled, as the holder of such a card, to travel on public transport in this State at reduced fares;

**reduced fee** means the fee payable for the issue or renewal of a driver's licence where the applicant is a concession card holder.

#### 20—Duplicate driver's licence

Administration fee for the issue of a duplicate driver's licence that bears a photograph of the holder

level 2 fee

#### 21—Learner's permit

(1) For the issue or renewal of a learner's permit

\$24.00

(2) Administration fee for the issue or renewal of a learner's permit (payable in addition to the permit fee)

level 2 fee

#### 22—Duplicate learner's permit

Administration fee for the issue of a duplicate learner's permit

level 2 fee

### 23—Theoretical examination

For a theoretical examination prescribed for the purposes of section 79 of the Act—

(a) examination fee

\$10.00

(b) administration fee (payable in addition to the examination fee)

level 2 fee

#### 24—Practical driving tests conducted by government authorised examiners

For a practical driving test conducted by a government authorised examiner—

(a)	booking fee	level 2 fee

(b) test fee—

(i) for a test of up to, but not exceeding, 40 minutes' \$35.00 duration

(ii) for a test exceeding 40 minutes' duration

\$81.00 level 2 fee

(c) administration fee (payable in addition to the test fee)

#### 25—Other practical driving tests; final assessments

Booking fee, for notice to the Registrar of—

level 2 fee

- (a) a practical driving test; or
- (b) a final assessment in a competence based training course for drivers of motor vehicles (other than motor bikes) undertaken in accordance with the directions of the Registrar,

to be conducted by an authorised examiner other than a government authorised examiner

#### 26—Motor bike training courses

For a motor bike training course undertaken in accordance with the directions of the Registrar—

(a) training course fee—

(i)	for basic motor bike training preparatory to obtaining a motor bike learner's permit	\$90.00
(ii)	for advanced motor bike training preparatory to obtaining a motor bike driver's licence	\$79.00

(b) administration fee (payable in addition to the training course fee)

\$13.00

### 27—Proficiency test for motor driving instructor's licence

For a proficiency test of an applicant for a driving instructor's licence—

(a) for a theory test—

(i)	test fee	\$49.00
(ii)	administration fee (payable in addition to the test fee)	level 2 fee

(b) for a practical training course test—

(i)	test fee	\$4 305.00
(ii)	administration fee (payable in addition to the test fee)	level 2 fee

## 28—Motor driving instructor's licence

For the issue of a motor driving instructor's licence (per annum) \$68.20

29—Duplica	te mo	tor driving instructor's licence	
Administration fee for the issue of a duplicate motor driving level 2 fee instructor's licence			
30—Appoint	ment	as authorised examiner	
		nent as an authorised examiner (other than a authorised examiner) (per annum)	\$100.00
31—Proficie	ncy te	sts for authorised examiners	
		ency test, required by the Registrar, of an applicant and an authorised examiner—	
(a)	for	a 3-day practical training course test—	
	(i)	test fee	\$380.00
	(ii)	administration fee (payable in addition to the test fee)	\$13.00
(b)	for	a 5-day practical training course test—	
	(i)	test fee	\$565.00
	(ii)	administration fee (payable in addition to the test fee)	\$13.00
32—Lecture	s as to	motor vehicle accidents and their causes	
For att	endan	ce at a lecture conducted pursuant to regulation 32	\$32.00
33—Disable	d pers	on's parking permit	
For the	issue	of a disabled person's parking permit—	
(a) permit fee—			
	(i)	for 1 year or less	\$3.00
	(ii)	for 2 years	\$5.00
	(iii)	for 3 years	\$7.00
	(iv)	for 4 years	\$9.00
	(v)	for 5 years	\$12.00
(b) administration fee (payable in addition to the permit level 1 fee fee)			
34—Register searches etc			
(1) Administration fee for searching the register and supplying information—			
(a)	for	manual search of archived information (per search)	level 3 fee
(b)	for	manual search of current information (per search)	level 3 fee
(c)		multiple searches where separate extracts of entries not required	level 2 fee
(d)		nere the applicant prepares computer input data in a macceptable to the Registrar (per search)	level 1 fee
(2) Admin	istrati	on fee for an extract of an entry in the register	level 3 fee

#### 35—Motor vehicle examinations

(1) For an examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of completion of a report under regulation 23A

\$13.00

- (2) A fee for an examination referred to in subclause (1) must be paid—
  - (a) in the case of an examination to be carried out by an inspector—on the registration of the vehicle; or
  - (b) in the case of an examination to be carried out by a police officer—prior to the examination.
- (3) For a basic examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(iii) of the Act to be carried out by a person authorised by the Registrar under section 139(1) of the Act

\$20.00

(4) For a basic examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(iii) of the Act to be carried out by a police officer

\$25.00

(5) For a basic examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(iii) of the Act to be carried out by an inspector at Transport Department premises

\$25.00

- (6) For a basic examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(iii) of the Act to be carried out by an inspector at a site other than Transport Department premises—
  - (a) fee for call out (per site visit)—\$148; plus
  - (b) fee for examination (per vehicle)—\$25.

(7) For a comprehensive examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(iii) of the Act to be carried out by an inspector

\$110.00

- (8) A fee for an examination of a motor vehicle for the purposes of section 139(1)(ab)(iii) of the Act must be paid—
  - (a) in the case of a fee specified in subclause (3), (5) or (6)(b)—on the registration of the vehicle; or
  - (b) in the case of a fee specified in subclause (4), (6)(a) or(7)—prior to the examination.
- (9) If more than one fee becomes payable under this clause in respect of the examination of the same motor vehicle, only the higher or highest fee (as the case may be) must be paid.
- (10) A fee for an examination referred to in this clause to be carried out by a police officer must be paid to the South Australian Police Department.

#### 36—Application for review of decision of Registrar

Administration fee payable on application for a review under section 98Z of the Act

level 3 fee

#### 37—Dishonoured cheque or debit card or credit card transactions

Administration fee payable under section 138B of the Act

level 3 fee

#### 38—Fees payable by insurer for emergency treatment

For the purposes of section 110(1) of the Act—

- (a) the fee payable to a medical practitioner who renders emergency treatment is a fee equal to a level 3 fee;
- (b) the fee payable to a nurse who renders emergency treatment is a fee equal to a level 2 fee;
- (c) the amount payable to a person who conveys an injured person is an amount equal to one-tenth of a level 1 fee for every kilometre that the person is conveyed.

# 39—Fees payable for registration under Commonwealth *Interstate Road Transport*Act 1985

(1) Administration fee (payable in addition to the registration charge imposed by Commonwealth law) (section 9(1)(a))—

(a) for registration level 3 fee
(b) for renewal of registration level 1 fee
(2) Administration fee to accompany notice surrendering registration (section 12(2))

# **Schedule 1—Transitional provision**

## 1—Transitional provision

- (1) The fees prescribed in respect of the issue or renewal of a driver's licence or registration of a motor vehicle by Schedule 5 of the *Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996*, as substituted by these regulations, apply where the issue or renewal is to take effect on or after 1 July 2005.
- (2) All other fees prescribed in Schedule 5 of the *Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996*, as substituted by these regulations, apply from 1 July 2005.
- (3) Despite regulation 8—
  - (a) the fees prescribed in respect of the issue or renewal of a driver's licence or registration of a motor vehicle by Schedule 5 of the *Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996*, as in force immediately before the commencement of these regulations, continue to apply where the issue or renewal is to take effect before 1 July 2005; and
  - (b) all other fees prescribed by Schedule 5 of the *Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996*, as in force immediately before the commencement of these regulations, continue to apply until 1 July 2005.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 100 of 2005

MTR05/017

# Summary Offences (Dangerous Articles and Prohibited Weapons) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Summary Offences Act 1953

#### **Contents**

# Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of Summary Offences (Dangerous Articles and Prohibited Weapons) Regulations 2000

4 Variation of regulation 8—Application Fee

# Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Summary Offences (Dangerous Articles and Prohibited Weapons) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Summary Offences (Dangerous Articles and Prohibited Weapons) Regulations 2000

### 4—Variation of regulation 8—Application Fee

Regulation 8(1)—delete "\$34" and substitute:

\$35

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 101 of 2005

T&F05/034CS

# Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Road Traffic Act 1961

### **Contents**

# Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

4 Variation of regulation 43—Fees for inspections

# Part 1—Preliminary

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

### 4—Variation of regulation 43—Fees for inspections

(1) Regulation 43(2), table—delete the table and substitute:

	Type of vehicle	Fee payable for first inspection	Fee payable for further inspection
1	Motor vehicle	\$215.00	\$72.00
2	Semi-trailer	\$89.50	\$41.75
3	Converter dolly	\$41.75	\$41.75
4	Trailer	\$89.50	\$41.75

(2) Regulation 43(2a), table—delete the table and substitute:

	Type of vehicle	Fee payable for first inspection	Fee payable for further inspection
1	Motor vehicle (other than a bus) with a GVM over 4.5 tonnes	\$113.00	\$72.00
2	Bus	\$113.00	\$72.00
3	One-off motor vehicle	\$113.00	\$72.00
4	Any other vehicle	\$72.00	\$53.00

(3) Regulation 43(3)—delete "\$6.75" and substitute:

\$6.95

(4) Regulation 43(4)—delete "\$21.30" and substitute:

\$21.90

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

# Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 102 of 2005

MTR05/018

# **Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 2005**

under the Environment, Resources and Development Court Act 1993

## **Contents**

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Interpretation
- 4 Commonwealth Minister to be consulted about appointment of native title commissioners
- 5 Interest rate
- 6 Fees

Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

Schedule 2—Fees in proceedings involving native title

## Schedule 3—Revocation of regulations

- 1 Revocation of Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 1993
- 2 Revocation of Environment, Resources and Development Court (Native Title) Regulations 1995

# 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Interpretation

In these regulations—

Act means the Environment, Resources and Development Court Act 1993.

# 4—Commonwealth Minister to be consulted about appointment of native title commissioners

For the purposes of section 10(2b) of the Act, the Minister for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs for the Commonwealth is designated as the Commonwealth Minister.

#### 5—Interest rate

For the purposes of section 40(1) of the Act, the prescribed rate of interest is 10 per cent per annum.

#### 6—Fees

- (1) The fees set out in Schedule 1 are payable to the Court for proceedings before the Court (other than proceedings involving a native title question or criminal proceedings).
- (2) The fees set out in Schedule 2 are payable to the Court for proceedings before the Court involving a native title question.
- (3) The fees that are payable for criminal proceedings before the Court will be the fees that are from time to time set under the *Magistrates Court Act 1991* for the purposes of proceedings in the Criminal Division of the Magistrates Court.

# Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

1	On filing proceed	\$72.50	
	(a)	an interlocutory application under the rules of the Court; or	
	(b)	an application that relates to a building dispute to which section 86(5) of the <i>Development Act 1993</i> applies; or	
	(c)	an application to the Court for a consent judgment	
2	On an ap	oplication by a party to proceedings for the issue of a summons	\$28.00
3	Court fee payable by an applicant where the application relates to a building dispute to which section 86(5) of the <i>Development Act 1993</i> applies \$220.0		
4	Court fe hearing	e payable by the applicant or appellant if a matter proceeds to a	\$147.00
5	For each	request to inspect any material under section 47(1) of the Act	\$9.80
6	For a copy of a transcript of evidence		\$5.00 per page
7	Except where clause 8 applies, for a copy of any documentary material admitted into evidence		\$5.00 per page
8	For a co than A4	py of any photograph, map, plan or other document which is greater in size	\$5.00 per page, or the actual cost of copying, whichever is the greater
9	For a co	py of any decision or order given or made by the Court	\$5.00 per page
	Note—		
		A party to proceedings is entitled to 1 copy of any decision or order given or made by the Court without charge.	
10	For a co	py of any other document for which a fee has not been fixed under or clause	\$2.30 per page
11		ning Registry (or Registry remaining open) after hours for urgent on of process	\$72.50 per hour or part of an hour

# Schedule 2—Fees in proceedings involving native title

#### 1—Applications or notices commencing proceedings

On filing or lodging an application or initiating an appeal commencing proceedings involving a native title question other than a request for mediation

\$404.00

#### Examples—

- (a) an application for registration of a claim to native title in land
- (b) an application for a native title declaration
- an application for variation or revocation of a native title declaration
- (d) an application for a summary determination authorising mining operations on native title land (including under the expedited procedure)
- (e) an appeal against a decision of the Minister to prohibit registration of a native title mining agreement
- (f) an application for a determination of the Court made under an Act authorising a person to enter native title land and carry out operations on the land or to acquire native title land
- (g) an application for review of compensation provisions of determination following native title declaration

#### 2—Other applications

On filing or lodging any other application in proceedings involving a native title question

\$28.00

#### 3—Inspection and copies of evidentiary material

(a) for each request to inspect material under section 47(1) of the Act

\$9.80

- (b) for a copy of a transcript of evidence, documentary material admitted into evidence, or a decision or order of the Court supplied under section 47(3) of the Act
  - (i) per A4 page (or smaller)

\$5.00

(ii) per page that is greater in size than A4

\$5.00 or the actual cost of copying (whichever is the greater)

(c) for a copy of any other document for which a fee has not been charged under paragraph (b)

\$2.30 per page

#### Note—

A party to proceedings is entitled to 1 copy of any decision or order given or made by the Court without charge.

#### 4—Opening Registry after hours

For opening a Registry, or a Registry remaining open, after hours for urgent execution of process

\$72.50 per hour or part of an hour

## Schedule 3—Revocation of regulations

## 1—Revocation of Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 1993

The Environment, Resources and Development Court Regulations 1993 are revoked.

## 2—Revocation of Environment, Resources and Development Court (Native Title) Regulations 1995

The Environment, Resources and Development Court (Native Title) Regulations 1995 are revoked.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 103 of 2005

AGO0075/05CS

## **Supreme Court Regulations 2005**

under the Supreme Court Act 1935

## **Contents**

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Interpretation
- 4 Definition of prescribed court (section 39)
- 5 Fees in general jurisdiction
- 6 Fees in probate jurisdiction

Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

Schedule 2—Fees in probate jurisdiction

## Schedule 3—Revocations

- 1 Revocation of Supreme Court (Fees) Regulations 1999
- 2 Revocation of Supreme Court (Probate Fees) Regulations 1999
- 3 Revocation of Supreme Court Regulations 2005

### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Supreme Court Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Interpretation

In these regulations, unless the contrary intention appears—

Act means the Supreme Court Act 1935;

Registrar means a person holding, or acting in, the office of—

- (a) the Registrar of the court in its general jurisdiction; or
- (b) the Registrar of Probates,

as the case requires.

## 4—Definition of prescribed court (section 39)

For the purposes of paragraph (d) of the definition of *prescribed court* in section 39(6) of the Act, the Residential Tenancies Tribunal is prescribed.

\$176.00

## 5—Fees in general jurisdiction

- (1) The fees payable for proceedings in the court's general jurisdiction are—
  - (a) the fees set out in Schedule 1; and
  - (b) in addition, any costs reasonably incurred in the execution of process.

### Examples—

- (a) sums expended in attending the discharge of a ship or goods;
- (b) sums paid to a shipkeeper;
- (c) sums paid for the safe custody of property;
- (d) travelling expenses;
- (e) necessary meals;
- (f) sums paid to engage assistants;
- (g) postage, telephone calls;
- (h) fees paid to auctioneers or appraisers.
- (2) The Registrar may require a party to proceedings to pay a deposit on account of any amount to which the party may become liable under these regulations.
- (3) For the purposes of section 131 of the Act, the fees payable for inspection or copying of material in proceedings in the general jurisdiction are the appropriate fees set out in Schedule 1.

## 6—Fees in probate jurisdiction

- (1) The fees payable for proceedings in the court's probate jurisdiction are as specified in Schedule 2.
- (2) For the purposes of section 131 of the Act, the fees payable for inspection or copying of material in the probate jurisdiction are the appropriate fees set out in Schedule 2.

## Schedule 1—Fees in general jurisdiction

a summons for leave to appeal

#### Part 1—General

## General Fees

1 On filing—

(d)

(a)		application for discovery of documents before the numericement of a proceeding	\$176.00
(b)	a d	ocument by which a proceeding in the court is commenced—	
	(i)	in the case where a fee has previously been paid for filing an application for discovery of documents relating to the subject-matter of the proceeding	\$860.00
	(ii)	in any other case	\$1 036.00
(c)	a co	ounterclaim or third party notice	\$1 036.00

	(e)	a notice of appeal—	
		• in respect of an appeal for which leave to appeal is required	\$860.00
		• in respect of an appeal as of right	\$1 036.00
	Note—		
		No further fee is payable for filing pleadings or particulars or for any interlocutory application, interlocutory motion, application for directions or application for immediate relief, for signing judgment or for any necessary affidavit or document.	
2	On—		
	(a)	filing or lodging an application, notice or other document that does not relate to a proceeding for which a fee has been paid under clause 1	\$35.75
	(b)	sealing a certificate	\$35.75
	(c)	certifying under seal that a document is a true copy	\$35.75
3		request to search and inspect a record of the court, other than a or Matrimonial Causes record	\$9.80
	Note—		
		No fee is payable under clause 3 for a request made in respect of a record relating to criminal proceedings by or on behalf of the defendant or the victim of the offence that is the subject of those proceedings.	
4	For a co	py of a document (other than a copy of evidence)	\$2.30 per page
5	For a co	py of evidence	\$5.00 per page
6	For a co	py of the reasons for judgment	\$5.00 per page
	Note—		
		One copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.	
7		py of a computer disc containing the record of court proceedings ng the reasons for judgment)	the fee that would be payable under these regulations for a printed copy of the record of the proceedings plus \$60.50 for each day or part of a day on which the proceedings were
0	г		recorded
8	not requ	luction of a transcript on the request of a party where the court does ire the transcript	\$10.00 per page
9	Trial fee		\$1 036.00 for each day or part of a day on which the trial is heard by the court

#### Note-

The fee for a trial is the fee fixed under clause 9 as in force on the day on which the trial commenced and is payable by the plaintiff or appellant in the proceedings. However, if the court or Registrar so orders, the fee is payable by another party to the proceedings or by the parties to the proceedings in the proportions ordered.

#### Suitor's Funds

10 On interest collected on funds in court or credited to an account

3% of the amount of interest

#### Note-

This fee may be charged either from time to time or prior to the payment or transfer of interest out of any fund or money in court. No fee is payable if the total amount of interest does not exceed \$10.

#### Fees Payable on Taxation of Costs

11 On lodging a bill of costs

\$35.75

12 For taxing a bill of costs

5% of the amount allowed on taxation (to the nearest dollar)

#### Miscellaneous

On serving on a Registrar of the Magistrates Court copies of a notice of appeal to the Supreme Court against a decision of the Magistrates Court pursuant to section 42 of the *Magistrates Court Act 1991* 

\$111.00

### Note—

This fee is payable at the Magistrates Court when the appeal is lodged.

For opening the Registry (or the Registry remaining open) after hours for urgent execution of process

\$183.00 per hour or part of an hour

For opening the court (or the court remaining open) after hours for urgent hearing

\$551.00 per hour or part of an hour

#### Part 2—Fees payable under rules regulating admission of practitioners

On application for admission or re-admission as a practitioner

\$281.00

## Part 3—Fees to be taken by officers of the court or Commissioners for taking affidavits

- On taking an affidavit or an affirmation or attestation upon honour or a declaration (for each person making the affidavit, affirmation, attestation upon honour or declaration)—
  - (a) if taken by a Commissioner who has to travel more than one kilometre from his or her residence or office or, in the case of an officer of the court, one kilometre from the Registry
  - (b) in any other case—

(i)	if taken within the State	\$1.20

(ii) if taken outside the State \$2.40

18 For attesting a document required to be attested by a Commissioner for taking affidavits

\$1.20

\$6.10

19	Commissioner's fee on execution of bail in the Admiralty jurisdiction, including any affidavit of justification	\$9.80		
Part 4	4—Fees to be taken in marshal's office			
20	Receiving and entering a writ of summons, warrant of release, decree, order, commission or other instrument under the seal of the court	\$35.25		
21	For—			
	(a) service of a writ of summons	\$29.25		
	(b) execution of a warrant of arrest (for each person)	\$61.00		
	but, if a writ is served and a warrant executed on a person at the same time	\$78.50		
22	For execution of a warrant for the seizure of a ship, cargo or other goods	\$61.00		
23	For the release of any ship, goods or person from seizure or arrest \$29.25			
24	For the execution of a commission of appraisement or sale	\$61.00		
25	For the execution of any decree, order, commission or instrument other than one otherwise specified in this Part	\$61.00		
26	For delivery of a ship or goods to a purchaser	\$61.00		
27	For attending the discharge of cargo or removal of a ship or goods	\$61.00 per day or part of a day		
28	For opening office (or office remaining open) after hours for urgent execution of process	\$183.00 per hour or part of an hour		
29	On the gross proceeds of any ship or goods sold—			
	(a) for every \$200 or part of \$200, up to \$20 000	\$11.90		
	(b) for each additional \$200 or part of \$200	\$7.25		
30	For retaining possession of a ship (with or without cargo) or of a ship's cargo	\$35.25 per day or part of a day		

### Note-

No fee is payable under this Part for the custody and possession of property seized if it consists of money with an ADI, or goods stored in a bonded warehouse, or if it is in the custody of a customs officer or other authorised person.

## Schedule 2—Fees in probate jurisdiction

## Grants

1	On	lodging	an	annl	icat	ion	for
1	OII	100651116	an	abbi	icai	щ	-101

(a)	a grant of probate or administration	\$582.00
(b)	the sealing of a grant under section 17 of the Administration and Probate Act 1919	\$582.00
(c)	an order under section 9 of the Public Trustee Act 1995	\$582.00

\$20.30

#### Note—

#### This fee covers—

- (a) photocopies required of the will or other document (if any) for the grant and record or other purposes;
- (b) preparing and sealing any probate or letters of administration, with or without the will annexed, and any order to the Public Trustee to administer;
- (c) sealing any probate or letters of administration, with or without the will annexed, exemplification or other document under section 17 of the *Administration and Probate Act 1919*.

#### Miscellaneous dealings with grants

(a)

MISCE	enaneous deanings with grants	
2	On lodging an application to amend a grant or for noting on a grant that the deceased died domiciled in South Australia if not so noted when the grant was issued (inclusive fee)	\$49.00
3	On lodging 2 certified photocopies of an order under the <i>Inheritance</i> ( <i>Family Provision</i> ) <i>Act 1972</i> for annexation to the grant and for the record (inclusive fee)	\$49.00
4	On lodging an application to revoke or impound a grant (inclusive fee)	\$49.00
Copie	es	
5	For a photographic copy of a will or extract of a will or other document—for each photographic sheet supplied	\$2.30
6	For impressing a seal of the court on a copy	\$22.10
	Note—	
	This fee is not payable where the fee under clause 8 is payable.	
7	For the Registrar's certificate in verification of a copy	\$22.10
8	For an exemplification of probate or letters of administration, with or without the will annexed (in addition to the fee under clause 5)	\$49.00
Cave	ats	
9	For the entry or withdrawal of a caveat, for a warning to a caveat or for service of a warning to a caveat sent by the Registrar through the post	\$20.30
Appe	arances	
10	On entering an appearance—for 1 or more persons	\$35.25
Citati	ions and subpoenas	
11	For sealing a citation or a subpoena	\$20.30
Searc	ches	
12	For a search for a will or other document filed in the Registry and the issue of a search copy (inclusive fee)	\$11.90
	and, in addition, for handling a search by post—in respect of each will or other document	\$1.20
Depo	sit and withdrawal of wills	
13	For depositing the will of a deceased person in the Registry—	

for safe custody on renunciation of executor (inclusive fee)

	(b) under the <i>Crown Lands Act 1929</i> (inclusive fee)	\$20.30
14	For depositing the will or codicil of a living person for safe custody in the Registry under section 13 of the <i>Administration and Probate Act 1919</i> (inclusive fee)	\$67.00
15	On withdrawal of a will under section 15 of the <i>Administration and Probate Act 1919</i> (inclusive fee)	\$32.75
Inqu	iry by Registrar	
16	For the examination of a person or witness before the Registrar for the purpose of an inquiry or investigation—for each hour or part of an hour	\$84.50
Settl	ing documents	
17	For perusing and settling citations, advertisements, oaths, affidavits or other documents—per document	\$25.75
	Note—	
	This fee is not payable on an application under section 16 of the <i>Administration and Probate Act 1919</i> .	
Orig	inating applications	
18	On sealing an originating summons, presenting a petition (other than a petition for an order under section 9 of the <i>Public Trustee Act 1995</i> ) or filing a notice of motion or other originating application	\$170.00
19	For sealing any other summons	\$32.75
	Note—	
	This fee is not payable where the fee under clause 1 is payable.	
20	On lodging an application for an order admitting to proof a nuncupative will, a will contained in a copy, a completed draft, a reconstruction or other evidence of its contents	\$170.00
21	Hearing in chambers or in court where the hearing occupies more than 10 hours—for every additional period of 5 hours or part of 5 hours	\$84.50
	Note—	
	The fees under clauses 18, 19 and 20 cover any necessary document, affidavit or search, any interlocutory summons and the entering and sealing of any judgment, decree or order given or made in court or in chambers.	
Misc	rellaneous	
22	For filing a renunciation after the issue of a grant by an executor to whom leave was reserved (inclusive fee)	\$32.75
23	For—	
	(a) a certificate under the hand of the Registrar	\$20.30
	(b) filing or depositing an affidavit or document in the Registry	\$6.10
	(c) sealing an order of the court or the Registrar (inclusive fee)	\$32.75
	Note—	
	These fees are not payable where the certificate or the filing, deposit or sealing of the order is included in an application or proceeding for	

which another fee is payable.

For administering an oath, taking an affirmation, superintending and attesting execution of a bond, or for taxing or moderating a bill of costs

The appropriate fee set out in Schedule 1

#### Note-

The fee payable in respect of a document of foreign origin that is not strictly of a type referred to in this Schedule is that payable in respect of the document specified in this Schedule to which, in the opinion of the Registrar, the foreign document most closely corresponds.

## **Schedule 3—Revocations**

## 1—Revocation of Supreme Court (Fees) Regulations 1999

The Supreme Court (Fees) Regulations 1999 are revoked.

## 2—Revocation of Supreme Court (Probate Fees) Regulations 1999

The Supreme Court (Probate Fees) Regulations 1999 are revoked.

## 3—Revocation of Supreme Court Regulations 2005

The Supreme Court Regulations 2005 (see Gazette 24.2.2005 p535) are revoked.

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 104 of 2005

AGO0075/05CS

## **Youth Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Youth Court Act 1993

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Youth Court (Fees) Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Youth Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Youth Court (Fees) Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule—Fees

1 On commencement of proceedings for summary applications, summary offences, minor indictable offences or indictable offences \$111.00 plus if the complaint or information alleges more than one offence—\$28.00

2 On application for an adoption order under the *Adoption Act 1988* 

\$98.00

3 For making an enforcement order under the *Expiation* of Offences Act 1996

\$111.00

4 For copy of evidence

\$5.00 per page

5 For copy of reasons for judgment

\$5.00 per page

Note-

A party to proceedings is entitled to 1 copy of the reasons without charge.

6 For copy of any other document

\$2.30 per page

7 For computer disc containing record of court proceedings (including reasons for judgment)

The fee that would be payable under these regulations for a printed copy of the record of the proceedings plus \$60.50 for each day or part of a day on which the proceedings were recorded.

8 For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript

\$10.00 per page

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 105 of 2005

AGO0075/05CS

## Criminal Law (Sentencing) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Criminal Law (Sentencing) Act 1988

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Criminal Law (Sentencing) Regulations 2000

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Criminal Law (Sentencing) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Criminal Law (Sentencing) Regulations 2000

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

1	Reminder notice fee (section 65)	\$15.50
2	Issuance of penalty enforcement order—	
	(a) suspension of driver's licence (section 70E)	\$23.80

(b)	restriction on transacting business with Registrar of Motor Vehicles (section 70F)	\$23.80
(c)	order for sale of property (section 70G)	\$66.75
(d)	garnishee order (section 70H)	\$66.75
	1 1	
(a)	postage and telephone calls;	
(b)	travelling, accommodation and necessary meals;	
(c)	labour in seizing and removing seized property;	
(d)	cartage, storage and insurance of seized property;	
(e)	maintenance of seized animals;	
(f)	engaging assistants, appraisers, auctioneers or agents;	
(g)	advertisements;	
	(c) (d) Service of the co (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)	Vehicles (section 70F)  (c) order for sale of property (section 70G)  (d) garnishee order (section 70H)  Service and execution of penalty enforcement order—a fee comprised of the costs reasonably incurred in the service or execution, including—  (a) postage and telephone calls;  (b) travelling, accommodation and necessary meals;  (c) labour in seizing and removing seized property;  (d) cartage, storage and insurance of seized property;  (e) maintenance of seized animals;  (f) engaging assistants, appraisers, auctioneers or agents;

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

conducting sales of seized property.

## **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

(h)

No 106 of 2005

AGO0075/05CS

## **District Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the District Court Act 1991

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of District Court (Fees) Regulations 2004

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 to 3

Schedule 1—Fees in civil division

Schedule 2—Fees in criminal division

Schedule 3—Fees in criminal injuries division

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *District Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005*.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of District Court (Fees) Regulations 2004

## 4—Substitution of Schedules 1 to 3

Schedules 1 to 3 (inclusive)—delete the Schedules and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees in civil division

1 Summons fee—on filing a document by which application is made for discovery of documents before the commencement of a proceeding

\$67.00

2	proceed	ns fee—on filing a document by which a ing (other than a proceeding specified in clause 3 commenced	\$518.00
3	proceed been pa	ns fee—on filing a document by which a ing is commenced where a fee has previously id for filing an application for discovery of nts relating to the subject-matter of the ing	\$451.00
4		g an application under the <i>Consumer Credit</i> Australia) Code for any of the following:	\$117.00
	(a)	an order under section 34(5);	
	(b)	an order under section 35;	
	(c)	a determination and consequential orders under section 36(6);	
	(d)	leave under section 36(7);	
	(e)	an order under section 68;	
	(f)	an order under section 69;	
	(g)	a determination under section 77(1);	
	(h)	an order under section 79;	
	(i)	an authorisation under section 80(4)(c);	
	(j)	an order under section 88(2);	
	(k)	variation or revocation of an order under section 89;	
	(1)	an authorisation under section 91(1)(a);	
	(m)	an authorisation under section 92;	
	(n)	an order under section 93;	
	(o)	an authorisation under section 94(2);	
	(p)	an order under section 98;	
	(q)	an authorisation under section 156(2)(e);	
	(r)	a determination under section 157(1);	
	(s)	an order under section 171(1);	
	(t)	an extension of time under section 174;	
	(u)	a direction under Schedule 2, clause 17	
5	On filin	g a counterclaim or third party notice	\$518.00
6	docume	g or lodging an application, notice or other nt that does not relate to a proceeding for which s been paid under any of the preceding clauses	\$67.00
7		ing a certificate or certifying under seal that a nt is a true copy	\$35.75
8	For each Court	n request to search and inspect a record of the	\$9.80
9	For cop	y of evidence	\$5.00 per page

10 \$5.00 per page For copy of reasons for judgment (One copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.) 11 For copy of any other document \$2.30 per page The fee that would be 12 For computer disc containing record of court proceedings (including reasons for judgment) payable under these regulations for a printed copy of the record of the proceedings plus \$60.50 for each day or part of a day on which the proceedings were recorded. For production of transcript at request of a party where \$10.00 per page the Court does not require the transcript 14 Trial fee \$518.00 for each day or part of a day on which the trial is heard by the Court Note-The fee for a trial is the fee fixed under clause 14 as in force on the day on which the trial commenced and is payable by the plaintiff or appellant in the proceedings. However, if the Court or a registrar so orders, the fee is payable by another party to the proceedings or by the parties to the proceedings in the proportions ordered. 15 Suitors' Fund: on interest collected on funds in Court or If the interest is \$10.00 credited to an account. or less-no fee. (The fee is payable on transfer of interest out of the fund If the interest is over or account or at such earlier time or times as required by \$10.00—3% of the amount of interest. the Court.) 16 Taxation of costs: on lodging a bill of costs \$35.75 17 Taxation of costs: for taxing a bill of costs 5% of the amount allowed on taxation to the nearest dollar

## Schedule 2—Fees in criminal division

hours for urgent execution of process

for urgent hearing

For opening Registry (or Registry remaining open) after

For opening Court (or Court remaining open) after hours

18

19

1 (1) For each request to search and inspect a record of the Court

\$9.80

\$183.00 per hour or

\$551.00 per hour or

part of an hour

part of an hour

(2) A fee is not payable under subclause (1) for a request by or on behalf of a person accused or a victim of an offence that is the subject of proceedings before the

2 For sealing a certificate or certifying under seal that a document is a true copy

\$35.75

3 For copy of evidence

\$5.00 per page

4 For copy of reasons for judgment

\$5.00 per page

(One copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.)

5 For copy of any other document

\$2.30 per page

6 For computer disc containing record of court proceedings (including reasons for judgment)

The fee that would be payable under these regulations for a printed copy of the record of the proceedings plus \$60.50 for each day or part of a day on which the proceedings were recorded.

## Schedule 3—Fees in criminal injuries division

1 Summons fee—on filing a document by which a proceeding is commenced

\$67.00

2 (1) For each request to search and inspect a record of the Court

\$9.80

(2) A fee is not payable under subclause (1) for a request by or on behalf of a person accused or a victim of an offence that is the subject of proceedings before the Court.

3 For copy of evidence

\$5.00 per page

4 For copy of reasons for judgment

\$5.00 per page

(One copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.)

5 For copy of any other document

\$2.30 per page

6 For computer disc containing record of court proceedings (including reasons for judgment)

The fee that would be payable under these regulations for a printed copy of the record of the proceedings plus \$60.50 for each day or part of a day on which the proceedings were recorded.

7	For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript	\$10.00 per page
8	Taxation of costs: on lodging a bill of costs	\$35.75
9	Taxation of costs: for taxing a bill of costs	5% of the amount allowed on taxation to the nearest dollar
10	For opening Registry (or Registry remaining open) after hours for urgent execution of process	\$183.00 per hour or part of an hour
11	For opening Court (or Court remaining open) after hours for urgent hearing	\$551.00 per hour or part of an hour

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 107 of 2005

AGO0075/05CS

## **Associations Incorporation Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Associations Incorporation Act 1985

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Associations Incorporation Regulations 1993

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Associations Incorporation Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Associations Incorporation Regulations 1993

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

- 1 For inspection under section 6(2) of the Act of documents lodged by or in relation to an association \$18.50
- 2 For the supply of an uncertified copy, or the supply of a copy of an extract from, a document held by the Commission in relation to an association (in addition to the fee payable under clause 1)—

	(a)	for one page	\$4.00
	(b)	for each additional page or part of a page	\$1.00
3	an extra	supply of a certified copy of, or the supply of a certified copy of ct from, a document held by the Commission in relation to an on (in addition to the fee payable under clause 1)—	
	(a)	for one page	\$18.50
	(b)	for each additional page or part of a page	\$1.00
4	for which the power provision	ing an application to the Commission (not being an application h a fee is specified elsewhere in the Schedule) to exercise any of ers conferred on the Commission by the Act, or by those ns of the <i>Corporations Act 2001</i> of the Commonwealth applied act to an association	\$45.50
5		ing an application to the Minister to exercise any powers d on the Minister by the Act	\$45.50
6	On lodg	ing an application for incorporation under section 19 of the Act	\$134.00
7	On lodg	ing an application for amalgamation under section 22 of the Act	\$134.00
8	_	ing an application to register an alteration to rules under 24 of the Act (including an application to alter the name of an on)	\$45.50
9	For the a	approval of the Commission of an auditor under section 35(2)(b) ct	\$63.00
10	On lodg	ing a periodic return under section 36 of the Act	\$63.00
11	statemer	nitting to the Commission for examination a draft explanatory at prior to its registration under the provisions of the ations Act 2001 of the Commonwealth applied under section 40A ct	\$134.00
12		ing an application for the approval of the Commission for n of period under section 41C(4)(a) of the Act	\$47.25
13	distribut	sent of the Commission under section 43(1a) of the Act to e surplus assets of an association on winding up among members sociation	\$63.00
14		ing an application to deregister an association under 43A(1) of the Act	\$93.50
15		ing a request of the Commission under section 43A(5) of the Act ion to the fee payable under clause 14)	\$63.00
16		ing an application to the Commission to exercise the powers d by section 44A or 46 of the Act	\$63.00
17	For an a	ct done by the Commission—	
	(a)	representing a defunct association or its liquidator under section 44A of the Act	\$63.00
	(b)	under section 46 of the Act	\$63.00
18		ing an application to the Commission to exercise the power d by section 53 of the Act	\$63.00
19	On lodge Act	ing an application to reserve a name under section 53A(1) of the	\$93.50

20	On the late lodgment of a document (in addition to any lodgment fee provided by any other clause for the lodging of that document)—		
	(a)	if lodged within one month after the prescribed time	\$24.70
	(b)	if lodged more than one month but within three months after the prescribed time	\$50.50
	(c)	if lodged more than three months after the prescribed time	\$108.00
21		production by the Commission, pursuant to a subpoena, of a nt held by it in relation to an association	\$35.00
22		n two pages or less of the document produced (in addition to the able under clause 21)	\$1.00
23	•	act that the Commission is required or authorised to do on the of a person and for which a fee is not prescribed by any other	\$24.70

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 108 of 2005

AGO0076/05CS

# Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Variation Regulations 2005

under the Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Act 1996

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Births, Deaths and Marriages Registration Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule—Fees

Application to register change of adult's or child's name (section 24 or 25 of Act)

2	Application to register change of name under another law or by order of a court (section 27(2) of Act)	\$34
3	Application for correction of entry in Register (section 42 of Act)	\$34
4	Application for access to Register or provision of information extracted from Register (section 43 of Act)	By negotiation between Registrar and the person seeking the service
5	Application for search of entries made in Register about a particular registrable event within a 10 year period or part of a 10 year period (sections 44 and 46 of Act)—	
	(a) inclusive of issue of standard certificate on completion of search	\$34
	<ul><li>(b) inclusive of issue of commemorative certificate package on completion of search</li></ul>	\$47
6	Additional fee for giving priority to an application under clause 5(a)	\$26

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 109 of 2005

AGO0076/05CS

## **Business Names Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Business Names Act 1996

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Business Names Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Business Names Variation Regulations 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Business Names Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1 Section 8(1) of the Act—

	(a)	application fee for registration of a business name	\$128.00
1	(b)	application fee for renewal of registration of a business name	\$103.00
	(c)	late application fee (in addition to the fee payable under paragraph (a) or (b))	\$28.75
2 Fee	for i	ssue of a commemorative certificate of registration	\$46.25

3	Fee for replacement of a certificate of registration	\$18.50	
4	Section 8(4) of the Act—application for consent of the Minister	\$221.00	
5	Section 11(4) of the Act—		
	(a) inspection of a document lodged with the Commission under this Act or the repealed Act	\$18.50	
	(b) obtaining a copy of part of the register or of a document lodged with the Commission under the Act or the repealed Act—		
	(i) for the first sheet	\$18.50	
	(ii) for each additional sheet	\$1.00	
	(c) obtaining a certified copy of part of the register or of a document lodged with the Commission under the Act or the repealed Act—		
	(i) for the first sheet	\$18.50	
	(ii) for each additional sheet	\$1.00	
6	Section 12(1) of the Act—		
	(a) notification of a change of proprietor of a business name	\$26.75	
	(b) late lodgment of a notice (other than a notice of cessation of business under a business name)	\$28.75	
7	For any act that the Commission is required or authorised to do on the request of a person and for which a fee is not otherwise prescribed	\$18.50	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 110 of 2005

AGO0076/05CS

## **Co-operatives Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Co-operatives Act 1997

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Co-operatives Regulations 1997

4 Substitution of Schedule 5

Schedule 5—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Co-operatives Variation Regulations 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Co-operatives Regulations 1997

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 5

Schedule 5—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## **Schedule 5—Fees**

1	Application to Commission for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 17)	\$254.00
2	Application to Commission for approval of proposed rules (section 18)	\$128.00
3	Application to Commission for registration of proposed co-operative (section 19)	\$128.00

4	Application to Commission for registration—existing body corporate (section 24)	\$128.00
5	Issue of duplicate certificate (section 35)	\$32.00
6	Application for Commission's certificate (section 61(2))	\$32.00
7	Application for Commission's consent (section 72(2))	\$63.00
8	Application to Commission for approval of alteration to rules (section 107)—	
	(a) for each rule	\$10.00
	(b) maximum fee	\$100.00
9	Registration of rule alteration (section 110(2))	\$32.00
10	Issue of certificate of registration of rule alteration (section 110(4))	\$32.00
11	Application to the Commission for determination of a member's eligibility to vote (section 122(3))	\$128.00
12	Application to Commission for exemption (section 142)	\$254.00
13	Application to Commission for exemption (section 144B)	\$254.00
14	Application to Commission for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 150)	\$254.00
15	Application to Commission for review (section 181)	\$254.00
16	Lodgment of special resolution (section 192)	\$32.00
17	Application to Commission for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 195)	\$254.00
18	Application to Commission for exemption (section 234)	\$254.00
19	Approval of office where register to be kept (section 240(1)(d))	\$32.00
20	Lodgment of annual report (section 244)	\$63.00
21	Application to Commission for approval of abbreviation or elaboration of name (section 248(e))	\$32.00
22	Application to Commission for approval of name change (section 250(1))	\$32.00
23	Application to Commission for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 253)	\$254.00
24	Filing a disclosure document under section 727 of the Corporations Act as applied by section 258 of the Act	\$1 805.00
25	Application to Commission for exemption (section 258(4))	\$254.00
26	Application to Commission for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 259)	\$254.00
27	Application to Commission for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 262)	\$254.00
28	Application to Commission for exemption (section 270)	\$254.00
29	Application to Commission for approval of maximum share interest (section 275(5))	\$254.00
30	Inspection of register of notifiable interests—fee payable to the cooperative (section 280(3)(b))	\$32.00

31	Application to Commission for exemption (section 284)	\$254.00
32	Application to Commission for approval of share offer (section 286)	\$254.00
33	Application to Commission for extension of period of offer (section 288(5))	\$63.00
34	Application to Commission for exemption (section 292)	\$254.00
35	Application for Commission's consent (section 295(2))	\$63.00
36	Application to Commission for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 296(2))	\$254.00
37	Application to Commission for exemption (section 296(4))	\$254.00
38	Application to Commission for approval of merger or transfer of engagements (section 297)	\$254.00
39	Application to Commission for exemption (section 302(3))	\$254.00
40	Filing an application for the Commission to exercise powers conferred by section 601AE or section 601AF of the Corporations Act as applied by section 311 of the Act	\$248.00
41	Application to Commission for exemption (section 312(2))	\$254.00
42	Application for Commission's permission (section 336(1))	\$63.00
43	Application to Commission for direction (section 338(1)(f))	\$254.00
44	Application to Commission for approval of explanatory statement (section 345(1))	\$635.00
45	Application to Commission for registration (section 364)	\$128.00
46	Application to Commission for registration (section 365)	\$635.00
47	Application to Commission for certificate of compliance (section 373)	\$762.00
48	Application for South Australian Registrar's consent (section 376)	\$63.00
49	Application to South Australian Registrar for approval of proposed disclosure statement (section 377(2))	\$254.00
50	Application to South Australian Registrar for exemption (section 377(4))	\$254.00
51	Application to South Australian Registrar for approval of merger or transfer of engagements (section 378)	\$254.00
52	Application to Commission for special meeting (section 415(1)(a))	\$254.00
53	Application to Commission for inquiry (section 415(1)(b))	\$635.00
54	Application to Commission for extension or abridgment of time (section 421)	\$63.00
55	Inspection of a register or document (section 427(1)(a) and (b))	\$18.50
56	Copy of, or copy of an extract from, an entry in a register, a certificate of incorporation, an acknowledgment of registration or a document held or registered by the Commission (section 427(1)(c)) (in addition to the fee payable under clause 54)—	
	(a) for a certified copy—	
	(i) for one page	\$18.50
	(ii) for each additional page or part of a page	\$1.00

	(b) for an uncertified copy—	
	(i) for one page	\$4.00
	(ii) for each additional page or part of a page	\$1.00
57	Application to Commission for permission to give notice by newspaper (section 451(2)(c)(iii))	\$63.00
58	Lodgment of notice of charge (Schedule 3, clause 13(1))	\$88.50
59	Lodgment of notice of acquisition of property subject to charge (Schedule 3, clause 17(1))	\$89.00
60	Application to Commission for extension of time (Schedule 3, clause 20(3)(c))	\$63.00
61	Lodgment of notice of assignment of charge (Schedule 3, clause 36(1))	\$45.25
62	Lodgment of notice of variation of charge (Schedule 3, clause 36(2))	\$45.25
63	Lodgment of memorandum of discharge (Schedule 3, clause 37(2))	\$45.25
64	Request for certificate (Schedule 3, clause 42)	\$32.00
65	Application to Commission for exemption (Schedule 3, clause 44)	\$254.00
66	Application to Commission for direction (Schedule 4, clause 3(1)(f))	\$254.00
67	Inspection of managing controller's report (Schedule 4, clause 12(3)(b))	\$18.50
68	Late lodgment of a document (in addition to any lodgment fee provided by any other item for the lodging of that document)—	
	(a) if lodged within one month after the prescribed time	\$37.00
	(b) if lodged more than one month but within three months after the prescribed time	\$115.00
	(c) if lodged more than three months after the prescribed time	\$193.00

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on  $26\,\mathrm{May}\ 2005$ 

No 111 of 2005

AGO0076/05CS

## Fees Regulation (Proclaimed Managers and Justices) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Fees Regulation Act 1927

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Proclaimed Managers and Justices) Regulations 2002

- 4 Variation of regulation 4—Fee for appointment of proclaimed managers
- 5 Variation of regulation 5—Fee for appointment of certain justices

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Fees Regulation (Proclaimed Managers and Justices) Variation Regulations* 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation in accordance with section 5 of the *Fees Regulation Act 1927*.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Proclaimed Managers and Justices) Regulations 2002

## 4—Variation of regulation 4—Fee for appointment of proclaimed managers

Regulation 4—delete "\$21.80" and substitute:

\$22.40

## 5—Variation of regulation 5—Fee for appointment of certain justices

Regulation 5—delete "\$33.20" and substitute:

\$34.25

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 112 of 2005

AGO0076/05CS

# Partnership (Limited Partnerships) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Partnership Act 1891

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Partnership (Limited Partnerships) Regulations 1997

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Partnership (Limited Partnerships) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Partnership (Limited Partnerships) Regulations 1997

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule—Fees

Application for registration of limited partnership where the application is to operate also as an application for registration of the firm-name under the *Business Names Act 1996* (section 52(1) and (3) of the Act)

\$255.00

2	Application for registration of limited partnership in any other case (section 52(1) of the Act)	\$128.00	
3	Inspection of Register of Limited Partnerships (section 54(3) of the Act)	\$18.50	
4	Late lodgement of notice of change in registered particulars (section 55 of the Act)—		
	(a) if lodged no more than 1 month late	\$24.75	
	(b) if lodged more than 1 month late but no more than 3 months late	\$50.50	
	(c) if lodged more than 3 months late	\$108.00	
5	Issue of certificate as to formation and composition of limited partnership or other particulars in Register (section 56 of the Act)	\$20.00 for first page plus \$1.00 per additional page	
6	Photocopy of certificate as to formation and composition of limited partnership or other particulars in Register (section 56 of the Act)	\$20.00 for first page plus \$1.00 per additional page	
7	Application for extension or exemption (section 81 of the Act)	\$60.50	

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 113 of 2005

AGO0076/05CS

# Security and Investigation Agents Variation Regulations 2005

under the Security and Investigation Agents Act 1995

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Security and Investigation Agents Regulations 1996

- 4 Variation of regulation 21—Requirement to submit audit statement or declaration if no trust account kept
- 5 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Security and Investigation Agents Variation Regulations 2005.

## 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Security and Investigation Agents Regulations 1996

## 4—Variation of regulation 21—Requirement to submit audit statement or declaration if no trust account kept

Regulation 21(4)—delete "\$360" and substitute:

\$250

\$18.50

## 5—Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

1	Application fee for licence (section 8(1)(b) of the Act)	
	(a) for a natural person	\$325.00
	(b) for a body corporate	\$525.00
2	Licence fee—payable before the granting of a licence under Part 2 of the Act—	
	(a) for a natural person—	
	(i) if licence subject to employee condition or employee (supervision condition)	\$134.00
	(ii) in any other case	\$329.00
	(b) for a body corporate	\$496.00
	If the period between the grant of the licence and the next date for payment of a fee under section 12 of the Act is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the additional fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
3	Annual fee (section 12(2)(a) of the Act)—	
	(a) for a natural person—	
	(i) if licence subject to employee condition or employee (supervision condition)	\$210.00
	(ii) in any other case	\$440.00
	(b) for a body corporate	\$575.00
	If the period between a date for payment of a fee under section 12 of the Act and the next date for payment of the fee under that section (as nominated by the Commissioner) is less than or more than 12 months, a pro rata adjustment is to be made to the amount of the fee by applying the proportion that the length of that period bears to 12 months.	
4	Default penalty fee (section 12(3) of the Act)	\$119.00
5	Application fee for alteration to conditions of licence (section 10 of the Act)	\$197.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

6

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

Fee for replacement of licence

No 114 of 2005

AGO0076/05CS & AGO0265/03CS

# **Sexual Reassignment Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Sexual Reassignment Act 1988

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Sexual Reassignment Regulations 2000

- 4 Variation of regulation 6—Applications for recognition certificates
- 5 Variation of regulation 7—Registration of certificates

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Sexual Reassignment Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Sexual Reassignment Regulations 2000

#### 4—Variation of regulation 6—Applications for recognition certificates

Regulation 6(1)(b)(iv)—delete "\$59" and substitute:

\$61

#### 5—Variation of regulation 7—Registration of certificates

Regulation 7—delete "\$35" and substitute:

\$36

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 115 of 2005

# **Cremation Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Cremation Act 2000

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Cremation Regulations 2001

4 Variation of regulation 8—Tagging of body by doctor

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Cremation Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation 4 months after the day on which they are made.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Cremation Regulations 2001

#### 4—Variation of regulation 8—Tagging of body by doctor

Regulation 8(1)—delete subregulation (1) and substitute:

- (1) A doctor who issues a Form 3 certificate that a deceased died from natural causes may—
  - (a) attach to the body of the deceased a tag bearing the deceased's name and date of death; or
  - (b) in circumstances where it is not practicable to attach a tag to the body of the deceased, mark on the body of the deceased in indelible ink the deceased's name and date of death.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 116 of 2005

AGO0334/04CSTemp1

# Bills of Sale (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Bills of Sale Act 1886

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Bills of Sale (Fees) Regulations 1995

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Bills of Sale (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Bills of Sale (Fees) Regulations 1995

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### **Schedule—Fees**

I	For regis	tering or	filing—
---	-----------	-----------	---------

(a)	a Bill of Sale	\$52.00
(b)	the discharge, extension, transfer or renewal of a Bill of Sale	\$52.00
(c)	any other document	\$52.00
For withdrawing a Bill of Sale from registration or filing \$4.		

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 117 of 2005

\$265.00

#### South Australia

# **Community Titles Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Community Titles Act 1996

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Community Titles Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule 2

Schedule 2—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Community Titles Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Community Titles Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 2

1

Schedule 2—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 2—Fees

fee for issue of certificates of title) (section 14)

2 Fee for the issue of a certificate of title for each lot generated (including a development lot but not including a certificate of title generated for any road, street, reserve vesting in a council or other authority) by the deposit of a community plan or the amalgamation of 2 or more adjacent community plans or the cancellation of a community plan

Application to deposit plan of community division (excluding the

3	Fee for the issue of each certificate of title for each lot (including a development lot) on amendment of a community plan	\$59.00
4	Fee for the examination of a plan of community division or amendment of a community plan pursuant to section 58 (unless paid on pre-examination)—	
	(a) where there are 5 lots or less	\$327.00
	(b) where there are more than 5 lots	\$654.00
5	Fee for the deposit of a plan of community division	\$101.00
6	Fee for the examination of an outer boundary survey plan	\$654.00
7	Fee for filing an outer boundary survey plan	\$101.00
8	Fee for the Registrar-General to examine a plan to be lodged with an application under this Act before the application is lodged, to determine whether the Registrar-General approves the plan for lodging (section 144)—	
	(a) where there are 5 lots or less	\$327.00
	(b) where there are more than 5 lots	\$654.00
9	Fee for re-examination of plan when amended after approval for deposit is given	\$101.00
10	Fee for the examination of a plan to amend a plan of community division (section 52)	\$327.00
11	Fee for the examination of a filed plan delineating the outer boundaries of a primary parcel for cancellation of a plan (section 65)	\$327.00
12	Fee for filing plan for the cancellation of a community plan	\$101.00
13	Fee for the examination of a plan of amalgamation	\$327.00
14	Fee for the deposit of a plan of amalgamation	\$101.00
15	Lodgement of scheme description	\$101.00
16	Lodgement of by-laws	\$101.00
17	Lodgement of development contract	\$101.00
18	Lodgement of resolution to elect to use the <i>Community Titles</i> Act 1996	\$101.00
19	Lodgement of application to amend schedule of lot entitlements (section 21)	\$101.00
20	Lodgement to amend a scheme description (section 31)	\$101.00
21	Lodgement to vary by-laws (section 39)	\$101.00
22	Lodgement of agreement to vary or terminate a development contract (section 50)	\$101.00
23	Maximum fee for the purchase from a corporation of a scheme description	\$33.50
24	Fee to be charged by Registrar-General for the purchase of a scheme description by the public from the Lands Titles Office	\$6.70
25	Maximum fee for the purchase from a corporation of by-laws (The inspection of by-laws must be free of charge) (section 44)	\$33.50
26	Fee to be charged by Registrar-General for the purchase by the public of by-laws (section 44)	\$6.70

27	Maximum fee charged by corporation for the purchase of a development contract that is in force (inspection must be free of charge) (section 51)	\$33.50
28	Fee charged by the Registrar-General for the purchase by the public of a copy of a development contract (section 51)	\$6.70
29	Fee for an application for the amendment of a community plan (excluding issue of certificates of title) (section 52)	\$199.00
30	Fee for an application for the amendment of a plan pursuant to a development contract (excluding issue of certificates of title) (section 58)	\$199.00
31	Fee for an application for amalgamation of community plans (excluding fee for the issue of certificates of title) (section 60)	\$199.00
32	Fee for application to the Registrar-General for the cancellation of a community plan (excluding fee for issue of certificate of title) (section 65)	\$199.00
33	Fee for application to the Registrar-General for the cancellation of a community plan pursuant to order of court (excluding fee for issue of certificate of title) (section 67)	\$199.00
34	Notice of appointment of administrator	\$101.00
35	Notice of removal or replacement of administrator	\$101.00
36	Lodgement of any other document required by the Act	\$101.00

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 118 of 2005

\$101.00

#### South Australia

# Real Property (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Real Property Act 1886

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Real Property (Fees) Regulations 2002

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Real Property (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Real Property (Fees) Regulations 2002

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule—Fees

- For the registration or entry of each instrument (irrespective of the number of folios to be endorsed)—other than any registration or entry specifically provided for
- 2 For registering a transfer—
  - (a) where the consideration, or the value as assessed under the *Stamp Duties Act 1923*—

		(i)	does not exceed \$5 000	\$101.00
	(	(ii)	does not exceed \$20 000	\$112.00
	(	iii)	does not exceed \$40 000	\$125.00
	(	iv)	exceeds \$40 000	\$179.00
		_	\$56 for every \$10 000 (or part of \$10 000) ve \$50 000	
	(b)	adju or w (exc	tree the Commissioner of State Taxation has added the transfer to be exempt from stamp duty where no <i>ad valorem</i> stamp duty is payable the transfers assessed pursuant to ion 71C of the <i>Stamp Duties Act 1923</i> )	\$101.00
	(c)	71C	has been assessed pursuant to sections 71CA, 1B, 71CBA or 71CC of the <i>Stamp Duties</i> 1923	\$101.00
3	On lodgr Act	nent (	of a caveat under sections 39, 80F or 223D of the	\$101.00
4			it, or noting the revocation, of a duplicate or of a power of attorney	\$101.00
5	a Crown	lease	ation for the issue of a substituted lessee's copy of or duplicate certificate of title (exclusive of the ising in the Gazette)	\$101.00
6	For the readdress	egistr	ration of an application to note a change of	no fee
7			foreclosure order (exclusive of the cost of the Gazette)	\$173.00
8	For a cer	tified	copy of—	
	(a)	an o	original certificate of title under section 51A of Act	\$17.90
	(b)	a sta	atement under section 51D of the Act	\$17.90
9	Unless o	therw	vise specified—	
	(a)	a ne	cept where paragraph (b) applies) for the issue of w certificate of title or a substituted lessee's copy Crown lease or duplicate certificate of title	\$59.00
	(b)	ama	the issue of a new certificate of title on the lgamation of allotments wholly within the Mount by Catchment Area	no fee
10	For the is	ssue o	of a certificate of title—	
	(a)		ited or ordinary) on the land first being brought er the Act	no fee
	(b)		corporation or district council for a road, street eserve	no fee
	(c)	conv	ffect correction or amendment of title or for the venience of the Lands Titles Registration Office ffecting registration or redesignation	no fee

	(d)	under Part 5 Division 2 of the Act (but only if the volume and folio numbers remain the same and the title is not issued to replace one that has been lost or destroyed)	no fee
11		w certificate of title issued as a result of the existing ng full of endorsements	no fee
12	For the General	deposit or acceptance for filing by the Registrar—	
	(a)	of a plan of amalgamation of allotments wholly within the Mount Lofty Catchment Area	no fee
	(b)	of any other plan	\$101.00
13	Unless of	otherwise specified, for the examination—	
	(a)	of a plan of survey certified correct by a licensed surveyor and lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General (for freehold or Crown land)—plus a further \$327, payable by the surveyor, if the plan is relodged or resubmitted following rejection by the Registrar-General (However, the Registrar-General may waive or reduce the further fee if he or she considers that appropriate in a particular case having regard to the work involved in examining the relodged or resubmitted plan.)	\$654.00
	(b)	of an uncertified data plan (except a plan of a kind referred to in paragraph (c)) lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General (for freehold or Crown land)	\$327.00
	(c)	of an uncertified data plan lodged with or submitted to the Registrar-General for the amalgamation of allotments wholly within the Mount Lofty Catchment Area	no fee
	(d)	of a plan lodged with or submitted to the Registrar- General for the purposes of a lease of part of an allotment	\$132.00
14	For the	examination—	
	(a)	of a plan of survey certified correct by a licensed surveyor and lodged with the Registrar-General for information purposes only	no fee
	(b)	of an uncertified data plan lodged with the Registrar- General for information purposes only	no fee
	(c)	of a plan of survey certified by a licensed surveyor and lodged with the Registrar-General by the Surveyor-General	no fee
	(d)	of plans submitted under the Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991	no fee
15		otherwise specified, for the deposit or acceptance for any plan (for freehold or Crown land)	\$101.00
16		deposit or acceptance for filing of a plan prepared by strar-General or under the Registrar-General's ation	no fee
17		withdrawal of any instrument, application or plan ed for registration, deposit or acceptance for filing	\$42.70

18	licensec	withdrawal of any plan of survey certified correct by a d surveyor and lodged with or submitted to the ar-General for examination	\$88.00
19		application to the Registrar-General to issue a summons ection 220(3) of the Act	\$145.00
20		application under section 146 of the Act (exclusive of to fregistration of the instrument of discharge)	\$145.00
21	For sear	rching the Register Book—	
	(a)	comprising a search statement from the Registrar- General's unregistered document system, a copy of the original certificate of title and a check search	\$15.50
	(b)	comprising a search of the electronic records of the original certificate of title, the Registrar-General's unregistered document system and a check search (including the transmission fee)	\$15.50
22	For a co	ору—	
	(a)	of a registered instrument	\$6.70
	(b)	of a plan deposited or accepted for filing by the Registrar-General	\$6.70
	(c)	of a cancelled original certificate of title	\$6.70
	(d)	of any instrument, entry, document or record not otherwise specifically provided for	\$6.70
23	-	uesting any of the following under the Automated ation Indexing and Enquiry System (ARIES):	
	(a)	a check search of a specified certificate of title	no fee
	(b)	the details of a specified document	\$5.50
	(c)	a search of the numbers assigned to documents associated with a specified instrument	\$5.50
	(d)	the location of a specified document or plan	no fee
	(e)	the details of a specified plan	\$5.50
	(f)	a list of the numbers assigned to plans lodged in respect of a specified Section of land in a Hundred	\$5.50
	(g)	the details of the delivery of a specified item	no fee
	(h)	the details of the delivery of documents relating to—	
		(i) a specified agent code	no fee
		(ii) a specified delivery slip	no fee
	(i)	the details of a specified agent code	no fee
	(j)	in respect of a specified document—a search of—	
		(i) the series in which the document was lodged; and	no fee
		(ii) any other series into which the document may, subsequently, have been moved, prior to registration of the document	no fee
	(k)	a search of the location of, and the numbers assigned to, documents lodged in a specified series	no fee

	<ol> <li>a search to ascertain the name of the registered proprietor of specified land prior to ordering a search of the Register Book</li> </ol>	no fee
	(m) a record of all documents lodged or registered under a specified name	\$5.50
24	For requesting a search under the Torrens Automated Title System ( <i>TATS</i> )	no fee
25	For the return of a cancelled duplicate certificate of title	\$23.00
26	For advertising in the Gazette—	
	(a) an application for a foreclosure	no fee
	(b) an application under Part 4 of the Act	no fee
	(c) an application under Part 7A of the Act	no fee
27	For reporting to a local government authority—	
	(a) a change of ownership of land (for each change of ownership reported)	\$1.50
	<ul><li>(b) a converted certificate of title (for each converted certificate of title reported)</li></ul>	\$1.50
	(c) on the subdivision of land—details of—	\$1.50
	(i) cancelled certificates of title; and	
	<ul><li>(ii) newly created parcels of land and new certificates of title issued in respect of those parcels; and</li></ul>	
	<ul><li>(iii) the valuation assessment for each new certificate of title issued,</li></ul>	
	(for each valuation assessment reported)	
28	For reporting to the South Australian Water Corporation—	
	(a) a change of ownership of land (for each change of ownership reported)	\$1.50
	(b) on the subdivision of land—details of—	\$1.50
	(i) cancelled certificates of title; and	
	<ul><li>(ii) newly created parcels and new certificates of title issued in respect of those parcels,</li></ul>	
	(for each new certificate of title reported)	
29	For providing miscellaneous reports of changes of ownership of land to government agencies (other than the South Australian Water Corporation)	no fee
30	For providing reports of Heritage Agreements to the Department for Environment and Heritage	no fee
31	For reporting to ETSA Utilities a change of ownership of land (plus an additional fee of \$3.25 for each change of ownership reported)	\$23.00
32	For a copy of any of the following documents under the <i>Bills of Sale Act 1886</i> :	
	(a) a registered Bill of Sale or a discharge, extension or renewal of a Bill of Sale	\$6.70

	(b) any other document	\$6.70
33	For a copy of a plan under the Strata Titles Act 1988	\$6.70
34	For a copy of a plan under the Community Titles Act 1996	\$6.70

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 119 of 2005

# **Real Property (Land Division) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Real Property Act 1886

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Real Property (Land Division) Regulations 1995

- 4 Variation of regulation 7—Submission of outer boundary survey plan
- 5 Variation of regulation 14—Fees
- 6 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Real Property (Land Division) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Real Property (Land Division) Regulations 1995

#### 4—Variation of regulation 7—Submission of outer boundary survey plan

Regulation 7(1)(b)—delete paragraph (b) and substitute:

(b) the appropriate fees prescribed by the *Real Property (Fees) Regulations 2002*.

#### 5—Variation of regulation 14—Fees

Regulation 14—delete "clause 3" and substitute:

clause 2

#### 6—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 Application for the division of land—
  - (a) where deposit of the plan of division will not vest an estate or interest in land (except a road reserve) in any person
  - (b) in all other cases \$265
- 2 Application for the amalgamation of allotments

\$101

However, there is no fee for an application for the amalgamation of allotments that are wholly within the Mount Lofty Catchment Area.

#### Note-

Fees for the examination of the plan of division or amalgamation, deposit or acceptance for filing of the plan and for the issue of new certificates of title are payable under the *Real Property (Fees) Regulations 2002*.

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 120 of 2005

# Registration of Deeds (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Registration of Deeds Act 1935

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Registration of Deeds (Fees) Regulations 2004

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Registration of Deeds (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Registration of Deeds (Fees) Regulations 2004

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

#### Schedule 1—Fees

- 1 For registering—
  - (a) an instrument of conveyance, a legal or equitable mortgage or any other instrument \$101.00

	(b)	an instrument of conveyance, mortgage or other instrument that has been dated 30 years or more prior to production for registration	No fee
2	For depo	siting a deed, agreement, writing, assurance, map or plan	\$15.00
3	For enrol	lling an instrument	\$15.00
4	For a copenrolled	by of an instrument that has been registered, deposited or	\$6.70

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 121 of 2005

# Strata Titles (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Strata Titles Act 1988

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

### Part 2—Variation of Strata Titles (Fees) Regulations 2001

4 Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—Fees payable to Registrar-General

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Strata Titles (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Strata Titles (Fees) Regulations 2001

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule

Schedule—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# Schedule—Fees payable to Registrar-General

1	For lodgement of an application for—			
	(a)	the deposit of a strata plan	\$101	
	(b)	amendment of a strata plan	\$101	
	(c)	amalgamation of 2 or more strata plans	\$101	
2	2 For the examination of—			
	(a)	a strata plan	\$327	

	(b)	an amendment to a strata plan	\$327
	(c)	an amalgamation of 2 or more strata plans	\$327
3	For the o	leposit of a strata plan	\$101
4	For the i	ssue of a certificate of title—	
	(a)	for each unit comprised in a strata plan	\$59
	(b)	for each unit added to a strata plan or amended by a strata plan	\$59
	(c)	for each unit comprised in an amalgamated plan	\$59
5	For the a	amendment of a schedule of unit entitlements	\$101
6		cancellation of a strata plan (including fees for entering y memorials in the Register Book)	\$294 plus \$59 for each certificate of title issued
7	_	ing a certified copy of a special resolution of a strata ion amending the articles of the corporation	\$101
8	On lodge the Act	ing any other document with the Registrar-General under	\$101
9	On givin	ng written notice—	
	(a)	of the appointment of an administrator of a strata corporation	\$101
	(b)	of the removal or replacement of an administrator of a strata corporation	\$101

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 122 of 2005

# **Worker's Liens Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Worker's Liens Act 1893

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Worker's Liens Regulations 1999

4 Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—Fees

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Worker's Liens Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Worker's Liens Regulations 1999

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 1

Schedule 1—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## Schedule 1—Fees

1	For lodging a notice of lien (section 10(3))	\$101.00
2	For entering a memorandum of cessation of lien (section 16)	\$101.00
3	If a notice of lien or an application to enter a memorandum of cessation of lien is withdrawn before the appropriate memorandum is entered, the fee payable is reduced to	\$42.70

#### Note—

A fee is payable for entering a memorandum of withdrawal of lien under the *Real Property Act 1886*.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 123 of 2005

# **Public Trustee Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Public Trustee Act 1995

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Public Trustee Regulations 1995

4 Variation of Schedule 2—Commission and fees

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Public Trustee Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of *Public Trustee Regulations 1995*

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 2—Commission and fees

Schedule 2, Part 2, clause 12—delete clause 12 and substitute:

The fees set out in the table are maximum fees.

1	For the preparation of—			
	(a)	a contract for the sale of estate property	\$151.82	
	(b)	a tenancy agreement	\$151.82	
	(c)	a deed	\$151.82	
2	For the preparation of a document for the purposes of the <i>Real Property Act 1886</i> (other than a document referred to in clause 1)		\$135.45	
3	For the j	production of a certificate of title	\$115.45	
4	For the preparation of a certificate of interest or any other certificate		\$50.00	

5	Annual or fund	\$118.00		
6		For undertaking work in relation to taxation (per hour, or part of an hour)		
7	For the preparation of an affidavit required to satisfy the requirements of the Registrar of Probates (other than an executor's or administrator's oath)  \$157.2\$			
8	For securing, prior to the sale of real or leasehold estate, such information as is necessary to comply with all legal requirements			
	Note—			
		The fee referred to in item 8 will not be charged where an agent or auctioneer employed by the Public Trustee in connection with the sale charges agent's commission.		
9	For repl	acing lost documents (per document)	\$231.82	
10	For—			
	(a)	a detailed inspection and report on a building (per hour, or part of an hour)	\$103.64	
	(b)	an inspection of any other property (per hour, or part of an hour)	\$103.64	
11	For services in connection with processing an application for a loan that is to be secured by a mortgage over property—			
	(a)	application fee	\$500.00	
	(b)	fee for valuation of property	\$1 000.00	
Not	Note—			
	1	With respect to a service, or action taken, by the	he Public	

- With respect to a service, or action taken, by the Public Trustee and not otherwise dealt with in these regulations, a fee may be charged as agreed with the person appointing the Public Trustee or requesting the Public Trustee to perform the service or take the action.
- In all cases, the Public Trustee's fees are payable in addition to commission and expenses paid to auctioneers or agents, legal costs and cash disbursed for postage, advertising, surveys, valuation, travelling expenses and other disbursements properly incurred in the administration, management or control of the estate, trust, fund or property to which the charge relates.

#### Note-

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 124 of 2005

# Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Fees Regulation Act 1927

#### **Contents**

#### Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

# Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees) Regulations 2002

- 4 Variation of regulation 3—Fee under Administration and Probate Act
- 5 Variation of regulation 4—Fee under Guardianship and Administration Act

# Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees) Variation Regulations* 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation in accordance with section 5 of the *Fees Regulation Act 1927*.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Fees Regulation (Public Trustee Administration Fees) Regulations 2002

#### 4—Variation of regulation 3—Fee under Administration and Probate Act

Regulation 3(1)—delete "\$97.50" and substitute:

\$100.50

#### 5—Variation of regulation 4—Fee under Guardianship and Administration Act

Regulation 4(1)—delete "\$97.50" and substitute:

\$100.50

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 125 of 2005

# Valuation of Land (Valuation Roll) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Valuation of Land Act 1971

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

#### Part 2—Variation of Valuation of Land Regulations 1991

4 Variation of Schedule 2

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Valuation of Land (Valuation Roll) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations come into operation on the day on which they are made.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Valuation of Land Regulations 1991

#### 4—Variation of Schedule 2

Schedule 2, item 1(1) and (2)—delete components (1) and (2) and substitute:

(1) For a copy of the valuation roll containing valuations to be adopted for rating or taxing purposes (section 21 of the Act)—per \$10 000 of capital value (even if the request under that section is made for rating or taxing purposes based on some other value)

However, if a fee payable by a council for the 2004/2005 or 2005/2006 financial years would, in a particular financial year, amount to an increase exceeding 10 per cent of the fee payable by that council under section 21 of the Act for the immediately preceding financial year, the fee payable by the council will be reduced so that the council only pays the fee payable by that council for that immediately preceding financial year plus 10 per cent.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

#### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 126 of 2005

MAS05/007CS

# **Magistrates Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Magistrates Court Act 1991

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Magistrates Court (Fees) Regulations 2004

4 Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedule 1—Fees in Civil (General Claims) Division and Civil (Minor Claims) Division

Schedule 2—Fees in Criminal Division

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Magistrates Court (Fees) Variation Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

# Part 2—Variation of Magistrates Court (Fees) Regulations 2004

#### 4—Substitution of Schedules 1 and 2

Schedules 1 and 2—delete the Schedules and substitute:

# Schedule 1—Fees in Civil (General Claims) Division and Civil (Minor Claims) Division

1	For issuing a Final Notice of Claim under the rules	\$12.00
2	On commencement of minor civil action	\$79.00
3	On lodging a counterclaim or a third party notice in a minor civil action	\$79.00

4	On commencement of any other action under Magistrates Court Act 1991	\$149.00
5	On lodging a counterclaim or a third party notice in any other action under <i>Magistrates Court Act 1991</i>	\$149.00
6	For issuing and administering an investigation or examination summons under <i>Magistrates Court Act 1991</i>	\$30.00
7	On commencement of action under any other Act or issuing a summons on such action	\$79.00
8	On lodging a counterclaim or a third party notice in any action under any other Act	\$79.00
9	For publishing advertisement	actual costs reasonably incurred
10	For each request to search and inspect a record of the Court	\$9.80
11	For copy of evidence	\$5.00 per page
12	For copy of reasons for judgment (One copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.)	\$5.00 per page
13	For copy of any other document	\$2.30 per page
14	For computer disc containing record of court proceedings (including reasons for judgment)	The fee that would be payable under these regulations for a printed copy of the record of the proceedings plus \$60.50 for each day or part of a day on which the proceedings were recorded.
15	For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript	\$10.00 per page
16	Taxation of costs: on lodging a bill of costs (other than in a minor civil action)	\$35.75
17	For opening Registry (or Registry remaining open) after hours for urgent execution of process	\$183.00 per hour or part of an hour
18	For opening Court (or Court remaining open) after hours for urgent hearing	\$551.00 per hour or part of an hour

# **Schedule 2—Fees in Criminal Division**

1	applications, summary offences, minor indictable offences or indictable offences	information alleges more than one offence—\$28.00
2	For making an enforcement order under the Expiation of Offences Act 1996	\$111.00
3	For issuing a warrant of commitment	\$30.50
4	For copy of evidence	\$5.00 per page
5	For copy of reasons for judgment (One copy will be supplied to a party to the proceedings free of charge.)	\$5.00 per page

6	For co	py of	any	other	document

7 For computer disc containing record of court proceedings (including reasons for judgment)

\$2.30 per page

The fee that would be payable under these regulations for a printed copy of the record of the proceedings plus \$60.50 for each day or part of a day on which the proceedings were recorded.

For production of transcript at request of a party where the Court does not require the transcript

\$10.00 per page

9 For each request to search and inspect a record of the Court \$9.80

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

### Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 127 of 2005

AGO0227/04CS & AGO0075/05CS

# **Sheriff's Regulations 2005**

under the Sheriff's Act 1978

#### **Contents**

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Interpretation
- 4 Participating bodies
- 5 Safe keeping and disposal of items
- 6 Fees

Schedule 1—Fees

Schedule 2—Revocation of Sheriff's Regulations 1992

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the Sheriff's Regulations 2005.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Interpretation

In these regulations—

Act means the Sheriff's Act 1978.

#### 4—Participating bodies

For the purposes of the definition of *participating body* in section 4(1) of the Act, the following are declared to be participating bodies:

- (a) Industrial Relations Commission of South Australia;
- (b) Workers Compensation Tribunal.

#### 5—Safe keeping and disposal of items

- (1) If a person fails, on leaving the premises of a participating body, to collect items held in safe keeping while the person is on the premises (see section 9G(h)(i) of the Act), the sheriff—
  - (a) must take reasonable care, for a period of 30 days, of the items (other than perishable items); and
  - (b) may, in the sheriff's absolute discretion—
    - (i) in the case of perishable items—destroy or otherwise dispose of the items;
    - (ii) in any other case—destroy or otherwise dispose of the items after taking reasonable care of them for the period referred to in paragraph (a).

- (2) The items may be kept at a place considered appropriate by the sheriff and, before an item is released to a person, the person may be required to produce satisfactory evidence of identity and entitlement to the item.
- (3) If the items are sold, the net proceeds of the sale must be paid into the Consolidated Account.

#### 6—Fees

- (1) The fees set out in Schedule 1 are payable to the sheriff.
- (2) The sheriff may also recover expenses reasonably incurred by the sheriff in the performance of duties imposed on the sheriff by or under the Act or any other Act.

#### Examples—

Expenses reasonably incurred that the sheriff may recover include—

- (a) meals while travelling;
- (b) labour and removal of goods;
- (c) cartage;
- (d) storage;
- (e) insurance;
- (f) advertisements;
- (g) seizure and maintenance of animals;
- (h) postage;
- (i) telephone calls;
- (j) engaging assistants;
- (k) engaging auctioneers or agents;
- (1) conducting a sale of land or goods.
- (3) The sheriff may require—
  - (a) a deposit as security for the payment of fees before commencing a proceeding or at any time during the course of the proceeding; and
  - (b) a written undertaking to pay any further fees which may become payable above the amount of the deposit.
- (4) The fee for service of a document or execution of a process is payable despite the document not being served or the process not being executed if—
  - (a) the officer who attempted to serve the document or execute the process obtained information about the defendant of value to the plaintiff; or
  - (b) the sheriff is satisfied that other special circumstances exist justifying the fee,

and a written report on the results of the attempted service or execution has been provided to the plaintiff.

## **Schedule 1—Fees**

1		iving and entering a summons, notice, order or other document ce (other than in relation to proceedings in the Magistrates Court)	\$27.75 per copy
2	For receiving and entering a warrant (including a summons when issued as a joint process) or other process of execution		\$41.25
3		ing a summons, claim, notice, order or other document where a report must be submitted for the preparation of an affidavit of	\$30.50 per copy
4	written 1	ing a summons, claim, notice, order or other document where a report does not have to be submitted for the preparation of an of service	\$26.25 per copy
5		ducting inquiries as necessary before executing a warrant or other of execution	\$30.50
6	For executing a warrant (including serving a summons when issued as a joint process) or other process of execution or making an arrest		
7	Additional fee if, under a warrant, personal property is seized and processed for sale		\$58 plus \$32.75 for each hour or part of an hour after the first 3 hours
8	Allowance for travelling expenses incurred in the service of a document or execution of a process		\$0.90 per kilometre or part of a kilometre, after
	Note—		50 kilometres
		Only 1 fee is payable where 2 or more processes are served or executed at the same time on the same person or on different persons at the same address.	
9	Poundag	ge—	
	(a)	on a warrant of sale or other process of execution (other than on a warrant of possession enforced against real property), calculated on the amount realised on sale or, if not sold, on the value of the property seized or the amount of the judgement debt, whichever is the lesser	\$0.10 per \$1 for the first \$2 000 and \$0.05 per \$1 over \$2 000
	(b)	on a warrant of possession enforced against real property, calculated on the annual value (within the meaning of the <i>Valuation of Land Act 1971</i> ) of the real property seized	\$0.10 per \$1 for the first \$2 000 and \$0.05 per \$1 over \$2 000
10	For sher	iff's attendance to execute an enforcement process	\$32.75 per hour or part hour, after the first hour
11	For opening the office (or the office remaining open) after hours for an urgent execution of process \$183 per hour or part hours.		

# Schedule 2—Revocation of Sheriff's Regulations 1992

The Sheriff's Regulations 1992 are revoked.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

on the recommendation of the State Courts Administration Council and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 128 of 2005

AGO0227/04CS & AGO0075/05CS

#### South Australia

## Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Road Traffic Act 1961

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

4 Substitution of Schedule 9

Schedule 9—Expiation fees

Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Photographic detection devices
- 2 Lesser expiation fee if motor vehicle not involved
- Part 2—Offences against the Road Traffic Act 1961
- Part 3—Offences against the Australian Road Rules
- Part 4—Offences against the Road Traffic (Driving Hours) Regulations 1999
- Part 5—Offences against the Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

Part 6—Offences against the Road Traffic (Road Rules—Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 1999

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

## 4—Substitution of Schedule 9

Schedule 9—delete the Schedule and substitute:

## **Schedule 9—Expiation fees**

(Regulation 45)

## Part 1—Preliminary

## 1—Photographic detection devices

The expiation fee for an alleged offence against section 79B(2) of the Act constituted of being the owner of a vehicle that appears from evidence obtained through the operation of a photographic detection device to have been involved in the commission of an expiable offence is the same as the expiation fee payable for that expiable offence.

## 2—Lesser expiation fee if motor vehicle not involved

- (1) Despite the fees fixed in the tables in this Schedule, the expiation fee is \$22 for an alleged offence (other than an offence referred to in subclause (2)) constituted of—
  - (a) driving, towing, stopping or parking a vehicle other than a motor vehicle; or
  - (b) travelling in or on a wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy.
- (2) Subclause (1) does not apply in the case of—
  - (a) an offence constituted of failing to comply with the lawful directions of a person; or
  - (b) an offence against section 162C(1), (2) or (2a) of the Act; or
  - (c) an offence against rule 244(2), 254(2), 256(1) or 256(2) of the *Australian Road Rules*.

## Part 2—Offences against the *Road Traffic Act 1961*

Section	Description of offence against Road Traffic Act 1961	Fee
47B(1)	Driving whilst having prescribed concentration of alcohol in blood	
	Contravention involving less than 0.08 grams of alcohol in 100 millilitres of blood	\$151
91(3)	Failing to comply with direction of ferry operator	\$54
112(2)	Driving or towing on road vehicle not complying with vehicle standards or requirements relating to safety maintenance or emission control systems	
	Non-compliance with rule 155 of the vehicle standards	\$151
	Non-compliance with rule 158 of the vehicle standards	\$78
	Any other contravention of section 112(1)	\$164

Section	Description	of offence against Road Traffic Act 1961	Fee
114(2)	Driving or t loading requ	towing on road vehicle not complying with mass and uirements	
	Exceeding r	mass limits of vehicle—	
	by not	more than 500 kg over permitted mass	\$202
	-	re than 500 kg but not more than 1 000 kg over ted mass	\$258
	-	re than 1 000 kg but not more than 1 500 kg over ted mass	\$330
	-	re than 1 500 kg but not more than 2 000 kg over ted mass	\$347
	Any non-co	mpliance other than exceeding a mass limit	\$164
164A(1)	Contravenir	ng or failing to comply with provision of Act	
	Contraventi	on of or failure to comply with—	
	s 33(9)	Failing to comply with direction of member of police force	\$146
	s 41(2)	Failing to comply with direction of member of police force	\$146
	s 53B(1)	Selling radar detector or jammer or storing or offering radar detector or jammer for sale	\$250
	s 82(1)	Speeding while passing school bus	
		Exceeding the speed-limit while passing a school bus—	
		by less than 15 kph	\$163
		by 15 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$259
		by 30 kph or more	\$350
	s 83(1)(a)	Speeding while passing emergency vehicle	
		Exceeding 40 kph while passing an emergency vehicle—	
		by less than 15 kph	\$163
		by 15 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$259
		by 30 kph or more	\$350
	s 83A(1)	Standing etc or placing goods or sign on carriageway, dividing strip or traffic island for purpose of soliciting business etc	\$54
	s 83A(2)	Buying or offering to buy goods from person standing etc on carriageway etc in contravention of section 83A(1)	\$54
	s 85(2)	Leaving stationary vehicle in prohibited area near Parliament House etc without authority	\$67
	s 87	Walking without due care or attention etc	\$15
	s 95	Riding on vehicle without consent of driver	\$54
	s 99A	Bicycle rider riding on footpath or other road-related area failing to give warning to pedestrians etc	\$22

Section	Description	of offence against Road Traffic Act 1961	Fee
	s 99B(1)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy without due care or attention etc	\$22
	s 99B(2)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on footpath or other road-related area abreast of another vehicle etc	\$22
	s 99B(3)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on footpath or other road-related area without giving warning to pedestrians etc	\$22
	s 106(1)	Damaging road, bridge etc otherwise than by reasonable use or removing, damaging or interfering with fence, post etc	\$125
	s 107	Driving, drawing, hauling, dragging over road any implement, sledge etc	\$125
	s 108(1)	Depositing certain articles or materials on road	\$118
	s 110	Failing to keep whole of vehicle on sealed surface when driving on sealed road	\$54
	s 160(5f)	Defacing, altering, obscuring or removing defective vehicle label affixed to vehicle	\$64
	s 161A(1)	Driving of certain vehicles subject to Ministerial approval	\$164
	s 162A(2)	Driving motor vehicle not equipped with seat belts etc as required by regulations	\$220
	s 162C(1)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy without wearing safety helmet complying with regulations and properly adjusted and securely fastened	\$54
	s 162C(2)	Riding wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on which is carried child under 16 years not wearing safety helmet complying with regulations and properly adjusted and securely fastened	\$54
	s 162C(2a)	Parent or other person having custody or care of child under 16 years causing or permitting child to ride or be carried on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy without wearing safety helmet complying with regulations and properly adjusted and securely fastened	\$52
167(1)		permitting the commission of an expiable offence Road Traffic Act 1961 or these regulations	\$48
174B	Further offe	nce for continued parking contravention	\$16

# Part 3—Offences against the Australian Road Rules

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
20	Speeding	
	Exceeding applicable speed-limit on length of road—	
	by less than 15 kph	\$163
	by 15 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$259

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
	by 30 kph or more	\$350
27(1)	Failing to keep left when starting left turn (from other than multilane road)	\$179
28(1)	Failing to keep within left lane when starting left turn on multi-lane road	\$179
29	Failing to make left turn as indicated by road marking	\$179
31(1)	Starting right turn incorrectly (from other than multi-lane road)	\$179
32(1)	Failing to keep within right lane when starting right turn (on multilane road)	\$179
33(1)	Making right turn at intersection incorrectly (other than at T-intersection)	\$179
34(1)	Making hook turn at "hook turn only" sign incorrectly	\$157
35(2)	Bicycle rider making hook turn at intersection with no "hook turn only" sign etc incorrectly	\$22
36	Bicycle rider making hook turn contrary to "no hook turn by bicycles" sign	\$22
37	Starting U-turn without clear view etc	\$222
38	Failing to give way when making U-turn	\$222
39(1)	Making U-turn contrary to "no U-turn" sign at break in dividing strip	\$206
39(2)	Making U-turn contrary to "no U-turn" sign on length of road	\$206
40	Making U-turn at intersection with traffic lights and no "U-turn permitted" sign	\$175
41	Making U-turn at intersection without traffic lights where "no U-turn" sign	\$206
42	Starting U-turn at intersection from incorrect position	\$222
43(1)	Starting and making left turn incorrectly	\$179
43(2)	Starting and making right turn incorrectly	\$179
46(1)	Failing to give left change of direction signal before turning left	\$173
46(4)	Failing to stop giving left change of direction signal after turning left	\$103
48(1)	Failing to give right change of direction signal before turning right	\$173
48(4)	Failing to stop giving right change of direction signal after turning right	\$103
51	Using direction indicator lights when not permitted	\$103
53(1)	Failing to give stop signal before stopping or suddenly slowing	\$173
53(2)	Failing to give sufficient warning of stopping	\$173
53(3)	Failing to give stop signal while slowing	\$173
56(1)	Failing to stop for red traffic light	\$275
56(2)	Failing to stop for red traffic arrow	\$275
57(1)	Failing to stop for yellow traffic light	\$275
57(2)	Failing to stop for yellow traffic arrow	\$275

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
57(3)	Failing to leave intersection showing yellow traffic light or arrow	\$275
59(1)	Proceeding through red traffic light	\$275
60	Proceeding through red traffic arrow	\$275
61(2)	Failing to stop at intersection when traffic lights or arrows change to yellow or red	\$275
61(5)	Failing to leave intersection when traffic lights or arrows change to yellow or red	\$275
62	Failing to give way when turning at intersection with traffic lights	\$250
63(2)	Failing to give way at intersection with traffic lights not operating or only partly operating—where traffic light-stop sign	\$250
63(3)	Failing to give way at intersection with traffic lights not operating or only partly operating—where no traffic light-stop sign	\$250
64	Failing to give way at flashing yellow traffic arrow at intersection	\$250
65(2)	Failing to give way at marked foot crossing (except at intersection) with flashing yellow traffic light	\$236
66(1)	Failing to stop for twin red lights (except at level crossing)	\$54
66(4)	Proceeding after stopping for twin red lights (except at level crossing)	\$54
67(1)	Failing to stop and give way at "stop" sign or stop line at intersection without traffic lights	\$250
68(1)	Failing to stop and give way at "stop" sign or stop line at other place	\$206
69(1)	Failing to give way at "give way" sign or give way line at intersection (except roundabout)	\$250
70	Failing to give way at "give way" sign at bridge or length of narrow road	\$250
71(1)	Failing to give way at "give way sign" or give way line at other place	\$206
72(1)	Failing to give way at intersection (except T-intersection or roundabout)	\$250
73(1)	Failing to give way at T-intersection	\$250
74(1)	Failing to give way when entering road from road-related area or adjacent land	\$222
75(1)	Failing to give way when entering road-related area or adjacent land from road	\$222
76(1)	Moving into path of tram travelling in tram lane etc	\$103
76(2)	Failing to move out of path of tram travelling in tram lane etc	\$103
77(1)	Failing to give way to bus	\$103
78(1)	Moving into path of police or emergency vehicle	\$250
78(2)	Failing to move out of path of police or emergency vehicle	\$250
79(1)	Failing to give way to police or emergency vehicle	\$250
80(2)	Failing to stop at children's crossing	\$250
80(3)	Failing to obey hand-held "stop" sign at children's crossing	\$206

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
80(4)	Proceeding while pedestrian on children's crossing	\$250
81(2)	Failing to give way at pedestrian crossing	\$236
82	Overtaking or passing vehicle at children's crossing or pedestrian crossing	\$236
83	Failing to give way to pedestrian in shared zone	\$191
84(1)	Failing to give way when driving through break in dividing strip	\$222
85	Failing to give way on painted island	\$206
86(1)	Failing to give way in median turning bays	\$222
87(1)	Failing to give way when moving from side or shoulder of road	\$196
87(3)	Failing to give way when moving from median strip parking area	\$196
88(1)	Failing to turn left at intersection with "left turn only" sign	\$206
88(2)	Failing to turn left when in left lane at intersection with "left lane must turn left" sign	\$206
89(1)	Failing to turn right at intersection with "right turn only" sign	\$206
89(2)	Failing to turn right when in right lane at intersection with "right lane must turn right" sign	\$206
90	Turning at intersection with "no turn" sign	\$206
91(1)	Turning left at intersection with "no left turn" sign	\$206
91(2)	Turning at intersection with "no right turn" sign	\$206
92(1)	Failing to drive in direction indicated by traffic lane arrows	\$206
93(1)	Driving or overtaking on bridge or length of road where "no overtaking or passing" sign applies	\$206
94	Overtaking on bridge with "no overtaking on bridge" sign	\$206
95(1)	Driving in emergency stopping lane	\$206
96(1)	Stopping on area of road marked with "keep clear" marking	\$206
97(1)	Driving on length of road where "road access" sign applies	\$206
98(1)	Driving in wrong direction on length of road where "one-way" sign applies	\$250
99(1)	Failing to drive to left of "keep left" sign	\$206
99(2)	Failing to drive to right of "keep right" sign	\$206
100	Driving past "no entry" sign	\$206
101(1)	Failing to stop before hand-held "stop" sign	\$206
101(2)	Proceeding after stopping for hand-held "stop" sign	\$206
102(1)	Driving past "clearance" or "low clearance" sign	\$206
103(1)	Driving past "bridge load limit (gross mass)" or "gross load limit" sign—vehicle exceeding gross mass indicated by sign	\$206
103(2)	Driving past "bridge load limit (mass per axle group)" sign—vehicle axle group carrying mass exceeding mass indicated by sign	\$206
104(1)	Driving past "no trucks" sign—vehicle GVM exceeding permitted mass	\$206

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
104(2)	Driving truck past "no trucks" sign—vehicle or combination exceeding permitted length	\$206
104(3)	Driving truck past "no trucks" sign where no mass or length indicated	\$206
105	Failing to enter area indicated by "trucks must enter" sign	\$206
106(1)	Driving bus past "no buses" sign—bus exceeding mass indicated by sign	\$206
106(2)	Driving bus past "no buses" sign—bus exceeding length indicated by sign	\$206
106(3)	Driving bus past "no buses" sign where no mass or length indicated	\$206
107	Failing to enter area indicated by "buses must enter" sign	\$206
108(1)	Failing to drive truck or bus in low gear on length of road where "trucks and buses low gear" sign applies	\$206
111(1)	Failing to enter roundabout from multi-lane road or road with 2 or more lines of traffic travelling in same direction correctly	\$206
112(2)	Failing to give left change of direction signal when entering roundabout	\$173
112(3)	Failing to continue left change of direction signal while in roundabout	\$173
113(2)	Failing to give right change of direction signal when entering roundabout	\$173
113(3)	Failing to continue right change of direction signal while in roundabout	\$173
114(1)	Failing to give way when entering roundabout	\$250
114(2)	Failing to give way to tram when driving in roundabout	\$250
115(1)	Failing to drive in roundabout to left of central traffic island	\$250
116	Failing to obey traffic lane arrows when driving in or leaving roundabout	\$206
117(1)	Failing to give left change of direction signal when changing marked lanes or lines of traffic in roundabout	\$173
117(2)	Failing to give right change of direction signal when changing marked lanes or lines of traffic in roundabout	\$173
118(1)	Failing to give left change of direction signal when leaving roundabout	\$173
118(2)	Failing to stop left change of direction signal after leaving roundabout	\$173
119	Failing to give way by rider of bicycle or animal to vehicle leaving roundabout	\$22
121	Failing to stop and give way at "stop" sign at level crossing	\$206
122	Failing to give way at "give way" sign or give way line at level crossing	\$206
123	Entering level crossing when train or tram is approaching etc	\$204
124	Failing to leave level crossing as soon as safe to do so	\$170

1624

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
125(1)	Unreasonably obstructing path of other driver or pedestrian	\$64
126	Failing to keep safe distance behind other vehicles	\$187
127(1)	Failing to keep required minimum distance behind long vehicle	\$125
128	Entering blocked intersection	\$128
128A	Entering blocked crossing	\$128
129(1)	Failing to keep to far left side of road	\$168
130(2)	Driving in right lane on certain multi-lane roads	\$135
131	Failing to keep to left of oncoming vehicles	\$191
132(1)	Failing to keep to left of centre of road	\$222
132(2)	Failing to keep to left of dividing line	\$222
135(1)	Failing to keep to left of median strip	\$178
136	Driving in wrong direction on one-way service road	\$178
137(1)	Failing to keep off dividing strip	\$125
138(1)	Failing to keep off painted island	\$135
140	Overtaking when not safe to do so	\$168
141(1)	Driver overtaking to left of other vehicle	\$187
141(2)	Bicycle rider overtaking to left of vehicle turning left	\$22
142(1)	Overtaking to right of vehicle turning right	\$196
143(1)	Passing or overtaking to left of turning left vehicle displaying "do not overtake turning vehicle" sign	\$101
143(2)	Passing or overtaking to right of turning right vehicle displaying "do not overtake turning vehicle" sign	\$101
144	Failing to keep safe distance when overtaking	\$168
145	Increasing speed while being overtaken	\$166
146(1)	Failing to drive within single marked lane	\$135
146(2)	Failing to drive within single line of traffic	\$135
147	Moving from one marked lane to another marked lane across continuous line	\$135
148(1)	Failing to give way when moving from one marked lane to another marked lane	\$186
148(2)	Failing to give way when moving from one line of traffic to another line of traffic	\$186
149	Failing to give way when lines of traffic merge into single line of traffic	\$186
150(1)	Driving on or across continuous white edge line	\$54
151(1)	Riding motor bike or bicycle alongside more than 1 other rider on non multi-lane road	\$54
151(2)	Riding motor bike or bicycle alongside more than 1 other rider in marked lane	\$54
151(4)	Riding motor bike or bicycle more than 1.5 metres from another rider	\$54

Kule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
152(1)	Driving in marked lane to which overhead lane control device applies—failing to comply with rule	\$206
153(1)	Driving in bicycle lane	\$142
154(1)	Driving in bus lane	\$142
155(1)	Driving in tram lane	\$142
156(1)	Driving in transit lane	\$142
157(1)	Driving in truck lane	\$142
159(1)	Driving in marked lane required to be used by particular kinds of vehicles	\$142
160(2)	Passing or overtaking to right of tram not at or near far left side of road	\$187
160(3)	Passing or overtaking left turning etc tram not at or near far left side of road	\$187
161(2)	Passing or overtaking to left of tram at or near the left side of road	\$187
161(3)	Passing or overtaking tram turning right or giving right change of direction signal	\$187
162(1)	Driving past safety zone	\$250
163(1)	Driving past rear of stopped tram	\$250
164(1)	Failing to give way to pedestrians crossing road near stopped tram	\$250
167	Stopping where "no stopping" sign applies	\$48
168(1)	Stopping where "no parking" sign applies	\$36
169	Stopping on road with continuous yellow edge line	\$48
170(1)	Stopping in intersection	\$48
170(2)	Stopping within 20 metres of intersection with traffic lights	\$48
170(3)	Stopping within 10 metres of intersection without traffic lights	\$48
171(1)	Stopping on or near children's crossing	\$48
172(1)	Stopping on or near pedestrian crossing (except at intersection)	\$48
173(1)	Stopping on or near marked foot crossing (except at intersection)	\$48
174(2)	Stopping at or near bicycle crossing lights (except at intersection)	\$48
175(1)	Stopping on or near level crossing	\$48
176(1)	Stopping on clearway	\$142
177(1)	Stopping on freeway	\$142
178	Stopping in emergency stopping lane	\$142
179(1)	Stopping in loading zone	\$30
179(2)	Stopping in loading zone—exceeding time in loading zone	\$30
180(1)	Stopping in truck zone	\$30
181(1)	Stopping in works zone	\$30
182(1)	Stopping in taxi zone	\$48
183(1)	Stopping in bus zone	\$48
184(1)	Stopping in minibus zone	\$48

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
185(1)	Stopping in permit zone	\$30
186(1)	Stopping in mail zone	\$30
187(1)	Stopping in bus lane, transit lane or truck lane	\$142
187(2)	Stopping in bicycle lane	\$142
187(3)	Stopping in tram lane or on tram tracks	\$142
188	Stopping in shared zone	\$30
189(1)	Double parking	\$48
190(1)	Stopping in or near safety zone	\$30
191	Stopping near obstruction	\$64
192(1)	Stopping on bridge, causeway, ramp or similar structure	\$48
192(2)	Stopping in tunnel or underpass	\$64
193(1)	Stopping on crest or curve outside built-up area	\$64
194(1)	Stopping near fire hydrant etc	\$36
195(1)	Stopping at or near bus stop	\$48
196(1)	Stopping at or near tram stop	\$48
197(1)	Stopping on path, dividing strip or nature strip	\$48
198(1)	Obstructing access to and from footpath ramp etc	\$36
198(2)	Obstructing access to and from driveway etc	\$36
199(1)	Stopping near postbox	\$48
200(1)	Stopping heavy or long vehicle on road outside built-up area except on shoulder of road	\$64
200(2)	Stopping heavy or long vehicle on road in built-up area for longer than permitted time	\$64
201	Stopping on road with "bicycle parking" sign	\$30
202	Stopping on road with "motor bike parking" sign	\$30
203(1)	Stopping in parking area for people with disabilities	\$72
203A	Stopping in slip lane	\$48
205(1)	Parking for longer than indicated where "permissive parking" sign applies	\$16
207(2)	Failing to pay fee etc for parking where fees payable	\$16
208(1)	Failing to park on road (except in median strip parking area) in accordance with rule—parallel parking	\$30
209(2)	Failing to park in median strip parking area in accordance with rule—parallel parking	\$30
210(1)	Failing to park in accordance with rule—angle parking	\$30
211(1)	Parking on road etc where "park in bays only" sign applies	\$16
211(2)	Parking in parking bays—failing to park vehicle wholly within parking bay	\$16
211(3)	Parking in parking bays—failing to park long or wide vehicle in minimum number of parking bays needed to park vehicle	\$16

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
212(1)	Entering or leaving median strip parking area—contrary to sign	\$64
212(2)	Entering or leaving median strip parking area—failing to drive forward	\$64
215(1)	Failing to use lights when driving at night or in hazardous weather conditions	\$125
216(1)	Failing to use lights when towing vehicle at night or in hazardous weather conditions	\$78
217(1)	Using rear fog light when not driving in fog or other hazardous weather conditions	\$125
218(1)	Using headlights on high-beam	\$125
219	Using lights to dazzle other road users	\$125
220(1)	Stopping vehicle on road at night—failing to operate lights	\$125
221	Using hazard warning lights	\$71
223	Riding animal-drawn vehicle at night or in hazardous weather conditions—failing to operate lights	\$22
224	Using horn or similar warning device	\$85
225(1)	Using radar detector or similar device	\$250
226(1)	Driving heavy vehicle not equipped with portable warning triangles	\$54
226(2)	Failing to produce warning triangles on demand	\$54
227(2)	Failing to use portable warning triangles—vehicle stopped on road	\$54
227(3)	Failing to use portable warning triangles—fallen load	\$54
228	Pedestrian passing "no pedestrians" sign	\$15
229	Pedestrian on road to which "road access" sign applies	\$15
230(1)	Failing to cross road in accordance with rule	\$15
231(1)	Failing to cross road with pedestrian lights in accordance with rule	\$15
232(1)	Failing to cross road at traffic lights without pedestrian lights in accordance with rule	\$15
232(3)	Failing to cross road at traffic lights while light turning yellow or red in accordance with rule	\$15
232(4)	Crossing road at traffic lights—failing to remain in safety area	\$15
233(1)	Crossing road to get on tram—crossing before tram stops at tram stop	\$15
233(2)	Crossing road from tram—failing to comply with rule	\$15
234(1)	Crossing road near crossing for pedestrians	\$15
234(2)	Pedestrian staying on road longer than necessary to cross road	\$15
235(1)	Crossing level crossing	\$15
235(2)	Crossing level crossing while warning lights flashing etc	\$15
236(1)	Pedestrian causing traffic hazard	\$15
236(2)	Pedestrian causing obstruction	\$15
237(1)	Getting on or into moving vehicle	\$84

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
238(1)	Pedestrian travelling along road—failing to use footpath	\$15
238(2)	Pedestrian travelling along road—failing to keep left or walking abreast	\$15
239(1)	Pedestrian on bicycle path or separated footpath	\$15
239(3)	Pedestrian on bicycle path or separated footpath—failing to keep out of path of bicycle etc	\$15
240(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy on certain types of roads	\$22
240(2)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device on declared roads or during certain times	\$22
240(3)	Travelling in or on wheeled toy on declared roads or during certain times	\$22
241(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or toy on road—failing to keep to left or travelling abreast	\$22
242(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or toy on footpath or shared path—failing to keep left or give way	\$22
243(1)	Travelling on rollerblades etc on bicycle path or separated footpath	\$22
243(2)	Travelling on rollerblades etc on bicycle path etc—failing to keep out of path of bicycle	\$22
244(1)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy that is being towed by vehicle	\$22
244(2)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy while holding onto moving vehicle	\$54
244(3)	Travelling in or on wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy too close to rear of moving motor vehicle	\$22
245	Riding bicycle not in accordance with rule	\$22
246	Carrying on bicycle more persons than bicycle designed to carry	\$22
247(1)	Failing to ride in bicycle lane on road	\$22
248(1)	Riding bicycle across road on children's crossing or pedestrian crossing	\$22
248(2)	Riding bicycle across road on marked foot crossing	\$22
249	Riding bicycle on separated footpath	\$22
250(1)	Riding bicycle on footpath or shared path if prohibited by another law	\$15
250(2)	Riding bicycle on footpath or shared path—failing to keep to left or give way	\$22
251	Riding bicycle on bicycle path etc—failing to keep to left of oncoming bicycle riders on path	\$22
252(1)	Riding bicycle where "no bicycles" sign or no bicycle road markings applies	\$22
253	Bicycle rider causing traffic hazard	\$22
254(1)	Bicycle being towed—riding towed bicycle	\$22
254(2)	Bicycle rider holding onto moving vehicle	\$54

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
255	Riding bicycle too close to rear of motor vehicle	\$22
256(1)	Riding bicycle—rider failing to wear bicycle helmet	\$54
256(2)	Riding bicycle—rider carrying passenger not wearing bicycle helmet	\$52
257(1)	Riding with person on bicycle trailer	\$22
258	Riding bicycle not equipped with brake or warning device	\$22
259	Riding bicycle at night or in hazardous weather conditions without displaying lights etc	\$22
260(1)	Failing to stop bicycle for red bicycle crossing light	\$22
260(2)	Proceeding after stopping for red bicycle crossing light— proceeding before light changes etc	\$22
261(1)	Failing to stop bicycle for yellow bicycle crossing light	\$22
262(1)	Proceeding at intersection when bicycle crossing lights change to yellow from red—failing to finish crossing	\$22
262(2)	Proceeding on road when bicycle crossing lights change to yellow from red—failing to cross road	\$22
264(1)	Failing to wear seatbelt—driver	\$180
265(1)	Failing to wear seatbelt—passenger 16 years old, or older	\$180
266(1)	Failing to ensure passenger under 16 years old is wearing seatbelt	\$180
268(1)	Travelling in or on part of motor vehicle not designed primarily for carriage of passengers or goods	\$123
268(2)	Travelling in or on part of motor vehicle designed primarily for carriage of goods	\$123
268(3)	Travelling in or on motor vehicle with part of body outside window or door	\$85
268(4)	Driving motor vehicle with part of passenger's body outside window or door	\$85
268(4A)	Driving motor vehicle with passenger under 16 in or on part of vehicle not designed primarily for carriage of passengers or goods	\$123
268(4B)	Driving motor vehicle with passenger under 16 in or on part of vehicle designed primarily for carriage of goods that is not enclosed etc	\$123
269(1)	Getting off or out of moving vehicle	\$84
269(3)	Creating hazard by opening door of vehicle, leaving door open etc	\$85
269(4)	Driving bus while doors not closed	\$187
270(1)	Riding motor bike without wearing helmet or with passenger not wearing helmet	\$149
270(2)	Passenger on motor bike failing to wear helmet	\$149
271(1)	Riding on motor bike—rider failing to ride in correct position	\$74
271(2)	Riding on motor bike—passenger failing to ride in correct position	\$74
271(3)	Riding on motor bike—rider riding with passenger not riding correctly	\$74

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
271(4)	Riding on motor bike—riding with more than one passenger (excluding passenger in sidecar or on seat other than pillion seat)	\$74
271(5)	Riding on motor bike—riding with more than permitted number of passengers in sidecar or on seat	\$74
272	Passenger interfering with driver's control of vehicle etc	\$187
274	Failing to stop for red T light—tram driver	\$275
275	Failing to stop for yellow T light—tram driver	\$275
277	Proceeding after stopping for a red or yellow T light—tram driver	\$275
279(2)	Proceeding when white T light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—tram driver proceeding before entering intersection	\$275
279(3)	Proceeding when white T light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—tram driver failing to leave intersection	\$275
281	Failing to stop for red B light—bus driver	\$275
282	Failing to stop for yellow B light—bus driver	\$275
284	Proceeding after stopping for red or yellow B light—bus driver	\$275
286(2)	Proceeding when white B light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—bus driver proceeding before entering intersection	\$275
286(3)	Proceeding when white B light or white traffic arrow no longer showing—bus driver failing to leave intersection	\$275
288(1)	Driving on path	\$128
288(4)	Driving on path—failing to give way	\$125
289(1)	Driving on nature strip	\$125
289(2)	Driving on nature strip—failing to give way	\$125
290	Driving on traffic island	\$125
291	Making unnecessary noise or smoke while starting or driving	\$100
292	Driving or towing vehicle carrying insecure or overhanging load	\$200
293(2)	Failing to remove from road things fallen from vehicle while driving	\$118
294(1)	Towing vehicle without keeping control of vehicle being towed	\$78
294(2)	Towing trailer without keeping control of trailer	\$78
295(1)	Motor vehicle towing another vehicle with towline not in accordance with rule	\$78
296(1)	Reversing vehicle when not safe to do so	\$250
296(2)	Reversing vehicle further than reasonably necessary	\$135
297(1)	Driving motor vehicle without having proper control of vehicle	\$85
297(2)	Driving motor vehicle without clear view of road etc	\$85
298	Driving motor vehicle towing trailer with person in trailer	\$123
299(1)	Driving motor vehicle with TV or VDU in operation in vehicle	\$54
300(1)	Using hand-held mobile phone while driving vehicle	\$187
301	Leading animal while driving motor vehicle	\$54
301	Leading animal while riding bicycle	\$22

Rule	Description of offence against Australian Road Rules	Fee
302	Rider of animal on footpath or nature strip failing to give way to pedestrian	\$22
303(1)	Riding animal alongside more than $1$ other rider on non multi-lane road	\$22
303(2)	Riding animal alongside another rider in marked lane	\$22
303(4)	Riding animal alongside another rider more than 1.5 metres from other rider	\$22
304(1)	Failing to obey direction of police officer or authorised person	\$158

# Part 4—Offences against the Road Traffic (Driving Hours) Regulations 1999

Regulation	Description of offence against Road Traffic (Driving Hours) Regulations 1999	Fee
19(2)	Exceeding driver's maximum driving time for relevant period 1, 2 or 3 (heavy truck or commercial bus)	\$196
20(2)	Exceeding driver's maximum work time for relevant period 1, 2 or 3 (heavy truck or commercial bus)	\$196
21(2)	Failing to comply with driver's required minimum rest time for relevant period 1, 2 or 3 (heavy truck)	\$196
21(3)	Failing to comply with driver's required minimum rest time for relevant period 1, 2 or 4 (commercial bus)	\$196
28(3)	Exceeding driver's maximum driving time for relevant period (heavy truck)	\$196
29(2)	Exceeding driver's maximum work time for relevant period (heavy truck)	\$196
30(3)	Failing to comply with driver's required minimum rest time for relevant period (heavy truck)	\$196
39	Employer registered as employer participant in TFMS failing to comply with requirement of regulation 39	\$196
129(1)	Contravention or failure to comply with provision for which no penalty is specifically provided	\$196

# Part 5—Offences against the Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

Regulation	Description of offence against Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999	Fee
20(3)	Driving or towing vehicle on certain roads while transporting dangerous substance	\$164
20A(2)	Towing prohibited number of vehicles	\$164
21(1)	Parking in certain public places	
	parking in City of Adelaide Park Lands	\$79
	parking in other public place	\$30

Regulation		on of offence against <i>Road Traffic</i> neous) Regulations 1999	Fee
22(3)		ning notice prohibiting fishing or other specified from specified bridge or causeway	\$54
23(1)	Failing to bicycle pa	ensure dog does not enter or remain on certain ths	\$108
25(2)	Driving or towing on road vehicle not complying with requirements of regulation—vehicle altered from original specifications		\$52
44(1)	Contraver regulation	ning or failing to comply with provision of	
	Contraver	ntion of or failure to comply with—	
	r 19B(1)	Heavy vehicles and minimum allowable travel time	\$343
	r 19E	Evasive action in relation to Safe-T-Cam photographic detection device	\$343
	r 28	Riding bicycle not complying with requirements of regulation	\$22
	r 29(1)	Bicycle rider towing vehicle other than bicycle trailer complying with regulation or towing more than 1 vehicle	\$22
	r 36(7)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use in motor vehicle seat belt or part of seat belt not complying with requirements of regulation or removed from vehicle in which previously used	\$220
	r 37(3)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use in motor vehicle child restraint or part of child restraint not approved	\$220
	r 38(2)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use by motor bike rider or passenger helmet not complying with standard	\$220
	r 38(5)	Selling, or offering for sale, for use by bicycle rider or rider of wheeled recreational device or wheeled toy helmet not meeting requirement	\$220

## Part 6—Offences against the Road Traffic (Road Rules— Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 1999

Regulation	Description of offence against Road Traffic (Road Rules—Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 1999	Fee
9A(1)	Speeding while driving road train	
	Exceeding 90 kph speed-limit—	
	by less than 15 kph	\$163
	by 15 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$259
	by 30 kph or more	\$350

Regulation	Description of offence against Road Traffic (Road Rules—Ancillary and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 1999	Fee
9A(2)	Speeding while driving road train	
	Exceeding 40 kph speed-limit—	
	by less than 15 kph	\$163
	by 15 kph or more but less than 30 kph	\$259
	by 30 kph or more	\$350
10A(1)	Driving in bus only lane	\$137

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## **Made by the Governor**

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 129 of 2005

T&F05/035CS

#### South Australia

## **Motor Vehicles Variation Regulations 2005**

under the Motor Vehicles Act 1959

#### **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996

4 Substitution of Schedule 6

Schedule 6—Expiation fees

Part 1—Offences against the Motor Vehicles Act 1959

Part 2—Offences against these regulations

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Motor Vehicles Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 July 2005.

## 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Motor Vehicles Regulations 1996

#### 4—Substitution of Schedule 6

Schedule 6—delete the Schedule and substitute:

# **Schedule 6—Expiation fees**

## Part 1—Offences against the Motor Vehicles Act 1959

Section	Description of offence against Motor Vehicles Act 1959	Fee
16(9)	Driving motor vehicle without carrying permit under section 16 of the Act	\$76
16(11)	Contravening condition of permit under section 16 of the Act	\$62
47(1)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle not bearing number plates	\$62
47(1a)	Being registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section 47(1) of the Act	\$62
47A(7)	Driving motor vehicle to which is attached number plates in respect of which a declaration under section 47A(2) of the Act has been made	\$74
47D(1)(a)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle to which is attached number plate bearing number other than number allotted to vehicle	\$74
47D(1)(b)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle to which is attached number plate altered, defaced, mutilated or added to	\$74
47D(1)(c)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle to which is attached colourable imitation of number plate	\$74
47D(1)(d)	Without lawful excuse, having in possession number plate or article resembling number plate	\$74
47D(2)	Being registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section $47D(1)$ of the Act	\$74
48(3)	Driving, or causing to stand, registered motor vehicle not carrying registration label issued for vehicle or carrying registration label not in conformity with section 48 of the Act or these regulations	\$76
48(3a)	Being registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section 48(3) of the Act	\$76
53(1)(a)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle on which is affixed registration label, or in which is carried permit, no longer in force or issued in respect of another vehicle	\$74
53(1)(b)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle on which is affixed registration label, or in which is carried permit, that has been altered, defaced, mutilated or added to	\$74
53(1)(c)	Driving, or causing to stand, motor vehicle on which is affixed colourable imitation of registration label or in which is carried colourable imitation of permit	\$74

Section	Description of offence against Motor Vehicles Act 1959	Fee
53(1)(d)	Without lawful excuse, having in possession registration label, permit or article resembling registration label or permit	\$74
53(1a)	Being registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle driven, or caused to stand, in contravention of section 53(1) of the Act	\$74
66(2)	Where motor vehicle to which trade plates are affixed is driven other than for a prescribed purpose stated in application for issue of the plates, being driver or person to whom plates were issued	\$74
71B(2)	Failure by person to whom replacement number plate, trade plate, duplicate certificate of registration or duplicate registration label issued to return found or recovered original plate, certificate or label to Registrar	\$74
74(1)	Driving motor vehicle without holding appropriate licence or learner's permit	\$282
75A(5)	Contravening condition of learner's permit referred to in section $75A(3)(c)$ of the Act	\$135
75A(5)	Contravening condition of learner's permit referred to in section $75A(3)(d)$ of the Act	\$143
75A(5)	Contravening condition of learner's permit (other than the condition referred to in section $75A(3)(c)$ or $(d)$ of the $Act$ )	\$58
75A(5aaa)	Holder of learner's permit driving motor vehicle without displaying two "L" plates	\$51
75A(7)	Acting as qualified passenger for learner driver while having prescribed concentration of alcohol in blood	\$144
81(4)	Contravening condition endorsed on licence under section 81 of the Act	\$58
81A(5)	Contravening condition of provisional licence referred to in section $81A(1)(ca)$ of the Act	\$144
81A(5)	Contravening condition of provisional licence referred to in section $81A(1)(d)$ of the Act	\$58
81A(5)	Contravening condition of provisional licence referred to in section $8IA(1)(e)$ of the Act	\$128
81A(5a)	Holder of provisional licence driving motor vehicle without displaying two "P" plates	\$65
81AB(5)	Contravening condition of probationary licence referred to in section $8IAB(I)(a)$ or $(c)$ of the Act	\$58
81AB(5)	Contravening condition of probationary licence referred to in section $8IAB(1)(b)$ of the Act	\$144
81B(3a)	Failing to comply with requirement made by Registrar under section $81B(3)(a)$ of the Act to attend lecture	\$64
97A(3)	Failing to carry or produce licence while driving pursuant to section 97A(1) of the Act	\$74
98AAA(1)	Failing to carry or produce licence while driving heavy vehicle with GVM over 8 tonnes	\$64

Section	Description of offence against Motor Vehicles Act 1959	Fee
98AAB	Failing to carry or produce probationary licence, provisional licence or learner's permit while driving	\$64
102(1)	Driving, or causing to stand, an uninsured vehicle, being an offence arising out of the towing of an uninsured trailer that is not a heavy vehicle	\$21
136(1)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of residence of natural person who is registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle or holds licence or learner's permit	\$92
136(2)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of name or principal place of business of natural person who holds trade plates	\$92
136(2a)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of principal place of business of body corporate that is registered owner or registered operator of motor vehicle or holds trade plates	\$92
136(2b)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of garage address of motor vehicle	\$92
136(2c)	Failing to notify Registrar of change of registered operator of motor vehicle	\$92
143(1)	Causing or permitting the commission of an expiable offence against the Act or these regulations	\$48

# Part 2—Offences against these regulations

Regulation	Description of offence against these regulations	Fee
54(1)	Offence arising from an alleged contravention of, or failure to comply with—	
	r 22(1)—Driving motor vehicle while a device is attached to the vehicle or to a number plate or trade plate on the vehicle, or while a substance is painted or otherwise added to or made part of a number plate or trade plate on the vehicle, the effect of which is to obscure or distort a letter or figure on a number plate or trade plate on the vehicle	\$282
	r 22(4)—Driving motor vehicle to which a bike rack is attached displaying a number plate while a device is attached to the bike rack or the number plate, or a substance is painted on or otherwise added to or made part of the number plate on the bike rack, the effect of which is to obscure or distort a letter or figure on the plate	\$282
	r 27(2)—Acting as qualified passenger for learner driver without holding licence authorising the person to drive the vehicle the learner driver is driving or attempting to put in motion	\$58
	r 27(4)—Failing while acting as qualified passenger for a learner driver to take all reasonable steps to supervise and instruct the learner driver in safe and efficient driving	\$58

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 130 of 2005

T&F05/035CS

#### South Australia

## Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Variation Regulations 2005

under the Road Traffic Act 1961

## **Contents**

## Part 1—Preliminary

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Variation provisions

## Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

4 Variation of regulation 8—Offences included in prescribed circumstances

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Variation Regulations 2005*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations will come into operation on 1 June 2005.

#### 3—Variation provisions

In these regulations, a provision under a heading referring to the variation of specified regulations varies the regulations so specified.

## Part 2—Variation of Road Traffic (Miscellaneous) Regulations 1999

#### 4—Variation of regulation 8—Offences included in prescribed circumstances

Regulation 8—delete "section 47E(1)(a) of the Act (Police may require alcotest or breath analysis)" and substitute:

paragraph (a) of the definition of *prescribed circumstances* in section 47A(1) of the Act (Interpretation),

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 26 May 2005

No 131 of 2005

MTR 05/029 CS